












































































































































































































































MSCOA CONFIGURATION VOTE DESCRIPTION
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT AS 

AT 30 JUNE 2021

TLSDBIP-BS001

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Increase number of households with 

access to basic potable (drinkable) 

water.

BS1.1.1
The number of formal 

households with access to water
KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 49627 50729 50701

DPHS did not achieve the planned targets for the 

completion top-structures due to: a house 

encroaching upon the sewer line for the H39 

housing project and social instability amongst the 

H39 residents resulted in slow progress for the 

completion top structures. Top-structures at 

Charlestown were not completed timeously due to 

theft on site. 

DPHS is to follow up on the demolition 

order and DPHS ensure that the planned 

top structures are completed.  

TARGET NOT MET 49627 50474

DPHS worked proactively to 

complete the top structures. 

Town house verification shown 

an increase of 123 town 

houses. 

To ensure that the target for 

2020'21 includes the 

townhouse complexes

TARGET MET Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1-4: Valuation roll from BTO, D6 

Completion forms from DPHS with 

beneficiary l ist, invoices for basic access 

to water with completion certificate and 

beneficiary l ist. 

10209010229
HOUSING PROJECTS: 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
R115 803 509,58

TLSDBIP-BS002

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Increase number of households with 

access to basic sanitation 
BS1.2.1

The number of formal 

households with access to a 

basic level of sanitation

KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 50602 51040 51659

The department constructed more VIP Toilets than 

planned based on the availabil ity of funding 

through the operational budget. 

The department to set targets that are 

aligned to the budget and current rates for 

VIP toilets. 

TARGET MET 50602 51594

The municipality included 

townhouse complexes in the 

count to be more accurate

To ensure that the target for 

2020'21 includes the 

townhouse complexes

TARGET MET Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1-:4: Valuation roll from BTO,  

completion certificates from WSA for VIP 

Toilets, D6 forms from DPHS and 

household count from Technical Services

10209010229, 

10403010481, 

10255010481, 

10251010481

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

AND HOUSING PROJECTS 

CONTRACTED SERRVICES 

170 140 000 + R14 329 900

TLSDBIP-BS003

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To reduce water loss
To reduce the percentage of water 

losses. (Non- revenue water loss)
BS2.1.1/5.1.2

Water loss by 2% of the 

baseline per annum for Non-

Revenue Water loss 

Water loss Reduction by 2% of the 

baseline per annum for Non-

Revenue Water loss 

Output Percentage (%) 2,00% 2,00% 1,53% (increase)

Not all burst pipes and water leaks were addressed 

immediately due to staff shortages in the operation 

team. Faulty meters that give inaccurate water 

consumption readings. 

All vacant positions to be fi l led by the 1st of 

September 2021. All burst pipes and water 

leaks to be addressed within 24 hours 

subsequent to the fi l l ing of vacant positions 

in the water operations teams. The 

replacement of faulty meters to be fast-

tracked by the Director WSA and a report of 

the same to be submitted on a weekly basis 

to the SED: Technical Services. 

TARGET NOT MET 2,00% 2,95% (increase) 

Not all burst pipes and water 

leaks were addressed 

immediately due to staff 

shortages in the operations 

team. Some areas of 

Newcastle East are not 

metered. Developed stand with 

no meters, account and not 

bil led. The Osizweni pressure 

management project was 

delayed as the scope of work 

had to be changed. 

To follow up with corporate 

services for the fi l l ing of 

vacancies in the operations 

team to ensure that water leaks 

and burst pipes are addressed 

timeously. To ensure that 

Osizweni 

TARGET NOT 

MET 
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1- 4  Water balance scorecard 

with all calculations

 70720020651 &                                                                                        

70712100451                                

 Pipe Replacement  & 

Osizweni Pressure 

Management    

R4 000 000 + R6 791 865

TLSDBIP-BS004

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To create a safe and healthy 

environment  

To implement the Waste 

Management Strategy in l ine with 

relevant legislation

BS3.1.1  

Annual review and approval of 

the Integrated Waste 

Management Plan by Council 

by June 2021

KPI not revised Output 
Integrated Waste 

Management Plan

Approved Integrated 

Waste Management 

Plan by June 2020

Annual review and approval of  

Integrated Waste 

Management Plan by Council 

by June 2021

Annual review and approval of  

Integrated Waste Management 

Plan by Council by 5th May 

2021

TARGET MET 
Annual review and approval of  

Integrated Waste Management 

Plan by Council

Integrated Waste Management 

Plan approved by Council in 

June 2020

TARGET MET 
COMMUNITY 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Q1 Goals and Situational Analysis in the 

form of a table and input from stake 

holders                                                                    

Q2 Action Plans and Alternatives in the 

form of a table                                                      

Q3 Draft IWMP                                                       

Q4 Minutes of the Council Meeting and 

Final  Integrated Waste Management 

Plan 

COST CENTER: 222 Refuse removal R43 443 371,00

TLSDBIP-BS005

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To create a safe and healthy 

environment  

To provide a refuse removal service 

to the Newcastle Community 
BS3.2.1

Number of  formal households 

serviced: Refuse Removal  
KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 49627 50729 50701

DPHS did not achieve the planned targets for the 

completion top-structures due to: a house 

encroaching upon the sewer line for the H39 

housing project and social instability amongst the 

H39 residents resulted in slow progress for the 

completion top structures. Top-structures at 

Charlestown were not completed timeously due to 

theft on site. 

DPHS will  follow up on the demolition 

order and ensure that the planned top 

structures are completed.  

TARGET NOT MET 49627 50474

DPHS worked proactively to 

complete the top structures. 

Town house verification shown 

an increase of 123 town 

houses. 

To ensure that the target for 

2020'21 includes the 

townhouse complexes

TARGET MET 
COMMUNITY 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Quarter 1-4: Valuation roll from BTO, D6 

Completion forms from DPHS with 

beneficiary l ist

COST CENTER: 222 Refuse removal R43 443 371,00

TLSDBIP-BS006

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To create a safe and healthy 

environment  

To establish a new landfil l site 

including management of the 

existing facil ity

BS3.3.1

Monthly internal monitoring 

checklist performed to ensure 

compliance with a landfil l site  

KPI not revised Output Monthly reports 12 12 12 TARGET MET 12 12 TARGET MET 
COMMUNITY 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Quarter 1-4: Monthly Internal monitoring 

checklist on compliance with a landfil l 

site and a calculation sheet

COST CENTER: 222 Refuse removal R43 443 371,00

TLSDBIP-BS007

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To create a safe and healthy 

environment  

To establish a new landfil l site 

including management of the 

existing facil ity

BS3.3.2

To finalise and submit the EIA 

Report for Landfil l site approval 

to Environmental Affairs

KPI not revised Process Reports NEW KPI

Finalise and submit the EIA 

report for the approval of the 

landfil l site 

Finalization and submission of 

the EIA report for approval of the 

landfil l site is not complete

The municipality completed the screening report 

for potential sites but those sites belong to other 

government sectors. 

Identify potential sites from farms that are 

up for sale within the Amajuba district area
TARGET NOT MET N/A N/A N/A DPHS Quarterly 

Q1 List of identified sites                                   

Q2 Screening Report                                            

Q3 Progress report on specialist studies                                    

Q4 EIA Report

10161010105 SALARIES R10 118 434,00

TLSDBIP-

BS008.1

Km of Roads 

resealed/rehabilitated
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) 2,655km

0,9 Km of Roads resealed in 

Madadeni (Mad4=0,7km and 

Mad6= 0,2km)

0,90 Km of Roads resealed in 

Madadeni (Mad4=0,70km and 

Mad6= 0,20km)

Technical Services Bi-annual 

Quarter 1-4: Completion certificates 

signed by the Director/SED, Manager: 

Roads & Storm-water, and confirmed by 

relevant ward councillor. Resealing plan, 

invoices linked to the capital program. 

70174007921
Resealing of Roads 

Madadeni    
R1 714 724,00

TLSDBIP-

BS008.2

Km of Roads 

resealed/rehabilitated
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) 1,618km

0,3 km  of Roads resealed in 

Osizweni (JR4)

0,30 km of Roads resealed in 

Osizweni (JR4)
Technical Services Bi-annual 

Q1 - Resealing plan, monthly progress 

report                                                                 

Q2 & Q3 - Resealing plan, invoices 

linked to the capital program. 

Completion certificates signed by the 

Director/SED, Manager: Roads & Storm-

water, and confirmed by relevant ward 

councillor                                         

70174008021
Resealing of Roads 

Osizweni 
R1 739 129,00

TLSDBIP-

BS008.3
BS4.1.1

Km of Roads 

resealed/rehabilitated
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) 0,404km

1,1 Km of Roads resealed in 

Newcastle Residential 

(Drakensberg = 0,9KM, 

Panorama = 0,1 km and 

Henrietta = 0,1 km)

1,10 Km of Roads resealed in 

Newcastle Residential 

(Drakensberg = 0,90KM, 

Panorama = 0,10 km and 

Henrietta = 0,10 km)

Technical Services Quarterly 

Q1 - Resealing plan, monthly progress 

report                                                               

Q2 & Q3 - Resealing plan, invoices 

linked to the capital program. 

Completion certificates signed by the 

Director/SED, Manager: Roads & Storm-

water, and confirmed by relevant ward 

councillor                                         

70174009121
Resealing of Roads: 

Newcastle            
R3 655 073,90

TLSDBIP-

BD008.4

Km of Roads 

resealed/rehabilitated
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) 2,194km

1,1 Km's of Roads resealed in 

Newcastle  CBD (Terminus = 

0,5km, Voortrekker= 0,1km, 

Memel = 0,4km and York 

Street = 0,1km) 

1,22 Km's of Roads resealed in 

Newcastle  CBD (Terminus = 

0,47km, Voortrekker= 0,18km, 

Memel = 0,31km and York Street 

= 0,26km) 

The department did more km's of resealing than 

planned for York street and Terminus street. On 

York street instead of doing category 2 resealing 

the department did category 1 resealing due to the 

department addressing potholes report

The department to assess the category of 

resealing prior to setting targets on the 

SDBIP

Technical Services Quarterly 

Q1 - Resealing plan, monthly progress 

report                                                                     

Q2 & Q3- Resealing plan, invoices linked 

to the capital program. Completion 

certificates signed by the Director/SED, 

Manager: Roads & Storm-water, and 

confirmed by relevant ward councillor                                         

70174009221
Resealing of Roads 

Newcastle Residential West     
R1 990 871,00

TLSDBIPBS008.5 
Number of speedhumps 

constructed
KPI not revised Output Reports New KPI 

Completion of 70 speedhumps 

as per the speed hump plan.

70 speedhumps completed as 

per the speedhump plan 
n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Quarterly 

Q3 - Speedhumps Plan and orders            

Q4 - Invoices and a completion 

certificate signed by the Director/SED, 

Manager: Roads & Storm-water, and 

confirmed by relevant ward councillor    

70174007821 Speedhumps      R1 820 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS009 BS4.1.2 km's of roads gravelled KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) 9 km 

0.2 km pf gravel layer 

completed at ward 7 Mndozo 

clinic area

1km of gravel layer completed at 

ward 7 Mndozo clinic area. 

Gravelling material was acquired by Mayor's Office 

for Mndozo (1km)

Targets to be revised in future when any 

additional materials are acquired. 
TARGET MET 9KM 8,644km 

Money from re-graveling was 

re-prioritised by the 

municipality

To add the 7km of roads of for 

re-graveling to the 2020/21 

financial year target 

depending on the budget 

allocation. 

TARGET NOT 

MET
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1 : BSC and BEC Minutes.                         

Quarter 2: Advert                                                 

Quarter 3 : BEC, BAC minutes and an 

appointment letter                                                         

Q4 : Order, delivery note/s, invoices,  

monthly report and a completion 

certificate 

10173010495 Gravelling of roads  R1 999 999,00

TLSDBIP- 

BS010.1

Km's of roads upgraded from 

gravel to blacktop 
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) new KPI

0,75 Km's of the sub-base 

layer complete  (MF18 & 

MF19)

0,75 Km's of the sub-base layer 

is  complete  (MF18 & MF19)
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC and BAC minutes and 

appointment letter contractors.                  

Quarter 2: Site handover minutes                                   

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

appointment Letter,                                                           

Quarter 4: Monthly progress report and 

invoice/s 

70245009851
Construction of MF18 & 

MF19 Roads  
R6 764 400,00

TLSDBIP- 

BS010.2

Km's of roads upgraded from 

gravel to blacktop 
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) New KPI

0,714 Km's of the sub-base 

layer complete (MF69, 7,10)

0,714 Km's of the sub-base layer 

is  complete (MF69, 7,10)
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC and BAC minutes and 

appointment letter contractors.                  

Quarter 2: Site handover minutes                                   

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

appointment Letter,                                                           

Quarter 4: Monthly progress report and 

invoice/s 

70245010051 Construction of MF 69, 7, 10    R8 881 875,00

TLSDBIP- 

BS010.3

Km's of roads upgraded from 

gravel to blacktop 
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) New KPI

0,375 Km's of the sub-base 

layer complete  (MC13)

0,375 Km's of the sub-base layer 

is  complete  (MC13)
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC and BAC minutes and 

appointment letter contractors.                  

Quarter 2: Site handover minutes                                   

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

appointment Letter,                                                           

Quarter 4: Monthly progress report and 

invoice/s 

70245018551 Construction of MC13 R3 901 709,00

TLSDBIP- 

BS010.4

Km's of roads upgraded from 

gravel to blacktop 
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) New KPI

1.1 Km's of the sub-base layer 

complete  (OB Link Road)

0,80 Km's of the sub-base layer 

not completed (OB Link road) 

The roadbed layer is 70% complete. Delays in the 

re-allocation of the water pipeline.

The contractor to submit a revised 

programme indicating how they are 

planning to fast track the project

Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC and BAC minutes and 

appointment letter contractors.                  

Quarter 2: Site handover minutes                                   

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

appointment Letter,                                                           

Quarter 4: Monthly progress report and 

invoice/s 

70245010151
Construction of OB 1 Link 

Road         
R8 825 702,00

TLSDBIP- 

BS010.5

Km's of roads upgraded from 

gravel to blacktop 
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) New KPI

0,52 Km's of the sub-base 

layer complete  (OA27)

0,52 Km's of the sub-base layer 

is  complete  (OA27)
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC and BAC minutes and 

appointment letter contractors.                  

Quarter 2: Site handover minutes                                   

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

appointment Letter,                                                           

Quarter 4: Monthly progress report and 

invoice/s 

70245018851 Construction of OA27 R3 308 026,00

TLSDBIP- 

BS010.6

Km's of roads upgraded from 

gravel to blacktop 
KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) New KPI

1.2 Km's of the sub-base layer 

complete  (H39 Bus Road)

1,08 Km's of the sub-base layer 

not  complete  (H39 Bus Road)

Box cutting is 50% completed. Delays due to 

community unrest in April which affected a progress 

of the project

An extension of time to be submitted to the 

municipality and the road be completed as 

specified in the extension of time request. 

Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC and BAC minutes and 

appointment letter contractors.                  

Quarter 2: Site handover minutes                                   

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

appointment Letter,                                                           

Quarter 4: Monthly progress report and 

invoice/s 

70245018451
Construction of H39 Bus 

Road and Street Lighting  
R9 058 236,00

TLSDBIP-BS011
Approval of the Electricity 

Service Delivery Plan (ESDP) 
Kpi was not revised Process Reports Tender advert 

Approved Electricity Service 

Delivery Plan (ESDP) by 

council.

ESDP Not approved by Council. 
Appointment of consultant finalised. Budget was 

adjusted to cover only electrification designs 

Budget be made available for 2021/2022 

financial year
TARGET NOT MET Approved ESDP by Council ESDP not approved by Council

The tender was cancelled and 

will be readvertised. 

Department delayed in the 

compilation of the 

specifications. 

To ensure that the service 

provider is appointed in the 

first quarter of 2020/21 and 

that the Draft ESDP is 

submitted to council by 

31/01/2021

TARGET NOT 

MET 

Technical Services 

(Electrical and 

Mechanical 

Services)

Bi-annual 

Quarter 1:Inception report with 

departmental input                                    

Quarter 2: Finalised Draft Inception report                                                                

Quarter 3: PFSCM meeting minutes and 

signed Draft ESDP signed off by the SED: 

Technical Services                                     

Quarter 4: Final ESDP and Council 

Minutes 

10601010229 Consultant Fees   R190 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS012

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure access to electricity within 

the Newcastle Licence area 

To provide electricity within the 

Newcastle Municipality Licensed 

Areas.

BS6.2.1

Number of formal households 

with access to a basic level of 

electricity

KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 49827 50095 50111

Project is practically complete. The energising of 

houses was not completed due to defects identified 

on the Normandien and Blauwbosch projects. 

The municipality to meet with the 

consultant and contractor to ensure that the 

rural electrification program is completed 

TARGET NOT MET 49827 49334

Rural electrification program is 

sti l l in the construction phase 

due to the National Lockdown 

level 5 that delayed the 

Project. 

500 Households to be 

electrified by the end of July 

2020. 

TARGET NOT 

MET 

Technical Services 

(Electrical and 

Mechanical 

Services)

Quarterly 

Quarter 1-3: Valuation roll with 

calculations and Quarter 4: Valuation 

roll, completion certificates with 

beneficiary l ist and calculation sheet. 

10258010609 Rural Electrification   R7 000 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS013

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Provide housing and other 

development projects reticulated 

water service through provision of 

new infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS3.1.1/5.1.2
Progress on the Construction of 

Blaauwbosch Bulk Water Supply
KPI not revised Process Reports

Finalise Application 

process for the WULA 

Contractor appointed for the 

construction of 11.5 km 

pipeline from Brackfontein 

reservoir to Blaawbosch area.

Contractor not appointed for the 

construction of 11.5 km pipeline 

from Brackfontein reservoir to 

Blaawbosch area.

Provisional appointment of the contractor 

completed delays in the final  appointment of 

service provider are due to SCM not compiling the 

of Admin compliance report timeously.

Follow-up made to fast track the project 

with SCM
TARGET NOT MET Finalise Application process for 

the WULA 

WULA application is not 

finalised. 

Municipality is awaiting 

feedback from DWS for the pre-

application meeting. DWS was 

closed for the period of the 

National Lockdown. 

To follow up with DWS and 

arrange for a virtual meeting. 

TARGET NOT 

MET 
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: Approval/certificate of 

approval for the WULA.                                               

Quarter 2: BSC Minutes and Tender 

advert.                                                               

Quarter 3: Tender Advert                                   

Quarter 4: Appointment Letter

70701009651 Blaauwbosch Bulk Water R1 971 902,47

TLSDBIP-BS014

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS4.1.3
Construction of a new road for 

medical precinct 
KPI not revised Output Reports Inception Report

0.74 km of road excavation for 

the medical precinct 

completed

0.74 km of road excavation for 

the medical precinct completed
TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC Minutes.                            

Quarter 2: BAC minutes, appointment 

letter, site meeting minutes and progress 

reports.                                                            

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and an 

appointment letter                                        

Quarter 4: Progress reports and invoices

70161306421 Medical Precinct: road R2 931 104,00

TLSDBIP-BS015

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Upgrade wastewater collection and 

treatment facil ities 
BS1.3.1

Upgrade of Madadeni Waste 

Water Treatment Plant 
KPI not revised Process Reports NEW KPI

Construction of chlorination 

building and paving parking 

area complete in Madadeni 

Waste Treatment and pump 

line, 10 speed mixers, 2 

mechanical screens, 2 

classifiers, 2 slush pumps, inlet 

channel around parking area 

and gravity pipe from 

distribution box to the waste 

activated sludge and scrum 

boxes.

Construction of chlorination 

building and paving parking 

area complete in Madadeni 

Waste Treatment and pump line, 

2 mechanical screens, 2 

classifiers, 2 slush pumps, inlet 

channel around parking area 

and gravity pipe from distribution 

box to the waste activated 

sludge and scrum boxes 

completed and 10 speed mixers 

were not completed. 

There was a delay in acquisition of materials for 

the project. 

The project to be rolled over to the 

2021/2022 financial year.
TARGET NOT MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BSC minutes and tender 

advert.                                                                   

Quarter 2: BAC and BEC minutes and 

appointment letter for service provider. 

Quarter 3: Progress reports (Civils work), 

Advert (Electrical work)                                      

Quarter 4: Progress reports (invoices for 

all expenditure)

70245018351
Upgrade of Madadeni Waste 

Water Treatment Plant  
R18 919 809,00

TLSDBIP-BS016

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Increase number of households with 

access to basic potable (drinkable) 

water.
BS1.1.2 

 Vil joen park bulk water and 

sanitation

 Upgrade of Vil joen park bulk 

water and sanitation
Process Reports NEW KPI

Consultant appointed for the 

Viljoen park bulk water and 

sanitation (upgrade of 

Newcastle Waste water 

treatment plant)

Consultant appointed for the 

Viljoen park bulk water and 

sanitation (upgrade of Newcastle 

Waste water treatment plant)

TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BSC minutes and tender 

advert.                                                               

Quarter 2: BAC and BEC minutes and 

appointment letter for service provider. 

Quarter 3: Tender Advert                                   

Quarter 4: Appointment Letter

70701018251
VILJOENPARK BULK 

WATER AND SANITATION   
R2 015 623,38

TLSDBIP-BS017

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

To ensure that waste Water quality 

and sanitation services is rendered 

in an efficient and affordable 

manner

BS1.4.1
To achieve 90% green drop 

compliance for water quality 
KPI not revised Output Percentage (%) 90,00% 90% 86,69%

June Compliance is sti l l outstanding due to the fact 

that water quality analysis are a month behind.  

Mechanical and electrical breakdowns on the 

surface aerators resulted in the two ammonia non-

compliant counts. (Kilbarchan WWTW) The 

treatment works normally struggle with nutrient 

(nitrate) removal especially during the cooler 

climatic conditions. This is due to its process 

technology which is not effective for the 

denitrification process   ( Newcastle WWTW)  The 

malfunctioning of the aerators has had a negative 

effect on the activated sludge section of the 

treatment works and as a result contributed to the 

reduced ammonia compliance.    (Osizweni 

WWTW) 

Kantech is currently busy with the repairs of 

the aerators.(Kilbarchan WWTW ).  Kantech  

has been appointed to do maintenance to 

aerators (Osizweni WWTW)

TARGET NOT MET 90% 84,07%

The malfunctioning of the 

return activated sludge (RAS) 

pumps is resulting into poor 

nitrification process, negatively 

affecting the treatment works 

ammonia count compliance. A 

service provider has been 

appointed to into the matter 

(Madadeni WWTW). The 

treatment plant is sti l l 

struggling with the nitrate 

count compliance due to the 

poor denitrification reaction of 

a biological fi ltration process 

technology, especially during 

cooler climatic 

conditions(Newcastle WWTW). 

The poor state of the 

Refurbishment of Madadeni 

Sewer Pump Number one. 

TARGET NOT 

MET
Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1-4: Compliance report with 

calculations signed off by the SED
10701010105 Salaries R50 776 247,00

TLSDBIP-BS018

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Increase number of households with 

access to basic potable (drinkable) 

water.

BS1.1.3
Percentage Implementation of 

the water maintenance plan 
KPI not revised Output Percentage (%) 100% 100% 100,00% TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a

 Technical 

Services  
Quarterly 

Maintenance plan, progress reports, 

invoices linked to expenditure and 

calculation sheet 

10701010486
 Maintenance Plant 

Operations   
R3 770 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS019

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure access to electricity within 

the Newcastle Licence area 

To provide electricity within the 

Newcastle Municipality Licensed 

Areas.

BS6.2.2

Percentage Implementation of 

the electricity maintenance 

plan 

KPI not revised Output Percentage (%) 100% 100% 100% TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a
 Technical 

Services  
Quarterly 

Maintenance plan, progress reports, 

invoices linked to expenditure and 

calculation sheet 

10602010476/ 

10602010489/ 

10602010484                                                             

MAINTENANCE BY TEST 

SECTION, SWITCH GEAR 

MAINTENANCE & ROBOT 

MAINTAINANCE:        

R1 999 559,00

TLSDBIP-BS020

     Output 1: 

Implement a 

differentiated 

approach to 

municipal financing, 

planning and 

support.

Basic Service Delivery 

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, 

sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To facil itate the provision of 

sustainable human settlements in 

l ine with the national and provincial 

norms and standards.

To reduce housing backlog to meet 

the provincial and national targets
BS7.2.1

Number of Top-structures  

(completed house) built in a 

year

KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 329 247 214

The H39 housing project has been delayed due to 

the social instability and a house encroaching on 

the main sewer land that has to be demolished. 

The Charlestown project is delayed due to theft of 

materials on site. 

DPHS is to follow up on the demolition 

order and DPHS ensure that the planned 

top structures are completed.  

TARGET NOT MET 329 376

The implementing agents and 

contractors for the Siyahlala 

and Osizweni Phase 3 housing 

projects worked proactively to 

ensure that additional top-

structures were completed. The 

budget for Provincial housing 

commenced in the 4th quarter 

of the municipal financial 

year. 

To ensure that budget for top-

structures is aligned to the 

provincial budget for housing. 

TARGET MET DPHS Quarterly 
Quarter 1-3: D6 Forms with beneficiary 

l ist 
10209010229

HOUSING PROJECTS: 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
R115 803 509,58

TLSDBIP-BS021

     Output 1: 

Implement a 

differentiated 

approach to 

municipal financing, 

planning and 

support.

Basic Service Delivery 

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, 

sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To facil itate secure tenure and clear 

property rights

Fast-track Title Deed Restoration 

Project 
BS8.1.1

Number of houses transferred 

through Enhanced Extended 

Discount Benefit Scheme 

(EEDBS) 

KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 200 100 111 TARGET MET 200 189

The Deeds Office was closed 

during the National Lockdown 

and therefore not all title 

deeds were transferred 

timeously. 

To follow up with the 

conveyancer and the Deeds 

Office to ensure that the 

remaining title deeds are 

transferred by December 2020. 

N/A DPHS Quarterly 

Quarter 2 and 4: Copies of Title 

Deeds/windeed, acknowledgement letter 

for collection conveyancers certificate

10209010229
HOUSING PROJECTS: 

CONTRACTED SERVICES
R115 803 509,58

TLSDBIP-BS022

     Output 1: 

Implement a 

differentiated 

approach to 

municipal financing, 

planning and 

support.

Basic Service Delivery 

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, 

sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

Improved access to land 

(including Land 

Reform)

To facil itate secure tenure and clear 

property rights

Disposal of municipal land in l ine 

with Land Disposal Policy
BS8.2.1

Number of  Sites released for 

disposal  
KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 25 25 26 One additional property was identified by DPHS.  

Potential sites for sale be identified prior to 

setting the target on the SDBIP
TARGET MET 25 28

Council also approved that the 

department also sell previous 

properties that were not sold. 

Department to ensure that in 

future properties that are not 

sold are included in the target. 

TARGET MET DPHS Quarterly 

Quarter 1: List of properties identified 

Quarter2: Valuation certificate Quarter 3: 

Minutes of EXCO and Council Quarter4: 

Advertisement of properties for sale

10123010105 SALARIES R11 004 981,00

TLSDBIP-BS023

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS9.1.1

Completion of  construction of 

0, 708 km of storm-water 

drainage for the medical 

precinct

KPI not revised Output Reports Inception Report

0.708km of trench excavations 

complete for the stormwater 

drainage for the medical 

precinct .

0.708km of trench excavations is 

complete for the stormwater 

drainage for the medical 

precinct .

TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a
TECHNICAL 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC Minutes.                          

Quarter 2: BAC minutes, appointment 

letter, site meeting minutes and progress 

reports.                                                              

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

Appointment Letter                                     

Quarter 4: Progress reports and  invoices 

for expenditure 

70161406421
Medical Precinct: Storm 

Water.  
R678 204,00

TLSDBIP-BS024

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS9.1.2
Construction of Streetlights for 

the medical precinct 
KPI not revised Output Reports Inception Report

20 streetlight poles procured 

and 800m of electrical cable.

20 streetlight poles and 800m of 

electrical cable has not yet 

procured

The scope of work for the electrical design has 

been changed. 

The variation order and extension of time 

has been approved and work will continue 

as per the new scope of work.

TARGET NOT MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a
TECHNICAL 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC Minutes.                          

Quarter 2: BAC minutes, appointment 

letter, site meeting minutes and progress 

reports.                                                                

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

Appointment Letter                                     

Quarter 4: Progress reports and  invoices 

for expenditure 

70161506421
Medical Precinct: Street 

l ights. 
R943 763,00

TLSDBIP-BS025

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS9.1.3
Servicing of land for the 

medical precinct water 
KPI not revised Output Reports Inception Report

 0,68 km of trench excavations 

for the water pipeline at 

medical precinct  completed

 0,68 km of trench excavations 

for the water pipeline at medical 

precinct is completed

TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a
TECHNICAL 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC Minutes.                          

Quarter 2: BAC minutes, appointment 

letter, site meeting minutes and progress 

reports.                                                             

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

Appointment Letter                                     

Quarter 4: Progress reports and  invoices 

for expenditure 

70161506421 Medical Precinct: Water  R574 549,00

TLSDBIP-BS026

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS9.1.4
Servicing of land for the 

medical precinct with sewer 
KPI not revised Output Reports Inception Report

 0,933 km of trench 

excavations complete for the 

sewer pipeline at the medical 

precinct . 

0,93 km of trench excavations for 

the water pipeline at medical 

precinct is completed

TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a
TECHNICAL 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC Minutes.                          

Quarter 2: BAC minutes, appointment 

letter, site meeting minutes and progress 

reports.                                                                 

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

Appointment Letter                                     

Quarter 4: Progress reports and  invoices 

for expenditure 

70161506421 Medical Precinct: Sewer R371 313,00

TLSDBIP-BS027

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS9.1.5

Completion of the commission 

of an electrical substation for 

the medical precinct 

KPI not revised Output Reports Inception Report

Foundation earthworks for the 

substation of the medical 

precinct  complete

Foundation earthworks for the 

substation of the medical 

precinct is not yet complete

The scope of work for the electrical design has 

been changed. 

The variation order and extension of time 

has been approved and work will continue 

as per the new scope of work.

TARGET NOT MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a
TECHNICAL 

SERVICES
Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BEC Minutes.                          

Quarter 2: BAC minutes, appointment 

letter, site meeting minutes and progress 

reports.                                                              

Quarter 3: BEC, BAC minutes and 

Appointment Letter                                     

Quarter 4: Progress reports and  invoices 

for expenditure 

70161506421 Medical Precinct: Substation R2 040 979,00

TLSDBIP-BS029

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

BS9.1.7 Purchase of a Vehicle KPI not revised Output Reports NEW KPI

4 vehicles purchased ( 2- 4*4 

Long driven vehicles and 2- 3 

ton trucks)

4 vehicles purchased ( 2- 4*4 

Long driven vehicles and 2- 3 

ton trucks)

TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: BSC minutes and tender 

advert                                                               

Quarter 2: BEC and BAC minutes  

invoices linked to expenditure and 

delivery note                                                                        

Quarter 3: Orders and price confirmation 

Quarter 4: Delivery notes and invoices

70174103721 Purchase of a vehicle R3 032 728,00

TLSDBIP-BS030

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved quality of 

roads and storm water 

infrastructure (including 

sidewalks)

Upgrade of gravel roads to tarred 

roads with storm water infrastructure 

and street furniture 

Implementation of the Capital 

Program (MIG+INTERNAL 

FUNDING)

0,78 Km's of roads upgraded 

from gravel to blacktop for 

MF55

KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) Road Layer works 
0,78km of road upgraded from 

gravel to black-top completed 

0,78km of road upgraded from 

gravel to black-top completed 
TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: Progress reports                              

Quarter 2: Progress reports, invoices and 

completion certificate signed by the SED 

and Service provider 

70245008551 MF55 R3 182 359,00

TLSDBIP-BS031

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved quality of 

roads and storm water 

infrastructure (including 

sidewalks)

Upgrade of gravel roads to tarred 

roads with storm water infrastructure 

and street furniture 

Implementation of the Capital 

Program (MIG+INTERNAL 

FUNDING)

0,821 Km's of roads upgraded 

from gravel to blacktop for 

MD35

KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) Snag list 

0,821 Km of road upgraded 

from gravel to blacktop 

completed 

 Completion of 0,801Km of road 

upgraded from gravel to blacktop 

 The target was based on the design report 

however the actual construction on the ground that 

was necessary was only 0,801km and the 

expenditure incurred is related to the work done. 

 The department to ensure that targeted 

kilometers are set in accordance to the 

actual work that has to be done.  

TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Annual 

Quarter 1: Invoices, completion 

certificate signed by the SED and Service 

provider

70245008651 MD35 R1 198 108,00

TLSDBIP-BS032

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved quality of 

roads and storm water 

infrastructure (including 

sidewalks)

Upgrade of gravel roads to tarred 

roads with storm water infrastructure 

and street furniture 

Implementation of the Capital 

Program (MIG+INTERNAL 

FUNDING)

0,766 Km's of roads upgraded 

from gravel to blacktop for 

OA103

KPI not revised Output Kilometres (km) Road Layer works 

0.5KM base layer complete 

and 0.9km of roads upgraded 

from gravel to blacktop for OA 

103 is not complete

0.90km base layer complete and 

0.90km of roads upgraded from 

gravel to blacktop for OA 103 is 

not complete 

Project is at the practical completion stage. The 

contractor is delayed in completing the work due to 

a disagreement between the contractor and 

consultant over the rates. 

The project to be rolled over TARGET NOT MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Quarterly 

Quarter 1: Progress reports                        

Quarter 2 - 3: Progress reports and 

invoices                                                        

Quarter 4: Progress reports and 

completion certificate signed by the SED 

and Service provider 

70245009451 OA103 R2 624 982,00

TLSDBIP-BS033

     Output 1: 

Implement a 

differentiated 

approach to 

municipal financing, 

planning and 

support.

Basic Service Delivery 

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, 

sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To facil itate the provision of 

sustainable human settlements in 

l ine with the national and provincial 

norms and standards.

To reduce housing backlog to meet 

the provincial and national targets

REFURBISHMENT OF 

SURYAVILLE & FAIRLEIGH 

FLAT

KPI not revised Process Reports

Paving purchased - 

delivery is pending. Cat 

ladders awaiting for 

order and this will be 

processed as accruals. 

Work to be completed in 

2020/21 

Installation of 72 water meters 

for Fairleigh Flats,  installation 

of 5 cat ladders for Suryivil le  

Flats, installation of 12 fire-

hydrants at Suryivil le  Flats 

and the completion for the 

diversion of sewer for 48 flats 

at Fairleigh

Installation of 72 water meters 

for Fairleigh Flats was not 

completed.   Installation of 5 cat 

ladders for Suryivil le  Flats 

completed.  Installation of 12 

fire-hydrants at Suryivil le  Flats 

and the completion for the 

diversion of sewer for 48 flats at 

Fairleigh

The 72 flats did not require new water maters but 

only required that the fire hydrants be connected to 

water meters for the 72 flats. 

The Department is to ensure that in future 

targets on the SDBIP be set in accordance 

to the approved scope of work. 

TARGET MET 

Installation of water meters at 

72 flats. Re-divert  sewer at C-

block Fairleigh, Drainage and 

paving at 48 flats, fire 

extinguisher, cat ladders at 72 

flats, Fairleigh Facia boards 

and rebuilding outlet pipes 

and drains of 72 flats 

72 water meters at flats not 

installed. Re-divert  sewer at C-

block Fairleigh, Drainage and 

paving at 48 flats not 

completed, fire extinguisher, 

cat ladders at 72 flats  not 

purchased, Fairleigh Facia 

boards and rebuilding outlet 

pipes and drains of 72 flats not 

completed 

Paving purchased - delivery is 

pending. Cat ladders awaiting 

for order and this will be 

processed as accrurals. Work to 

be completed in 2020/21 

To ensure that the remaining 

funds is rolled over and the 

outstanding work is completed. 

N/A DPHS Bi-annual 
Q1: invoices, quarter 2: completion 

certificate and invoices and Quarter 3: 

Invoices and completion certificate

70123001151

REFURBISHMENT OF 

SURYAVILLE & FAIRLEIGH 

FLAT 

R578 550,00

TLSDBIP-BS034

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

Facilitate the provision of affordable 

housing opportunities 

To establish a sustainable human 

settlement
PURCHASE OF LAND KPI not revised Output Reports Registration Initiated

Purchase of 16, 3885 hectors 

of land for North downs farm 

16,3885 Hectors of land for 

Nothdowns farm purchased. 
TARGET MET Initiation of registration Registration initiated TARGET MET DPHS Bi-annual 

Q1 Invoice from BDM attorney,                                         

Q2 MBD7/ Appointment letter                          

Q3 N/A                                            Q4 

N/A

70161115421 PURCHASE OF LAND R500 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS035

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate basics services in 

Newcastle Municipality.    

Provide development projects 

through provision of new 

infrastructure and existing 

infrastructure upgrades

New KPI 

Completion of upgrades of the 

HRD building for the Unisa 

Building 

Process Reports New KPI

Appointment of the contractor 

to undertake repairs for the 

Unisa Building and contractor 

to Complete internal work. 

Appointment of the contractor to 

undertake repairs for the Unisa 

Building and contractor to 

Complete internal work was no 

completed  

The lease agreement for Unisa was not signed and 

work could not be finalised timeously. 

Newcastle Municipality will follow up with 

UNISA for the signing of the lease 

agreement 

TARGET NOT MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a DPHS N/A N/A 70161125421
UPGRADE OF HRD 

BUILDING: UNISA CENTRE      
R38 000 000,00

TARGET NOT 

MET

8,46 km 5,808km 

Due to the National Lockdown 

the construction of roads was 

stopped. MF55 poor 

performance by the contractor. 

OA85(B) delay in payment of 

the service provider by the 

municipality. OA103 Poor 

performance by the contractor. 

All MIG Funded roads be 

rolled over for completion in 

the 2020/21 financial year. 

TARGET NOT 

MET 

REVISED ANNUAL 

STANDARD/ ACCUMULATIVE 

/ AVERAGE TARGET ( 1 JULY 

2020 - 30 JUNE 2021)

RECOMMENDED CORRECTIVE ACTION 

ANNUAL 

DASHBOARD 

ASSESSMENT 

RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT

FREQUENCY OF 

REPORTING 

REVISED ANNUAL 

STANDARD/ ACCUMALATIVE / 

AVERAGE TARGET ( 1 LULY 

2019- 30 JUNE 2020)

ANNUAL ACTUAL  STANDARD/ 

ACCUMALATIVE / AVERAGE 

TARGET ( 1 LULY 2019- 30 

JUNE 2020)

REASON FOR VARIANCE
RECOMMENDED 

CORRECTIVE ACTION
DASHBOARD

BS5.1.1.

REVISED 2020/2021 BUDGET INFORMATION 
KPI TYPE (INPUT, 

OUTPUT, 

OUTCOME, 

PROCESS)

UNIT OF 

MEASURE
REASON FOR VARIANCE 

 ANNUAL ACTUAL STANDARD/ 

ACCUMULATIVE / AVERAGE 

TARGET ( 1 JULY 2020 - 30 

JUNE 2021)

PRIMARY SOURCE OF EVIDENCE

TARGET NOT MET

TARGET MET 

Money to be rolled over and 

ensure that the planned roads 

that were suppose to be 

resealed are completed in 

2020/21

10 KM 6,908km 

Some orders were cancelled as 

a result of the National 

Lockdown. The construction 

sector was closed from the 

26/03/2020 and only reopened 

on the 01/06/2020. 

BASELINE 
TLSDBIP REF 

NUMBER 
OUTCOME 9 NATIONAL KPA

BACK TO BASICS 

PILLAR
IDP PRIORITY GOAL/OBJECTIVES STRATEGIES

KPI No. LINKED 

TO IDP

APPROVED KEY 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

REVISED KEY PERFORMANCE 

INDICATOR

Refurbishment and maintenance of 

roads, storm water infrastructure, 

traffic calming devices  and 

provision of pedestrian walkways. 

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved quality of 

roads and storm water 

infrastructure (including 

sidewalks)

To ensure the provision and 

maintenance of safe roads and 

effective storm water infrastructure.

     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved quality of 

roads and storm water 

infrastructure (including 

sidewalks)

Upgrade of gravel roads to tarred 

roads with storm water infrastructure 

and street furniture 

Implementation of the Capital 

Program (MIG+INTERNAL 

FUNDING)



TLSDBIP-BS036

     Output 3: 

Implementation of 

the Community Work 

Programme.

MUNICIPAL 

INSTITUTIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT AND 

TRANSFORMATION

     Putting people 

first;

Improved access to 

public facil ities 

(including educational 

facil ities -provincial 

mandate)

Facilitate the provision of a national 

data base that is transparent, and fair 

To Establish a walk in office for the 

community to register their names 

on a data base; that is transparent 

and information is available for all

Purchase of Furniture and 

Equipment (purchase 

computers)

KPI not revised Output Reports

Orders processed and 

quotations requested for 

the desks, visitors chairs, 

fridge and high back 

chairs. Laptops were 

purchased

Purchase 8 desktops for the 

Department of Human 

Settlements 

8 desktops for the Department of 

Human Settlements purchased 
TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a DPHS Bi-annual 

Q1Bid advertisement                                              

Q2 MD7 , Appointment letter , requisition 

and invoices                                                                  

Q3 N/A                                                                            

Q4 N/A

70209011251
Purchase of Furniture and 

Equipment   
R1 120 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS037

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

The purchase of equipment will assist 

in the establishment and 

strengthening role  of the beneficiary 

administration with the unit

To establish a walk in office for the 

community to register their names 

on a data base; that is transparent 

and information is available for all.  

Also where all queries to 

application forms can be addressed

Purchase of Furniture and 

Equipment (purchase laptop)
KPI not revised Output Reports

Orders processed and 

quotations requested for 

the desks, visitors chairs, 

fridge and high back 

chairs. Laptops were 

purchased

Purchase of 1 x laptop Purchase of 1 x laptop TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a DPHS Bi-annual 

Q1 Specification, quotation and 

requisition.                                                             

Q2 invoices,                                                               

Q3 N/A                                                                       

Q4 N/A

70261011251
Purchase of Furniture and 

Equipment 
R23 033,00

TLSDBIP-BS038

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To create a safe and healthy 

environment  

To provide a refuse removal service 

to the Newcastle Community 
Purchase of Recycling Bins KPI not revised Output Reports

Draft Tender Document 

Compiled

Purchase of 10  Recycling 

Bins
10 Recycle bins purchased TARGET MET Purchase of Recycling Bins Recycle bins not purchased 

Draft Tender Document 

Compiled and Bid 

Specification Assessment 

Report. Delays with SCM 

processes due to National 

Lockdown 

Expatiate SCM  Processes, Bid 

to be  advertised.  Project to  

be  rolled over. 

TARGET NOT 

MET

Community 

Services 
Quarterly 

Q1 - Specifications, proof of submission 

to SCM, advert notice, bid adjudication 

report, appointment letter and an order                                                     

Q2 - Delivery note                                                 

Q3 - Delivery note and an Invoice

70232000921 Purchase of Recycling Bins  R138 133,00

TLSDBIP-BS039

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To reduce water loss
To reduce the percentage of water 

losses. (Non- revenue water loss)
Soul-City Long Connection KPI not revised Process Reports New KPI 

2km of pipeline for Soul City 

completed , 2 Valves 

Chambers and 2 Fire Hydrants

2,6km Pipeline for Soul City 

completed, 2 Valves Chambers 

and 4 Fire Hydrants were 

installed 

Additional Km's of pipeline was identified for 

completion and a variation order was submitted 

and approved. 

The department to ensure that in future all 

final design reports are aligned to the 

actual work that has to be completed on the 

ground. 

TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Bi-annual 

Quarter 3 - Progress Report and/  

invoice/s                                                           

Quarter 4 - Progress report, an invoice/s 

and a completion certificate  

70244100651 Soul City Long Connection      R3 000 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS040

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved quality of 

roads and storm water 

infrastructure (including 

sidewalks)

To ensure the provision and 

maintenance of safe roads and 

effective storm water infrastructure.

Refurbishment and maintenance of 

roads, storm water infrastructure, 

traffic calming devices  and 

provision of pedestrian walkways. 

Stormwater Management                    

(NN, MAD and Osiz) 
KPI not revised Output Report New KPI 

500 tons of crusher, 120*617 

sheets, 700*600mm diameter 

pipes, 800 tons*G2 material 

and 600 m of stormwater 

channel procured

500 tons of crusher, 120*617 

sheets, 700*600mm diameter 

pipes, 800 tons*G2 material not 

procured and 600 m of 

stormwater channel not procured

Department did not timeously procure the material 

as per the project implementation plan. 

The balance of funds to be rolled over to 

the next financial year. 
TARGET NOT MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Bi-annual 

Quarter 3 - Bid Notice, BEC, BAC 

minutes and an Appointment Letter                             

Quarter 4 - Invoice/s and delivery note/s

70174011821
Stormwater Management 

(NN, MAD and OSIZ)     
R1 453 398,00

TLSDBIP-BS041

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure basic service delivery 

To provide the municipality with an 

effective and efficient Project 

Management Unit that 

Purchase of Furniture and 

Equipment 
KPI not revised Output Report New KPI 

Purchase of 1 x survey 

equipment, 1 x cell phone, 10 

x chairs and 2 x measuring 

wheels for the PMU office

Purchase of 1 x survey 

equipment, 1 x cell phone, 10 x 

chairs and 2 x measuring wheels 

for the PMU office completed 

TARGET MET 

Purchase of 3 laptops and 1 

desktop Purchasing of 2 desks, 

purchasing of 20 visitors chairs, 

purchase of 1 fridge and 

purchase of 9 high back chairs

The following were not 

purchased: 3 desktops, 1 

desktop Purchasing of 2 desks, 

purchasing of 20 visitors chairs, 

purchase of 1 fridge and 

purchase of 9 high back chairs

Orders processed and 

quotations requested for the 

desks, visitors chairs, fridge and 

high back chairs. Laptops were 

purchased. Due to the National 

Covid Pandemic there was a 

delay in scm processes. 

To ensure that the remaining 

funds are rolled over and the 

balance of the items are 

purchased

N/A Technical Services Bi-annual 
Quarter3 and Quarter4 - Quotations, 

order/s, delivery note/s and invoice/s        
70245015021 Furniture Equipment R513 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS042

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Increase number of households with 

access to basic potable (drinkable) 

water.

Newcastle West Management 

Construction of 3km of pipeline 

and 15 standpipes in ward 12 and 

P46

Output Report New KPI 

Appointment of service 

provider and construction of 

3km pipeline, 15 standpipes in 

ward 12 and p46

Service provider appointed for 

and construction of 8,3km of 

pipeline, 16 standpipes 

constructed in ward 12 and P46 

completed.  

The budget increased after the mid-year 

adjustment and the scope of work was increased. 

Department to ensure that all targets are 

revised according to the budget changes. 
TARGET MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Bi-annual 

Quarter 3 - Appointment letter                                              

Quarter 4 - Monthly Progress report,  

invoice/s and a completion certificate 

70712100551
 Newcastle West 

Management  
R10 800 000,00

TLSDBIP-BS043

     Output 2: 

Improving access to 

basic services.

Basic Service Delivery 
     Delivering basic 

services;

Improved access to 

basic service delivery 

(i.e. Water, sanitation, 

electricity, housing, 

waste removal)

To ensure the provision of 

appropriate sanitation and potable 

water to all households in Newcastle 

Municipality.    

Increase number of households with 

access to basic potable (drinkable) 

water.

Construction of Ablution 

Facilities 
KPI not revised Output Report New KPI 

Contractor appointed for the 

construction of ablution 

facil ities , site establishment, 

site handover and site 

establishment and excavation 

for foundations 

Contractor was not appointed for 

the construction of ablution 

facil ities.  Site establishment, 

site handover and site 

establishment  was not 

completed. Excavation for 

foundations not completed

The department did not have a process plan for the 

implementation of this KPI, Specifications were not 

finalised timeously and submitted to BTO therefore 

only the provisional appointment was completed

Final appointment letter to be issued within 

14 days provided there are no objections. 

Then site establishment and excavations 

for foundation to commence 

TARGET NOT MET n.a n.a n.a n.a n.a Technical Services Bi-annual 

Quarter 3 - BSC minutes and an advert                                                   

Quarter 4 - BEC and BAC minutes, 

Appointment Letter, Monthly Progress 

report and / invoices/s 

70253205121 Ablution Facilities R1 500 000,00
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

 

The 2020/2021 Annual Performance Report represents the year-end performance results for the 

financial year under review. The Annual Performance Report is compiled by the Monitoring and 

Evaluation Unit after reviewing all Key Performance Indicators on the Top-Layer Service Delivery 

Budget Implementation Plan (TLSDBIP). The TLSDBIP comprises of the six National Key 

Performance Area’s (NKPA’s), these are: Basic Services, Cross Cutting, Good Governance, 

Financial Viability, Local Economic Development and Institutional Development. All NKPA’s 

contain Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) and each KPI has a target that is measurable, specific, 

attainable, reliable and time-bound. All Capital Projects have been linked to a KPI on the TLSDBIP. 

The TLSDBIP has been attached per each KPA as Annexures A - F. The Annual Performance 

Report is a summary of the performance achieved and not achieved for the municipality and 

provides a comparative of the performance information to prior years.  

The Graph below represents a summary of the overall performance for 2020/2021 on the Top-

Layer Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan: 

 

 

Figure 3 OVERAL ORGANISATION PERFORMANCE OF THE TLSDBIP FOR 2020/2021 

The chart above demonstrates the overall organisational performance for the 2020/2021 financial 

year, based on the information above only 73 % of targets were achieved and 27 % of targets that 
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were set were not achieved. The Municipality has improved the overall performance of the 

municipality by 34%.  

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROCESS  

 

The M & E Unit from the 1st working day till the 10th working day of every quarter conducts a 100% 

review of the performance information as submitted from departments in terms of relevance, 

sufficiency, accuracy and reliability. The TLSDBIP is reviewed against the approved targets and 

KPI’s. The capital projects are monitored and evaluated every month from the 1st working day of 

the month to the 5th working day of the month by evaluating the actual financial and non-financial 

performance based on the approved cash-flow projections per month and the Project 

Implementation Plans (PIP’s). The M & E Unit uses a Performance Management Checklist 

(Annexure C) to review the performance information submitted by departments. The Performance 

Management (PMS) Checklist is based on Relevance, Sufficiency and Accuracy of the portfolio of 

evidence submitted to the M & E unit by departments. If a target as specified in the Top-layer 

SDBIP has not been achieved, a reason for variance with supporting evidence must be submitted 

together with a recommended corrective action that must be implemented in the next quarter. The 

PMS Checklist has prompting questions based on relevance, sufficiency and accuracy, with a drop-

down list with specific answers to ensure that each M & E official reviews the performance 

information systematically. The purpose of the PMS Checklist is to ensure that actuals are fully 

supported by the evidence submitted.   

The following table provides a description on the criteria that is used to assess performance 

information 

Table 1 CRITERIOR TO ASSESS PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 

Relevance  Closely connected or appropriate to what is being measured/ 

assessed 

 

Sufficiency  Enough or adequate evidence to support the actual  

 

Reliable  Evidence that is good in quality, credible and trustworthy.  

 

 

The performance dashboard is used to score departments based on the actuals reported and the 

portfolio of evidence submitted to the M & E unit. Departments are required to submit sufficient 



 

evidence to support the actual performance reported and if a reason for variance is reported, 

supporting evidence must be submitted.  

The following table, based on the legislative framework for performance management and the PMS 

Framework provides a summary of the various performance reporting deadlines which apply to the 

Municipality:  

Table 2 PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

Report 

Frequency 

Submitted for 

consideration 

and/or review to 

Remarks 

Report 

Frequency 

Submitted for 

consideration 

and/or review 

to Remarks 

Report Frequency 

Submitted for 

consideration 

and/or review to 

Remarks 

Report Frequency 

Submitted for consideration 

and/or review to Remarks 

1. SDBIP’s  Quarterly Executive 

Committee 

See MFMA Circular 13 of 

National Treasury for further 

information 

2. Monthly 

budget 

statements 

Monthly Mayor (in 

consultation with 

The Executive 

Committee) 

See sections 71 and 54 of the 

MFMA 

3.Implementation 

of the budget and 

financial state of 

affairs of the 

Municipality 

Quarterly Council See section 52 of the MFMA 

4. SDBIP mid-

year budget and 

performance 

assessment 

Annually during 

January of each 

year 

Mayor (in 

consultation with 

The Executive 

Committee) 

See sections 72 and 54 of the 

MFMA 

5. Performance 

report 

Annually Council See section 46 of the 

Municipal Systems Act as 

amended. Said report to form 

part of the annual report  

 

The M & E Unit submits quarterly reports to the Chief Audit Executive of the Internal Audit Unit 

every quarter on the 15th working day of month after the quarter under review is completed. The 



 

quarterly report that is submitted to the Internal Audit is a 100% reviewed report of the TLSDBIP 

and the capital status report by the M & E Unit. The reports submitted to Internal Audit include a 

signed off hard copy of all the Excel reports for the TLSDBIP and the departmental capital status 

reports. The signed off hardcopy will be signed off by the relevant M & E Unit Officers, M & E 

Manager and the SED: DPHS.  After the Internal Audit reviews the PMS Report the draft Internal 

Audit report is circulated to the PMS unit to respond and address findings that are only relevant to 

the PMS unit. The PMS unit will take 2 days to respond to the findings raised and adjust the PMS 

reports were applicable based on the findings raised by the Internal Audit unit 

PERFORMANCE AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION  

 

Section 46 of The Local Government Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 requires municipalities to 

publish an annual performance report reflecting the performance of the Municipality and of each 

external service provider; a comparison of the performances with targets; and measures taken to 

improve performance.  

 

BACKGROUND TO THE TOP-LAYER SERVICE DELIVERY BUDGET 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  

 

The Top Layer Service Delivery Plan (SDBIP) has been adapted by Newcastle Municipality as the 

preferred performance management tool for measuring performance on key developmental areas 

that are relevant to municipal service delivery and the public sector. There are five KPA’s that 

municipalities are required to align their strategic planning on and these cut across every functional 

area of a municipality. The municipal Top-layer SDBIP measures a municipality’s performance 

through these five perspective as listed below.  : 

• The Municipal Economic Development Perspective 

• The Service Delivery Perspective 

• The Institutional Development Perspective 

• The Financial Management Perspective, and 

• Governance Process Perspective 

With recent developments through the adoption by the national cabinet of the 5-Year Local 

Government Strategic Agenda, that aligns local government with the national program of action, it 



 

became imperative to review the above municipal Top-layer SDBIP model and to align it with the 

5 Key Performance Areas (KPA’s) for local government.  

The Newcastle Municipality, having adopted the Top Layer SDBIP as the Performance 

management tool, will align this framework to the Top Layer SDBIP and its performance will be 

grouped accordingly.  Furthermore, legislation required that the PMS also align to the IDP.  The 

Newcastle Municipality IDP adopted 1 additional KPA’s/ perspectives as follows: 

• Cross-cutting (Special Programs, Municipal Planning, Community services etc.) 

The perspectives that inform Newcastle Municipality’s Top-Layer SDBIP are: 

• The Local Economic Development Perspective 

• The Basic Service Delivery Perspective 

• The Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development Perspective 

• The Financial Viability Perspective,  

• Good Governance Perspective and  

• Cross Cutting Perspective 

• The Cross Cutting In this perspective the municipality will assess whether the desired 

development indicators around the performance area of municipal planning, disaster 

management and social development is achieved. 

• The Basic Service Delivery Perspective This perspective will assess the municipality’s 

performance in the overall delivery of basic and infrastructural services and products.  

• The Financial Management Perspective This perspective will measure the municipality’s 

performance with respect to the management of its finances. 

• The Institutional Development Perspective This perspective relates to input indicators 

that measure the functioning of the municipality under areas such as human resources and 

all other indicators that seek to develop and manage the municipal institution. 

• The Governance Process Perspective This perspective will measure the municipality’s 

performance in relation to its engagement with its stakeholders in the process of 

governance, established and functioning governance structures, and good municipal 

governance processes, strategic planning and implementation and performance 

management.  



 

• Local Economic Development This perspective will measure Newcastle Municipality’s 

performance in developing the local economy, by ensuring that there is job creation, foreign 

investment opportunities within Newcastle, business retention, development of SMME’s, 

marketing and tourism development in Newcastle.  

Newcastle Municipality has linked each KPI on the TLSDBIP to the IDP Objectives and Strategies 

and each Capital Project is linked to a specific KPI on the TLSDBIP. 

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS  

A performance dashboard is used to score departments based on the actuals reported and the 

portfolio of evidence submitted to the PMS unit. Departments are required to submit sufficient 

evidence to support the actual performance reported and if a reason for variance is reported, 

supporting evidence must be submitted. The diagram below is an illustration of how the M & E unit 

scores departments: 

Table 3 PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 

LEVEL TERMINOLOGY DESCRIPTION RATING DASHBOARD 

4 Target Over 

Achieved  

 

A KPI is scored as a Target Over 
Achieved, if the actual reported exceeds 
target and the evidence submitted to 
support the actual is relevant, sufficient 
and reliable. The actual reported must 
be: 

• Plausible 

• Factual  

• Results driven  

4 

3 Target met  

 

A KPI is scored as target met, if the 

target has been achieved and the 

evidence submitted supports the actual 

report and the evidence is relevant, 

sufficient and reliable.  

3 

1 Target not met and 

not supported  

A KPI is scored as a target not met and 

not supported when the specified target 

has not been achieved or the 

department has not submitted 

sufficient, reliable or relevant 

evidence to support the actual or the 

1 



 

LEVEL TERMINOLOGY DESCRIPTION RATING DASHBOARD 

reason for variance for why the target 

was not achieved. A KPI is also scored 

as a target not met and not supported if 

there is non-submission of:  

• a reason for variance for a target 

not achieved, or  

• if there is non-submission of an 

actual or  

• non-submission of evidence or  

• non-submission of a reason for 

variance or  

• non-submission of a  

recommended corrective action 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS OF THE TLSDBIP FOR 2020/2021 PER KPA  

 

Figure 4 ANALYSIS OF THE TLSDBIP 2020/2021 
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PERFORMANCE PER KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 

 

Table 4 PERFORMANCE OF THE TLSDBIP FOR 2020/2021 

KEY PERFORMANCE 

AREA 

TARGET 

MET 

TARGET 

NOT MET 

TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 

APPLICABLE 

KPI’S 

 

PERCENTAGE  

Basic Services  

 

25 17 42 60% 

Cross Cutting  

 

25 5 30 

 

 

85% 

Financial Viability  

 

9 8 17 53% 

 

 

Good Governance  

 

18 0 18 100% 

Institutional 

Transformation & 

Development  

8 2 10 80% 

Local Economic 

Development  

2 

 

1 3 67% 

Total  87 

 

33 120 73% 

 

Figure 4 and table indicates that the Basic Service National Performance Area has achieved 60% 

of all the planned targets. The total number of new households built for the 2020/2021 financial 

year was 214. 958 VIP toilets were installed in various parts of Newcastle East. Newcastle 

Municipality has resealed a total of 3,6km’s.  

Figure 4 and table 4 illustrates that only 85% of planned the targets for the Cross Cutting NKPA 

were achieved. The Municipality has finalised and submitted the Environmental Impact 

Assessment (EIA) for establishment of the Cemetery site.  



 

Based on figure 4 and Table 4, 100% of the KPI’s related to Good Governance were achieved. 

The municipality has an approved Delegations Policy, established an ICT Committee, addressed 

all SCM objections within 60 days, and ensured that all governance reports for Risk Management 

and Performance Management were approved within the statutory reporting time frames.  

The performance of the Financial Viability KPA is not yet were the municipality intends however 

there has been a significant improvement in performance. The Budget and Treasury Office has a 

financial recovery plan that is implemented. The municipality has also appointed a debt collector 

which will improve the payment factor in the 2021/2022 financial year.  

Local Economic Development achieved 66,6% of the planned targets. There has been a decrease 

in the achievement of planned targets for the 2020/2021 financial year in comparison to the 

2019/2020 financial year.  

There has been considerate improvement in performance for the Institutional Transformation and 

Development Key Performance Area. 80% of the planned targets were achieved during the 

2020/2021 financial year.  

 

 

DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE ON THE TLSDBIP FOR 2020/2021  

Table 5 DEPARTMENTAL ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ON THE TLSDBIP 2020/2021 

DEPARTMENT TARGET MET TARGET 

NOT MET 

TOTAL NUMBER 

OF APPLICABLE 

KPIS 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER 

15 0 15 

BUDGET AND TREASURY OFFICE 

 

9 

 

8 17 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

24 6 30 

CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

8 2 18 

DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AND 

HUMAN SETTLEMENTS 

 

15 3 1 



 

TECHNICAL SERVICES 16 13 29 

TOTAL 87 33 120 

 

 

Figure 5 ANNUAL DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

 

PERFORMANCE ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2020/2021 

 

• The municipality has constructed 214 new households with access to water, sanitation and 

refuse removal.  

• As a caring municipality we’ve given 8287 indigent households free basic water, electricity, 

sanitation and refuse removal. This is yet another clear indication that this municipality 

understands the daily struggles faced by many of our residents, in particular the 

unemployed and previously disadvantaged.  

• 26 residential sites have been advertised for sale.  

• 702 EPWP jobs were created to tackle the high number of unemployment within this 

municipality.  

• The municipality has done training for 60 SMMEs.  

• 111 title deeds have been transferred though the EEDBS program. A majority of these 

beneficiaries are first time home owners.  

• 3,42 km’s of roads have been resealed within the jurisdiction of Newcastle Municipality.  

• 1 km of road was light graded / gravelled at Mndozo Clinic  
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• 100% implementation of the water and electricity maintenance plan was implemented with 

the intention of maintaining the existing infrastructure.  

• The municipality purchased 10 recycle bins  

• Constructed 70 speedhumps  

• Upgrade of 0,78km of road upgraded from gravel to blacktop for MF55 

• Upgrade of 0,801km of road upgraded from gravel to blacktop for MD35  

• Completed 0,75 Km's of the sub-base layer for MF18 & MF19 

• Completed 0,714 Km's of the sub-base layer for MF69, 7,10 

• Completed 0,375 Km's of the sub-base layer for MC13 

• Completed 0,52 Km's of the sub-base layer for OA27 

• Purchased 16,3885 Hectors of land for development 

• Constructed 2,6km of water pipeline for Soul  

• Installed 6 standpipes in ward 12 and P46 completed.   

• Processed 100% of all plans received by the municipality within the statutory timeframes  

 

CHALLENGES  

• The construction of new top-structures has been delayed due to social unrest at the H39 

Housing Project and theft of building materials at the Charlestown Housing Project  

• The rural electrification project has been delayed due to the number of defects identified on 

site, the contractor is currently rectifying the defects.  

• The lease agreement and upgrades for Unisa was not finalised, due to Unisa changing the 

scope of work  

• Water loss remains high due to ageing infrastructure and insufficient funding 

• Vacant positions not yet filled 

• Low payment factor  

• The EPWP budget was reduced for the 2020/2021 financial year.  

MEASURES TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE IN 2020/21  

• Implementation of Consequence Management  

• Monitoring of recommended corrective actions as specified in Annexures A1-F1 

• An Annual Recovery Action Plan be developed and monitored during the 2021/2022 
financial year  

• Filling of all critical vacant positions  

 



 

 

 

Figure 6 COMPARISION OF PERFORMANCE FOR THE LAST 3 FINANCIAL YEARS  
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The graph above illustrates that performance in Basic Services has improved since the 2018/19 

and 2019/2020 financial years. The municipality has prioritised service delivery and access to basic 

services. In the last two financial years the municipality failed to implement 50% of planned targets 

however as at the end of June 2021 the municipality achieved 60% of all planned targets. 

Unfortunately, the municipality did not complete the energizing phase of the rural electrification 

program for the 2020/2021 financial year due to there being specific defects on site. The 2020/2021 

rural electrification program has been prioritised for completion by September 2021.  

The Municipality has declined in performance for Cross Cutting Issues that were executed by the 

Community Services Department. The department of Community Services failed to submit proper 

specifications and implement project implementation plans for the procurement of goods that would 

have improved service delivery for Newcastle. However, it must be noted that the municipality 

managed to achieve all targets related to development planning.  

Financial Viability’s performance deteriorated even further than the performance achieved in 

2018/19, the payment factor has been reduced due to the National Disaster of the Covid Pandemic, 

the municipality has spent less of the capital budget than 2018/19, also as a result of the National 

Disaster of the Covid Pandemic, the Department of Budget and Treasury has also failed to report 

on the Revenue Enhancement Strategy and implementation of the Procurement Plan due non-

commitment from other departments.  

Good Governance Reporting has also regressed, the Legal Unit has had many resignations and 

no posts have been advertised, the turnaround time for the legal section has been compromised 

due to staff shortages. The ICT Steering Committee did not sit to address any issues however only 

the ICT Working Committee had convened meetings. The Risk reports were not presented to 

MANCO in quarter 1 and Quarter 2-3 the Risk Reports were submitted to Audit Committee and 

discussed in committee and referred back to the Risk Unit.  

Local Economic Development has remained stable since 2018/19 to 2020/2021, EPWP has 

created 1070 temporary jobs, trained 50 more SMME’s, established a Business Licensing and 

Business Permits unit to ensure that businesses within the jurisdiction of Newcastle comply with 

Legal requirements of the Business Licensing Act.  

There has been a minimal improvement in Institutional Transformation, many targets under this 

NKA were not met due to the non-sitting of LLF meetings, the municipality attempted to establish 

Safety Committees and has this far been unsuccessful, therefore the department for the 2020/2021 

financial year reported on all Injury on Duty Incidents. The Work Skills Plan budget was not fully 

spent due to the National Disaster of the Corona Virus.  



 

 

Table 7 COMPARISION OF THE PAST YEAR PERFORMANCE TO 2020/2021 PERFORMANCE 

 

 

  

TARGET MET 

 

TARGET NOT MET 

TOTAL NUMBER OF APPLICABLE 

KPI’S 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

BASIC SERVICES  

 

3 11 25 11 10 17 14 21 42 

CROSS CUTTING  

 

7 9 25 4 20 5 11 29 30 

FINANCIAL 

VIABILITY 

 

8 2 9 7 13 8 15 15 17 

GOOD 

GOVERNANCE 

 

11 7 18 12 7 0 23 14 18 

INSTITUTIONAL 

TRANSFORMATION 

 

1 2 8 10 4 2 11 6 10 

LED  

 

1 3 2 3 0 1 4 3 3 

TOTAL  31 34 87 47 54 33 78 88 120 



 

DETAILED COMPARISION BETWEEN THE PERFORMANCE ACHIEVED FOR THE LAST 3 FINANCIAL YEARS (2018/19 – 

2020/21) 

Table 8 COMPARISON BETWEEN 2018/19 TO 2020/2021 SERVICE DELIVERY 

 

Performance Achievement 

 

2020/2021 

 

2019'2020 

 

2018'1920 

 Number of houses built 214 376 133 

Number of new households with access to water  214 376 133 

Number of houses transferred through the enhanced Extended 

Discount Benefit 

111 

189 243 

Number of households with Indigent Support 8287 8952 7484 

Number of Properties release for sale to the public. 26 28 22 

Number of households electrified  0 0 835 

KM's of road re gravelled  1km 8,644km’s  8,8km's 

KM's of road resealed  3,42km  6,908km   14 306km's  

Number of new households connected to sanitation  1172 1496 973 

Number of new households connected to a minimum level of 

water. 

214 

376 120 

Number of SMME's 60 74 86 

The Number of jobs created through municipality's local 

economic development initiatives including capital projects 

 

 

 

702 1 070 1 509 

. 

 



 

 

ASSESSMENT OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDER  

In terms of Section 46 of The Local Government Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000, a 

municipality must prepare for each financial year a performance report reflecting-  

(a)  The performance of the municipality and of each external service provider during       

that financial year.  

Currently UThukela Water (Pty) Ltd is the only External Service Provider of the Newcastle 

Municipality, for which bulk water services is being rendered. UThukela Water (Pty) Ltd is an 

Entity of Newcastle Municipality. Unfortunately UThukela Water did not meet any of planned 

targets set in the 2020/2021 SDBIP. The main reason for not achieving the targets is that the 

information submitted from UThukela Water that some KPI’s were linked to addressing the 

resolutions from meetings such as board meetings, maintenance etc. Uthukela Water also did 

not implement maintenance resolutions as per the meetings convened.  The following chart 

represents the Draft Assessment of UThukela Water’s SDBIP for 2020/2021:  
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UTHUKELA WATER  

TARGET NOT MET



 



 

 



TLSDBIP REF 

NUMBER
OUTCOME 9 NATIONAL KPA

BACK TO BASICS 

PILLAR
IDP PRIORITY GOAL / OBJECTIVE STRATEGY 

KPI No. LINKED 

TO IDP
APPROVED KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

REVISED KEY PERFORMANCE 

INDICATOR 

KPI TYPE (INPUT, 

OUTPUT, 

OUTCOME, 

PROCESS)

UNIT OF 

MEASURE
BASELINE 

REVISED ANNUAL STANDARD 

ACCUMULATIVE/AVERAGE 

TARGET(1 JULY 2019-30 JUNE 

2021)

ANNUAL ACTUAL STANDARD/ 

ACCUMALATIVE / AVERAGE TARGET (1 

JULY 2020 - 30 JUNE 2021)

REASON FOR VARIANCE 
RECOMMENDED CORRECTIVE 

ACTION 
ANNUAL DASHBOARD 

REVISED ANNUAL STANDARD/ 

ACCUMALATIVE / AVERAGE 

TARGET ( 1 JULY 2019- 30 JUNE 

2020)

ACTUAL ANNUAL STANDARD/ 

ACCUMALATIVE / AVERAGE 

TARGET ( 1 JULY 2019- 30 JUNE 

2020)

REASON FOR VARIANCE 
RECOMMENDED CORRECTIVE 

ACTION 
ANNUAL DASHBOARD

FREQUENCY OF 

REPORTING 
PRIMARY SOURCE OF EVIDENCE

YEAR TO DATE ACTUAL AS AT END OF 

JUNE 2021

TLSDBIP-CC001

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved access to land 

(including Land Reform)

To develop an efficient 

and effective land use 

management system so 

as to promote a rational 

and harmonious land use 

activity system.

To undertake efficient and 

effective building controls.
CC1.1.1

100% compliance in respect of statutory time frames for 

processing of building plans
KPI not revised Output Percentage (%)

100% compliance in respect of 

statutory time frames for 

processing of building plans

100% compliance in respect of 

statutory time frames for processing 

of building plans

100% compliance in respect of statutory 

time frames for processing of building plans
TARGET MET

100% compliance in respect of 

statutory time frames for processing 

of building plans

100% compliance in respect of 

statutory time frames for processing 

of building plans

TARGET MET Quarterly

Quarter 1- 4: Planning registers or 

checklist (Formula to be used) and 

subsequent approvals by 

SED:DP&HS

Vote No:10161010105 Salaries R 9 728 126 R 10 222 039,41

TLSDBIP-CC002

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved access to land 

(including Land Reform)

To ensure an effective 

and integrated 

Geographic Information 

Management System.

GIS System integration 

with other municipal 

systems.

CC2.1.1
To interphase the GIS with the Billing information and submit 

the same to Finance Department
KPI not revised Output Reports New KPI

Final report and recommendations 

on properies that are outlined on 

TABS report as properties that do 

not intergrate between the 

Valuation, GIS Office and Billing 

system

Final report copiled with recommendations 

on properies that are outlined on TABS 

report as properties that do not intergrate 

between the Valuation, GIS Office and 

Billing system

TARGET MET
48 Analysis maps for indigents and 

4 report

48 Analysis maps for indigents and 

4 reports
TARGET MET Quarterly

Q1: Process Plan; Q2:Progress 

Report; Q3 Progress Report;  Q4 

Close out Report

Vote No:10161010105 Salaries R 9 728 126 R 10 222 039,41

TLSDBIP-CC003

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved access to land 

(including Land Reform)

To promote spatial 

restructuring and 

integration

Development of municipal 

SDF in line with the 4th 

Generation of IDP

CC3.1.1 Approved  Spatial Development Framework  by 31 May 2021 Output Framework 

Approved  Spatial 

Development Framework  by 

31 May 2020

Approved  Spatial Development 

Framework  by 31 May 2021

Council approved the Spatial Development 

Plan on he 31 May 2021 
TARGET MET

Approved  Spatial Development 

Framework  by 31 May 2020

Approved SDF by council by the 29 

June 2020
TARGET MET Quarterly

Q1 Minutes of  Department meeting 

with Director TP and Staff , minutes 

of meetings with inter-departments 

or relevant stakeholders  Q2 

Amended Draft SDF Q3Minutes of 

Council Meeting Q4 Minutes of the 

Council and Final SDF

Vote No:10161010105 Salaries R 9 728 126 R 10 222 039,41

TLSDBIP-CC004

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved access to land 

(including Land Reform)

To promote sustainable 

development and sound  

environmental planning

Identification of suitable 

land for cemeteries and 

relevant Geotech studies

CC4.1.1 
To finalise and submit the EIA Report for cemetery approval to 

Environmnetal Affairs
KPI not revised Process Reports New KPI

To finalise and submit the EIA 

Report to Enviro Affairs

EIA Finalised and submtted to 

Environmental Affairs 
TARGET MET N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Quarterly

Q1 N/A                                                                                 

Q2 Scoping Report                                                

Q3 Progress report on all specialist 

studies completed                                                         

Q4 Submition of the EIA Report to 

Enviro Affairs

Vote No:10161010105 Salaries R 9 728 126 R 10 222 039,41

TLSDBIP-CC005

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure the provision of 

traffic management 

services

Intensify Law 

Enforcement activities 
CC5.1.1 Number of roadblocks conducted Output Number 24 24 28

More roadblocks conducted in the 

first and second quarter as the 

target was not met for quarter 4 of 

the last Financial Year 

The Department will monitor and 

consider reviewing the target
TARGET MET 24 15

Q1 - Department of Transport and 

SAPS did not attend the integrated 

roadblocks.                                              

Q2 - 7 Roadblocks were conducted, 

however on other 4 roadblocks 

Department of Transport, RTI and 

SAPS  did not attend                                                 

Q4 - No roadblocks conducted due 

to the Covid-19 national lockdown. 

Only monitoring of covid-19 

roadblocks were conducted

Department to ensure that the 

targets for roadblocks for 2020/21 

are aligned to the Covid lockdown 

regulations 

TARGET NOT MET Quarterly
Quarter 1-4: Road block statistics 

register
Vote no:  10264010105 Salaries R 17 959 116 R 13 488 412,50

TLSDBIP-CC006

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure provision of fire 

and disaster 

management services

To provide and maintain 

an efficient and effective 

disaster management 

service to Newcastle.

CC6.1.1

Development and adoption of Contingency Plan by Council by 

June 2021 and Submission to the Amajuba District 

Municipality 

Output
Contingency Plans 

and Reports 

Adoption of Disaster Risk 

Management Policy by 

October 2019

Adoption of Contingency Plan by 

Council by June 2021 and 

Submission to Amajuba District 

Municipality 

Contingency Plan adopted by Council in 

June 2021 and contigency plan submitted to 

Amajuba District Municipality 

TARGET MET N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Quarterly

Q1 - Presentation, MANCO minutes 

and Register                                                                                             

Q2 - Community Services Portfolio 

Committee Minutes and 

Contingency Plan                                                                                            

Q3 -  Presentation and Register                                

Q4 Adopted Contingency Plan, 

Council Minutes and Proof of 

Submission to District Municipality 

Vote no: 10266010105    Salaries R 11 501 979 R 11 613 822,19

TLSDBIP-CC007

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure provision of fire 

and disaster 

management services

To provide and maintain 

an efficient and effective 

disaster management 

service to Newcastle.

CC6.1.2 Percentage of Disaster related incidents attended Output Percentage (%) New KPI 100% 100% TARGET MET N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Quarterly
Distribution Forms and Summary of 

Calculation 
Vote no: 10266010242  Emegency Services R 1 300 000 R 911 311,72

TLSDBIP-CC008

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To facilitate the 

responsive role of the 

municipality in OSS 

(National and Provincial 

government, Civil society 

and private sector)

To mainstream 

programmes with the 

National and Provincial 

government; Civil society, 

private sector and OSS 

structures 

CC7.1.1

Number of Local Task Team meetings held to address and 

refer issues relating to Operation Sukuma Sakhe in 

compliance with the Intergovernmental Relations Framework 

Act

Process Number 8 8 8 TARGET MET 8 7

Social gathering were prohibited 

due to Covid19 restrictions in 

Quarter4

Target for 2020/21 to be reviewed 

and aligned to the covid regulations 
TARGET NOT MET Quarterly

Quarter 1-4: Local Task Team 

minutes and attendance registers, 

Registers and number of issues 

received including telephonic issues 

and referred

Vote No: 10105010105 and 10300010819, Salaries and Oparation Sukuma Sakhe R 18 1175 40 + R 145 000 R28 958 042,72

TLSDBIP-CC009

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To facilitate the 

responsive role of the 

municipality in OSS 

(National and Provincial 

government, Civil society 

and private sector)

To mainstream 

programmes with the 

National and Provincial 

government; Civil society, 

private sector and OSS 

structures 

CC8.1.1
Percentage of issues raised at Special Programmes fora   

and addressed by the Special Programmes Unit
Process Percentage (%) 100% 100% 100% TARGET MET 100% 100% TARGET MET Quarterly 

Quarter 1-4:  Minutes and 

attendance register of the Fora 

meetings and Register of issues 

raised and addressed, Telephonic 

register of issues raised

 Vote no: 10105010105  Description: 

Salaries  Budget: R 18 117 540. Vote no: 

10300010810 Vote Description: Childen 

Budget Amount: R 90 000  Vote 

no:1030001081  Description : Senior 

Citizens Budget :R75 000,00.  Vote 

no:10300010812                                

Description : Disability  Budget  :R140 

000,00.  Vote no:10300010813  

Description : Men Budget: R110 000,00 

Vote no:10300010814 Description : 

Woman Budget: R120 000,00  Vote 

no:10300010820 Description : HIV & AIDS 

Budget: R130 000,00 Vote 

no:10300010821 Description : Substance 

Abuse Budget: R85 000,00                           

 Vote no: 10105010105  Description: 

Salaries  Budget: R 18 117 540. Vote no: 

10300010810 Vote Description: Childen 

Budget Amount: R 90 000  Vote 

no:1030001081  Description : Senior 

Citizens Budget :R75 000,00.  Vote 

no:10300010812                                

Description : Disability  Budget  :R140 

000,00.  Vote no:10300010813  

Description : Men Budget: R110 000,00 

Vote no:10300010814 Description : 

Woman Budget: R120 000,00  Vote 

no:10300010820 Description : HIV & AIDS 

Budget: R130 000,00 Vote 

no:10300010821 Description : Substance 

Abuse Budget: R85 000,00                           

 Vote no: 10105010105  Description: 

Salaries  Budget: R 18 117 540. Vote no: 

10300010810 Vote Description: Childen 

Budget Amount: R 90 000  Vote 

no:1030001081  Description : Senior 

Citizens Budget :R75 000,00.  Vote 

no:10300010812                                

Description : Disability  Budget  :R140 

000,00.  Vote no:10300010813  

Description : Men Budget: R110 000,00 

Vote no:10300010814 Description : 

Woman Budget: R120 000,00  Vote 

no:10300010820 Description : HIV & 

AIDS Budget: R130 000,00 Vote 

no:10300010821 Description : Substance 

Abuse Budget: R85 000,00                           

R19 877 538,00, R4560,87 R30 000,00 

R29 800,00 R78 684,75 R0,00 R31 300,00 

R15 800,00 Total R20 069 683,62

TLSDBIP-CC010

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To respond to the needs 

of vulnerable groups 

within Newcastle 

jurisdictional area

Empowerment of target 

groups (Senior citizens, 

Disability, People living 

with HIV/AIDS, Women 

and Men) through human 

rights activities 

CC9.1.1

Number of special programs (Women, men, children, 

disability, senior citizens and substance abuse) psychosocial 

campaigns implemented as per the year plan 

KPI not revised Output Number 8 9 9 TARGET MET 8 6

Social gathering were prohibited 

due to Covid19 restrictions in 

Quarter4

Target for 2020/21 to be reviewed 

and aligned to the covid regulations 
TARGET NOT MET Quarterly 

Quarter 1-4:  Year Planner as 

approved by the Municipal Manager, 

Attendance registers, program, 

photos and Questions and Answer 

forms 

Vote No: 10105010105 SALARIES R 18 117 540 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-CC011

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting 
     Building capable local 

government institutions.

Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

CC10.1.1 Purchase of Artworks KPI not revised Output Reports Purchased Artworks Purchase of  5 x  Artwork 5  x  Artworks purchased TARGET MET Purchase of Art Purchases
No artwork purchased due to the 

lockdown 

Department did not prioritise the 

purchase of artwork 

Roll over request to be submitted to 

DAC during July 2020.
TARGET NOT MET Quarterly 

Q1 - Business plan and proof of 

submission to Department of Arts & 

Culture.                                                                          

Q2 - Proof of Payment from DAC                    

Q3 - Accession Register and 

memorandum to request/email 

communication

Vote no: 70274000321  Art Purchases R 49 700 R 49 700,00

TLSDBIP-CC012

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting 
     Building capable local 

government institutions.

Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

CC10.1.2 Purchase of Air conditioner Unit for Mobile Office KPI not revised Output Reports New KPI
Purchase of 1 x Air conditioner Unit 

for the Mobile Office

1 x Air conditioner Unit purchased  for the 

Mobile Office
TARGET MET N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Quarterly 

Q1 - Business plan and proof of 

submission to Department of Arts & 

Culture.                                                                

Q2 - Proof of Payment from DAC                        

Q3 - Completion certificate / Job 

card and invoices

Vote no: 70274025051   
Purchase of air conditioner at mobile 

office 
R 17 000 R 12 999,00

TLSDBIP-CC013

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting 
     Building capable local 

government institutions.

Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

CC10.1.2 Construction of Administration Building at Fort Amiel KPI not revised Output Reports New KPI

Construction and completion of 

Administration Building at Fort 

Amiel. 

Construction and completion of 

Administrative Building at Fort Amiel not 

finalised 

Project behind schedule.Overall 

progress 51% - Delay in receiving 

quotes from service providers 

Project to be rolled over to 

2021/2022 financial year. Targets to 

be aligned accordingly

TARGET NOT MET N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Quarterly 

Q1 - Business plan and proof of 

submission to DAC                                            

Q2 - Building Plans,  EIA report and 

approved detailed designs.  BSC 

minutes  Q3 - Quotes, delivery note, 

Progress Report                                                           

Q4 - Quotes, delivery note, invoices, 

Progress report, completion 

certificate, Occupation certificate & 

Certificate of compliance for 

electrical and plumbing

Vote no: 701862252021    
Construction of administration building at 

Fort Amiel 
R 300 000 R 238 325,95

TLSDBIP-CC014

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure the provision of 

traffic management 

services

Intensify Law 

Enforcement activities 
Purchasing of Rescue Tools (Jaws of Life) Output Reports

Provisional appointment letter 

issued 

Purchasing of Rescue Tools (Jaws 

of Life) 
 Rescue Tools (Jaws of Life) purchased TARGET MET

Purchasing of Rescue Tools (Jaws 

of Life) for Fire Operations 

Provisional appointment letter 

issued in March 2020. Awaiting for 

the MBD 7 contract to be signed by 

the service provider.

Department did not prioritise the 

project and ensure that follow ups 

were made for the signing of the 

MBD forms.

Project to be rolled over to the next 

financial year. 
TARGET NOT MET Bi-annual 

Quarter 1: MBD7.1 Contract Form 

and  an order/s                                      

Quarter 2: Delivery note and an 

invoice                                                            

Vote no: 70266100721  Rescue Tools R 489 600 R 489 600,00

TLSDBIP-CC015

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Purchase of furniture for JBC Hall Output Reports
Bid notice closing date 

extended 

Purchase of 25 folding tables  for 

JBC Hall
25 folding tables  for JBC Hall purchased  TARGET MET Purchase of Furniture JBC Hall 

Bid has been extended and new 

closing date is the 3rd of July 2020

Delays on SCM processes due to 

National Lockdown 
Project to be rolled over TARGET NOT MET Annual 

Q1 - Advert closing date, Bid 

adjudication report and appointment 

letter. An order, delivery note and 

invoice                                                   

Vote no: 70127034721 Furniture JBC Hall                 R 43 846 R 43 846,25

TLSDBIP-CC016

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Purchase of furniture for Charlestown Hall Output Reports
Bid notice closing date 

extended

Purchase of 4 folding tables for 

Charlestown Hall 

4 folding tables for Charlestown Hall 

purchased
TARGET MET

Purchase of Furniture Charlestown 

Hall 

Bid has been extended and new 

closing date is the 3rd of July 2020

Delays on SCM processes due to 

National Lockdown 
Project to be rolled over TARGET NOT MET Annual 

Q1 - Advert closing date, Bid 

adjudication report and appointment 

letter. An order, delivery note and 

invoice                                                   

Vote no: 70127101621    Furniture Charlestown Hall       R 7 015 R 7 015,40

TLSDBIP-CC017

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Completion of Refurbishment, Extension of Newcastle Library 

and parking area for Newcastle library   
KPI not revised Output Reports

Practical completion certificate 

for Refurbishment and 

Extension of Newcastle 

Library issued  

Completion of Construction for 

Newcastle Library parking Area 

Completion of Construction for Newcastle 

Library parking Area not finalised 

Due to unforeseen rain the 

construction of the project was 

delayed and therefore the project 

has not been completed. 

Project  will be rolled over to 

2021/2022 financial year, and a KPI 

be developed and brought on the 

2021/2022 TLSDBIP for monitoring. 

TARGET NOT MET 
Refurbishment and Extension of 

Newcastle Library 

Final accounts in the amounts of 

R316 486,78 and R59 190,42 

received on 10 June 2020 and 

submitted to SCMU for processing.                                                                                          

1) Snagging could not be finalized 

as a result of the national lockdown.                                                            

2) A memo was drafted during 

March to Technical for assistance 

with the establishment of a parking 

area, however, the memo was not 

signed and submitted to Technical 

Services as a result of the national 

lockdown the department did not 

make follow ups with Technical 

Services 

1) Technical Services to assist with 

the snagging, as all staff have 

returned to work. This process can 

be dealt with separately, as 

retention fees were retained on this 

project and will only be released 

once all snagging has been done.                                                                                                

2) Roll over will be requested during 

July 2020 from DAC and KZN 

Treasury to continue with the 

project.

TARGET NOT MET Quarterly 

Q1 - Letter of appointment 

(Consultant),Specification and proof 

of submission to SCM and BSC 

minutes                                                                  

Q2 - Advert. BEC minutes    Q3 -

BAC minutes, Memorandum,.  

Progress report and order                                                                           

Q4 -Progress reports and  invoices                                               

Vote no: 70108001151
Refurbishment and Extension of 

Newcastle Library 
R 1 861 581 R 1 204 148,71

TLSDBIP-CC018

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Environmental 

sustainability 

(Environmental 

conservation 

/management)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

To ensure provision of a 

clean and safe 

environment 

Purchase of Grass Cutters Output Reports 20 Grass cutters acquired Purchase of 16 Grass Cutters 16 Grass Cutters purchased TARGET MET
Purchase of Grass Cutter 

Equipment's 
Specification compiled. 

Department did not prioritise the 

compilation of the Specification and 

therefore it was not submitted 

timeously to SCM to request for 

quotations of the remaining grass 

cutter machinery and equipment, 

this is due to National Lockdown 

Project to be a roll over. TARGET NOT MET Bi-annual 

Q1 - Specifications, proof of 

submission to SCM, quotation,  

requisition form and an order                         

Q2 - Delivery note and invoice

Vote no: 70404104121 Grass cutter R 196 000 R 98 190,96

TLSDBIP-CC019

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Construction of Zulu Umuzi KPI not revised Output Reports Draft specification compiled 
Completion of construction  Zulu 

Umuzi

Completion of constructtion of Zulu Umzi not 

completed. 

The Acting Sed in an attempt to 

reduce costs implemented  the 

project internally however the 

building team were over loaded with 

work and could not complete the 

construction of Zulu Umuzi 

timeously. 

Project to be rolled over to 

2021/2022 financial year. Targets to 

be aligned accordingly

TARGET NOT MET Construction of Zulu Umuzi
Draft specification compiled in 

March 2020. 

Department did not prioritise the 

completion and submission of the 

specification to BSC. 

Project to be rolled over to the next 

financial year. 
TARGET NOT MET Quarterly 

Q1 - Specifications and proof of 

submission to SCM, quotations, an 

order, delivery notes and progress 

report for foundation and 

superstructure                                                      

Q2 - Specifications and proof of 

submission to SCM, quotations, an 

order, delivery notes and progress 

report for superstructure                                                                                                           

Q3 - Invoices, progress reports                    

Q4-Progress report, invoice and 

Completion Certificate

Vote no: 70203016021 Construction of Zulu Muzi  R 100 000 R 99 369,02

TLSDBIP-CC020

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Purchase of Furniture and Equipment: Fort Amiel KPI not revised Output Reports Draft specification compiled 

Purchase of Furniture and 

Equipment: Fort Amiel (70 Plastic 

chairs, 1 desktop, 3 flamingo 

chairs, 10 trestle tables, 1x  Office 

desk, office chairs, 1 x steel 

cupboard,1 x steel filing cabinets, 

steel shelving, 1x maps cabinet, 1x 

vacuum cleaner,  1 x fridge, urn, 1 x 

microwave, 1 x mobile air 

conditioner, 1 x storage container. 

Furniture and Equipment: Fort Amiel (70 

Plastic chairs, 1 desktop, 3 flamingo chairs, 

10 trestle tables, 1x  Office desk, office 

chairs, 1 x steel cupboard,1 x steel filing 

cabinets, steel shelving, 1x maps cabinet, 

1x vacuum cleaner,  1 x fridge, urn, 1 x 

microwave, 1 x mobile air conditioner, 1 x 

storage container purchased 

TARGET MET N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Quarterly 

Q1 - Specifications, proof of 

submission to SCM, quotations, an 

order/s and deliver note/s and an 

invoice.   Q2 - Specifications, proof 

of submission to SCM, quotations, 

an order/s and deliver note/s and an 

invoice.  Q3 - Advert, Bid evaluation 

report and an order      Q4 Delivery 

note and invoices                         

70186015021 and 70203015021  Furniture and Equipment R 143 000 R 131 520,00

TLSDBIP-CC021

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Installation Alarm Systems for  Mobile Office Output Reports Draft specification compiled 
Installation Alarm Systems for  

Mobile Office 

 Alarm Systems installed for the Mobils 

Office 
TARGET MET

Installation Alarm Systems for  

Mobile Office 

Specs compiled and submitted to 

SCM on 03/03/2020

Department did not prioritise the 

project
Project to be rolled over TARGET NOT MET Bi-annual 

Q1 - Specifications, proof of 

submission to SCM. Quotations and 

an order                                                                      

Q2 - Delivery note and/ completion 

certificate and an invoice 

Vote no: 70274035021   Alarm Systems of Mobile Office R 15 743 R 15 743,00

TLSDBIP-CC022

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Purchase of Art Purchases Output Reports New KPI Purchase of 6 x Art Works 6 x Artworks purchased TARGET MET N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Bi-annual 

Q1 - Requisition, deviation forms and 

quotations                                                      

Q2 -Order/s, Delivery note/s and 

invoice/s Q3- Quotations, deviation 

form, requistion and order                                                   

Q4- Delivery note and invoice

Vote no: 70185100321  Art Purchases   R 38 500 R 38 000,00

TLSDBIP-CC023

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Purchase and installation of Air conditioner unit: Art Gallery Output Reports Draft specification compiled
Purchase and installation of 1 x Air 

conditioner unit: Art Gallery

1 x Air conditioner installed at the Art 

Gallery 
TARGET MET

Purchase of Air conditioner Unit Art 

Gallery 
Draft specification compiled. 

Department did not prioritise the 

completion and submission of the 

specification to BSC. 

Project to be rolled over to the next 

financial year. 
TARGET NOT MET Annual 

Q1 - Specifications, proof of 

submission to SCM. Quotations, an 

order, delivery note and/ completion 

certificate and an Invoice

Vote no: 70185125051     
 Purchase of Air conditioner unit: Art 

Gallery
R 12 950 R 12 950,00

TLSDBIP-CC024

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Installation of CCTV Cameras Output Reports Bid tabled at BSC Installation of 24  CCTV Cameras 24 CCTV Cameras installed TARGET MET Installation of CCTV Cameras 

BAC referred the item for CCTV 

cameras back to the department for 

proper reasons for bid cancellation 

at the BEC. 

BEC cancelled the bid for CCTV 

cameras because there was 

outstanding information required 

from the department. 

Project to be rolled over and to 

discuss the draft compliance report 

with the SCMU Manager before 

they submitted it to BEC for 

consideration.

TARGET NOT MET Quarterly 

Q1 - Evaluation report and BEC 

minutes                                                    

Q2 - BAC minutes,  Provisional and 

Final appointment letter. An order 

and a Delivery note/s                                             

Q3 - Delivery note and/ Completion 

Certificate, and an invoice

Vote no: 70271003221   Installation of CCTV Cameras R 484 184 R 421 029,70

TLSDBIP-CC025

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Installation of Air conditioner unit: Ward 7 Output Reports Specification compiled 
Installation of 1 x Air conditioner 

unit: Ward 7
1 x Air conditioner unit at Ward 7 installed TARGET MET

Installation of Air conditioner Unit 

Ward 7

Request was submitted to SCM to 

advise if it is possible to advertise 

and finalise the project before or by 

end of June as the project is below 

R30 000

Delays with SCM processes due to 

National Lockdown and no feedback 

received from SCM as per the 

department request. 

Roll over request to be submitted to 

DAC during July 2020.
TARGET NOT MET Bi-annual 

Q1 - Specifications, proof of 

submission to SCM. Quotations, an 

order                                                                          

Q2 - Delivery note and/ completion 

certificate and an Invoice

Vote no: 70271025021  Installation of Air conditioner Unit Ward 7   R 10 150 R10 15,00

TLSDBIP-CC026

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting      Putting people first;
Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Installation of alarm systems in Libraries KPI not revised Output Reports Specification compiled 
Installation of  8 alarm systems in 

Libraries 
5 alarm  systems installed at libraries . 

3 of the planned libraries did not 

require the installation of new alarm 

systems but only required the 

linknig up of the existing alarm 

systems. 

Department to ensure that prior to 

setting the target a status qou 

assessment report is completed. 

TARGET NOT MET 
Installation of alarm systems in 

Libraries 

Update was requested from SCM 

with regard to all grant funded 

projects for the municipality to be 

able to request for roll-overs through 

the relevant stakeholders

Delays with SCM processes due to 

National Lockdown and no feedback 

received from SCM as per the 

department request. 

Roll over request to be submitted to 

DAC during July 2020.
TARGET NOT MET Bi-annual 

Q2 - Bid Notice and a evaluation 

report                                                 

Q3 - Appointment letter & MDB7.1, 

an order, Delivery notes/Job Cards  

Q4 Delivery notes/ Job cards and 

Completion Certificate and an 

invoice 

Vote no: 70271000151  Alarm Systems Libraries R 200 000 R 99 973,21

TLSDBIP-CC027

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting 
     Building capable local 

government institutions.

Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Installation of Access Control Newcastle Library KPI not revised Output Reports Specification compiled 
Installation of Access Control 

Newcastle Library 

Access Control installed at Newcastle 

Library
TARGET MET

Installation of Access Control 

Newcastle Library 

Update was requested from SCM 

with regard to all grant funded 

projects for the municipality to be 

able to request for roll-overs through 

the relevant stakeholders

Delays with SCM processes due to 

National Lockdown and no feedback 

received from SCM as per the 

department request. 

Roll over request to be submitted to 

DAC during July 2020.
TARGET NOT MET Bi-annual 

Q2 - Bid Notice and a evaluation 

report                                            

Q3 - Appointment letter & MDB7.1, 

an order and  Delivery notes/Job 

Cards Q4 - Delivery note/Job Card, 

Completion Certificate and an 

invoice

Vote no: 7027500251          Access Control : NN Library  R 200 000 R 173 819,13

TLSDBIP-CC028

     Output 1: Implement 

a differentiated approach 

to municipal financing, 

planning and support.

Cross Cutting 
     Building capable local 

government institutions.

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Installation of Books Security System: Ward 7 Output Reports Draft specification compiled
Installation of Books Security 

System: Ward 7
Books Security System installed at Ward 7 TARGET MET

Installation Books Security System: 

Ward 7

Update was requested from SCM 

with regard to all grant funded 

projects for the municipality to be 

able to request for roll-overs through 

the relevant stakeholders

Delays with SCM processes due to 

National Lockdown and no feedback 

received from SCM as per the 

department request. 

Roll over request to be submitted to 

DAC during July 2020.
TARGET NOT MET Bi-annual 

Q1 - Budget confirmation sheet and 

Bid Notice                                                    

Q2 - Appointment letter, MBD7.1, an 

order, delivery note and/ completion 

certificate, Invoice 

70271000351 Books Security System: Ward 7 R 109 361 R 109 361,30

TLSDBIP-CC029

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting 
     Building capable local 

government institutions.

Improved access to 

public facilities (including 

educational facilities -

provincial mandate)

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Erection and completion of Fencing for Modular Library KPI not revised Output Reports Draft specifications compiled 

100% Perimeter 100% Gate 

Installation . Close Out Report and 

process invoice for paymnet 

0% Perimeter 0% Gate Installation . Close 

Out Report not finalised invoices not 

processed  

Project behind schedule. Bid was re-

tabled at BEC on 17/06/2021 as 

confirmation of additional funding 

was required for this project in order 

to cover construction and 

professional fees. Bid tabled at 

BAC on 24/06/2021, provisional 

appointment letter submitted to 

service provider on 25/06/2021.

Project to be rolled over to 

2021/2022 financial year. Targets to 

be aligned accordingly

TARGET NOT MET 
Establishment of Parking Area and 

Fencing Modular Library

Specifications received from 

Technical Services on 01/06/2020. 

Department received the 

specifications from Technical 

Services only on the 01/06/2020 

and did department did not prioritise 

the submission of the specs to 

SCM. 

Roll over request to be submitted to 

DAC during July 2020.
TARGET NOT MET Quarterly 

Q1 - Appointment letter (consultant), 

specification and proof of 

submission to SCM                                                                                              

Q2 - Advertisement                                         

Q3 - BEC and BAC minutes, Advert                                                      

Q4 - Bid Evaluation Report,BEC and 

BAC Minutes , Appointment letter 

and MBD 7.1 and  Site Hand over 

minutes, Progress report and invoice

70271045021
 Establishment of Parking Area and 

Fencing Modular Library
R 334 000 R 0,00

TLSDBIP-CC030

     Output 1: Implement

a differentiated approach

to municipal financing,

planning and support.

Cross Cutting 
     Building capable local 

government institutions.

Improved Community 

Safety

To ensure efficient use 

and management of 

community facilities.

Establishment and 

provision of community 

facilities

Installation of CCTV Cameras KPI not revised Output Reports Bid tabled at BSC Installation of  56 CCTV  Cameras 36  CCTV  Cameras installed 
The budget was only sufficient to 

purchase 36 CCTV Cameras 

The Department to roll over the 

balance of funds and try to top up 

the budget and purchase the 2 

other lilcensing software during the 

2021/2022 finanicial year. 

TARGET NOT MET Installation of CCTV Cameras

BAC referred the item for CCTV 

cameras back to the department for 

proper reasons for bid cancellation 

at the BEC. 

BEC cancelled the bid for CCTV 

cameras because there was 

outstanding information required 

from the department. 

Project to be rolled over and to 

discuss the draft compliance report 

with the SCMU Manager before 

they submitted it to BEC for 

consideration.

TARGET NOT MET Quarterly 

Q1 - Evaluation report and BEC 

minutes                                                     

Q2 -BAC minutes, Provisional and 

Final appointment letter. Delivery 

notes and/ completion certificate/s                                                         

Q3 - Invoice and Delivery note

70266003221  Installation of CCTV Cameras  R 1 219 332 R1 193 129,95

REVISED BUDGET INFORMATION AS AT THE 28 FEBRUARY 2021

























DEPARTMENTAL 

SDBIP REFERENCE 

NUMBER 

OUTCOME 9 NATIONAL KPA
BACK TO BASICS 

PILLAR
IDP PRIORITY GOAL/OBJECTIVES STRATEGIES BASELINE 

REVISED 

STANDARD/ACCUMULATIVE/

AVERAGE TARGETS(1 JULY 

2020 -30 JUNE 2021)

ANNUAL ACTUAL REASON FOR VARIANCE 
RECOMMMENDED 

CORRECTIVE ACTION
ANNUAL DASHBOARD RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT FREQUENCY OF REPORTING PRIMARY SOURCE OF EVIDENCE 

MSCOA CONFIGURATION VOTE DESTRIPTION ADJUSTMENT BUDGET 

TLSDBIP-GG001

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure good 

governance through 

openness, transparency 

and accountability in the 

organization.

To develop and implement 

an optimal communication 

strategy and service 

charter by 2021

GG1.1.1

Percentage of resolutions 

raised by council committees 

not addressed and escalated 

to the accounting officer 

KPI not revised Output Percentage (%) New KPI 100% 100% TARGET MET 100%
No execution of resolutions were 

submitted to the MM

There was the National 

Lockdown and only essential 

services staff were on duty 

therefore the resolutions were 

submitted timeously to the Acting 

Municipal Manager 

To follow up with departments on 

the status of all resolutions and 

submit it to the municipal 

manager 

TARGET NOT MET 
Office of the Municipal Manager 

(Executive Support)
Quarterly 

Quarter 1-4: Progress report on the execution of resolutions 

for all council committees, proof of submission to the 

Accounting Officer after every meeting/ monthly proof of 

submission to the Accounting Officer and the calculation 

sheet

Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG002

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure good 

governance through 

openness, transparency 

and accountability in the 

organization.

To develop a system of 

delegation that will 

maximise administrative 

and operational 

efficiencies

GG1.2.1

Annual review and approval 

of Delegations Policy by 

Council by 30 June 2021

KPI not revised Output  Delegation Policy Draft Delegations Policy 
Approval of The Delegation 

Policy by Council 

 Delegations Policy approved  by 

Council on the 31 March 2021. 
TARGET MET 

Approved Delegations Policy by 

Council 

Draft Delegations Policy is still in 

the process of being vetted by 

the legal services department. 

National lockdown delayed the 

finalisation of the vetting of the 

delegations policy. 

To ensure that the Delegations 

Policy is submitted to 

Exco/Council for approval before 

the 30/09/2020

TARGET NOT MET 
Office of the Municipal Manager 

(Executive Support)
Quarterly 

 Q1 Manco minutes and attendance register Q2 Exco 

minutes and attendance register Q3 Draft Delegation Policy, 

Councillors Workshop and attendance register, Q4 Council 

resolution and Approved Delegations Policy

Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG003

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To promote and enhance 

good governance in the 

organization.

To facilitate the 

implementation of an 

effective Risk Management 

System towards ensuring 

the achievement of the 

organizational objectives 

and service delivery 

targets.

GG2.1.1

Annual review of  Risk 

Management Policy , Risk 

Management Methodology, 

Anti-Fraud & Corruption 

Strategy, Business Continuity 

policy by Council by 30 June 

2021

KPI not revised Output  Policy and Strategy 

Approved  Risk 

Management Policy and 

strategy, Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Policy and 

strategy by Council

Approval of Risk Management 

Policy , Risk Management 

Methodology, Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Strategy, Business 

Continuity policy for 2021/22 by 

Council on the 30th Of June 

2021. 

Approval of Risk Management 

Policy , Risk Management 

Methodology, Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Strategy, Business 

Continuity policy for 2021/22 by 

Council on the 30th Of June 

2021. 

TARGET MET N/A N/A N/A

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (RISK  

MANAGEMENT)

Quarterly 

 Q1 Manco and EXCO minutes and attendance register Q2 

Council minutes and attendance register Q3 Audit Committee 

Minutes, Q4 Council resolution for approval of Draft Risk 

Management Policy , Risk Management Methodology, Anti-

Fraud & Corruption Strategy, Business Continuity policy 

Management Policy and strategy, Anti-Fraud & Corruption 

Policy and strategy 

Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG004

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To promote and enhance 

good governance in the 

organization.

To facilitate the 

implementation of an 

effective Risk Management 

System towards ensuring 

the achievement of the 

organizational objectives 

and service delivery 

targets.

GG2.1.2

Annual risk assessment 

report for 2021/22  as 

approved by Audit 

Committee by 30 June 2021

KPI not revised Output Reports 

Annual risk assessment 

report for 2019/20 and 

2020/21 as approved by 

Audit Committee by 30 

June 2020  

Annual Risk Report for 2021/22 

approved by Audit Committee on 

the 25th of June 2021

Annual Risk Report for 2021/22 

approved by Audit Committee on 

the 25th of June 2021

TARGET MET 

Approved  Risk Management 

Policy and strategy, Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Policy and strategy by 

Council

The  Risk Management Policy 

and Strategy, Anti- Fraud & 

Corruption Policy were not 

presented at the audit committee 

and a turnaround strategy was 

discussed in committee

A risk  process plan was not 

developed therefore reports for 

the deadlines were not compiled 

timeously and submitted to Exco 

and Audit Committee for 

comments 

A Risk Process Plan to be 

developed and implemented for 

2020/19 to ensure that all 

deadlines for Risk Management 

are achieved. 

TARGET NOT MET 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (RISK  

MANAGEMENT)

Quarterly 

Q3.Draft Strategic Risk Register for 2021/22, Minutes and 

Attendance Registers for Manco, Exco and  Audit 

Committee, Annual risk assessment report for 2021/22 as 

approved by Audit Committee Quarter 4: Annual Risk 

Assessment Report for 2021/22 and Audit Committee 

Minutes and attendance register and acknowledgement from 

COGTA

Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG005

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To promote and enhance 

good governance in the 

organization.

To facilitate the 

implementation of an 

effective Risk Management 

System towards ensuring 

the achievement of the 

organizational objectives 

and service delivery 

targets.

GG2.1.3

Quarterly monitoring of 

implementation of risk 

management action plans 

submitted to Audit 

Committee

KPI not revised Output  Progress Report New KPI 4 4

National Treasury issued a 

circular to grant all municipality's 

an extension of time to submit 

reports from August 2020 to 

October 2020. The planned Risk 

and Performance Audit 

Committee meting for quarter 1 

was therefore postponed to 

Quarter 2 and reports were 

subsequently submitted. 

All Risk management reporting 

timeframes be aligned to 

National Treasury reporting time 

frames. 

TARGET MET 

Annual risk assessment report for 

2019/20 as approved by 

Municipal Manager and submitted 

to Audit Committee 

1. Conduct Risk Assessment for 

2020/21. 2. Submission of Draft 

Risk Assessment Report 

(Strategic Risk Register) for 

2020/21 3. Submission of Annual 

Risk Assessment Report for 

2020/21 were all not presented at 

the audit committee and a 

turnaround strategy was 

discussed in committee

A risk  process plan was not 

developed therefore reports for 

the deadlines were not compiled 

timeously and submitted to Exco 

and Audit Committee for 

comments 

A Risk Process Plan to be 

developed and implemented for 

2020/19 to ensure that all 

deadlines for Risk Management 

are achieved. 

TARGET NOT MET 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (RISK  

MANAGEMENT)

Quarterly

Quarter 1 - 4  Quarterly progress report on implementation of 

risk management action plans , Minutes and attendance 

register of Audit Committee 

Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG006

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To promote and enhance 

good governance in the 

organization.

To facilitate the 

implementation of an 

effective Risk Management 

System towards ensuring 

the achievement of the 

organizational objectives 

and service delivery 

targets.

GG2.1.4

Quarterly progress report on 

implementation of 

management action plan  to 

AG  findings submitted to 

Audit Committee

KPI not revised Output  Progress Report 0 4 3

National Treasury issued a 

circular to grant all municipality's 

an extension of time to submit 

reports from August 2020 to 

October 2020. The planned Risk 

and Performance Audit 

Committee meting for quarter 1 

was therefore postponed to 

Quarter 2 and reports were 

subsequently submitted. 

All Risk management reporting 

timeframes be aligned to 

National Treasury reporting time 

frames. 

TARGET MET 10

The Acting Municipal Manager 

withdrew the reports at the audit 

committee

A risk  process plan was not 

developed therefore reports for 

the deadlines were not compiled 

timeously 

A Risk Process Plan to be 

developed and implemented for 

2020/19 to ensure that all 

deadlines for Risk Management 

are achieved. 

TARGET NOT MET 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (RISK  

MANAGEMENT)

Quarterly

 Quarter 1- 4  Quarterly progress report on implementation of 

management action plan to AG findings , Minutes and 

attendance register of Audit Committee 

Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG007

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To promote and enhance 

good governance in the 

organization.

To facilitate the 

implementation of an 

effective Risk Management 

System towards ensuring 

the achievement of the 

organizational objectives 

and service delivery 

targets.

GG2.1.5

 Quarterly compliance 

monitoring reports (checklist) 

submitted to Audit 

Committee  

KPI not revised Output Report 0 4 3

National Treasury issued a 

circular to grant all municipality's 

an extension of time to submit 

reports from August 2020 to 

October 2020. The planned Risk 

and Performance Audit 

Committee meting for quarter 1 

was therefore postponed to 

Quarter 2 and reports were 

subsequently submitted. 

All Risk management reporting 

timeframes be aligned to 

National Treasury reporting time 

frames. 

TARGET MET N/A N/A n/a n/a n/a

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (RISK  

MANAGEMENT)

Quarterly
Quarter 1-4: Quarterly Compliance report (checklist), Minutes 

and attendance register of Audit Committee 
Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG008

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To facilitate good 

governance by providing 

assurance to council on 

internal controls, risk 

management and 

governance processes.

Providing 

recommendations and 

advice to management to 

improve internal controls, 

risk management and 

governance processes.

GG3.1.1

Percentage of Projects 

implemented as per Internal 

Audit Plan 

KPI not revised Process Percentage (%) 100% 100% 100% TARGET MET 100% 100% TARGET MET 
OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (INTERNAL AUDIT)
Quarterly

Quarter 1-4: Progress report against approved Internal Audit 

Plan and Internal audit reports

Vote no: 10184010105 & Vote 

no: 10195010105 
Salaries

1071675 + R 3 706 351 =  R4 

778 026

3 533 485,39                        

TLSDBIP-GG009

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To facilitate good 

governance by providing 

assurance to council on 

internal controls, risk 

management and 

governance processes.

Providing 

recommendations and 

advice to management to 

improve internal controls, 

risk management and 

governance processes.

GG3.1.2
Number of Audit Committee 

meetings convened 
KPI not revised Output Number (No.) 8 8 9 TARGET MET 8 8 TARGET MET 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (INTERNAL AUDIT)
Quarterly

Quarter 1-4: Audit committee minutes and attendance 

register 
Vote no: 10184010105 Audit Committee Fees R 480 000 R353 397,00

TLSDBIP-GG010

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure good 

governance through 

openness, transparency 

and accountability in the 

organization.

To provide effective and 

efficient legal support 

services

GG4.1.1

Percentage of contracts 

drafted and vetted as 

requested by departments

KPI not revised Output Percentage (%) 100% 100% 100% TARGET MET 100% 100% TARGET MET 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (LEGAL 

SERVICES)

Quarterly

 Quarter 1-4: Registers of all contracts received with a date 

received and date finalised , contracts vetted and drafted with 

calculation sheet and confirmation from each SED on 

contracts that legal services was requested to draft and vet. 

Vote no: 10301010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG011

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure good 

governance through 

openness, transparency 

and accountability in the 

organization.

To provide effective and 

efficient legal support 

services

GG4.1.2

Percentage of objections 

addressed within 60days as 

per SCM Regulations

KPI not revised Output Percentage (%)
100% of objections 

resolved within 60days 
100%

100% of objections resolved 

within 60days 
TARGET MET 

100% of objections resolved 

within 60days 
67%

2 legal officers resigned and the 

Legal Services section currently 

only has one legal officer and no 

acting appointments. 

To request Corporate Services 

to advertise the vacant positions 
TARGET NOT MET 

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (LEGAL 

SERVICES)

Quarterly

Quarter 1 - 4: Objections register with dates of objection 

received and resolved, Objections, communication to 

Objectors and Calculation sheet and confirmation from each 

SED on contracts that legal services was requested to draft 

and vet. 

Vote no: 10301010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG012

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure good 

governance through 

openness, transparency 

and accountability in the 

organization.

To provide effective and 

efficient legal support 

services

GG4.1.3

Percentage of by-laws 

drafted and vetted as 

requested by departments

KPI not revised Output Percentage (%) New KPI N/A N/A N/A 100%
No by-laws were drafted or 

vetted. 

No by-laws were received from 

departments 
N/A

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

MANAGER (LEGAL 

SERVICES)

Quarterly 

 Quarter 1-4: Registers of all Bylaws received with a date 

received and date finalised , Bylaws vetted and drafted with 

calculation sheet and confirmation from each SED on Bylaws 

that legal services was requested to draft and vet. 

Vote no: 10301010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG013

     Output 5: Deepen 

democracy through a 

refined Ward 

Committee Model.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To keep the communities 

and stakeholders informed 

and involved in the affairs 

of the Municipality

To improve both internal 

and external 

communication

GG5.1.1. 
Quarterly reports prepared 

for submission to COGTA
KPI not revised Output Number 4 4 4 TARGET MET 4 4 TARGET MET DPHS Quarterly 

 Q1 - Q4: Internal assessment of the consolidated report 

signed off by SED  
Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG014

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To keep internal & external 

communities and 

stakeholders informed, 

empowered and involved 

by 2021

To develop and implement 

an optimal communication 

strategy  

GG6.1.1

Approval of the 

Communication Strategy by 

Council by June 2021

KPI not revised Output  Strategy
Draft communication 

strategy

Approval of The 

Communications Strategy by 

Council 

Communications Strategy 

approved by Council on the 31st 

of March 2021

TARGET MET 
Approved Communications 

Strategy by Council 

Draft Communications Strategy 

compiled 

Due to the National Lockdown 

and the fact that the CRO was 

only appointed in Quarter 3 the 

Communications Strategy could 

not be approved timeously. 

The Communications Strategy to 

be approved in 2020/21 
N/A

Office of the Municipal Manager 

(Chief Communications Officer) 
Quarterly

 Q1 Manco minutes and attendance register Q2 Exco 

minutes and attendance register Q3 Draft Communication 

Strategy with departments comments and  Councillors 

Workshop and attendance register Quarter 4 Communication 

Strategy and Council Resolution

Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG015

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure that the 

municipality has and 

maintains an accountable 

and standardised ICT 

systems

To facilitate the annual 

implementation of good 

ICT governance processes

GG7.1.1

Percentage of ICT issues 

addressed at the ICT steering 

committee meetings 

KPI not revised Output Percentage (%) New KPI 100% 100% TARGET MET 100% No ICT issues were resolved 
The ICT committee has still not 

been established. 

ICT steering Committee to be 

established in the first Quarter of 

2020/21

TARGET NOT MET Office of the Municipal Manager Quarterly

Quarter 1-4: ICT Steering Committee Minutes, attendance 

register, ICT register of issues raised and addressed with 

calculation sheet

Vote No: 10191010105 Salaries R112 539,00 R103 160,86

TLSDBIP-GG016

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To obtain a clean audit on 

the Audit of Performance 

Objectives by 2020

To ensure good 

governance through 

openness, transparency 

and accountability in the 

organization.

GG8.1.1

Quarterly performance 

reports submitted to Audit 

Committee (Quarter 1: APR 

Quarter 2-4: Top Layer 

SDBIP) 

KPI not revised Output Number 4 4 4 TARGET MET 
Approved Communications 

Strategy by Council 
4 4 TARGET MET DPHS Quarterly Quarter 1: APR Quarter 2-4: Top-Layer SDBIP Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG017

     Output 6: 

Administrative and 

financial capability.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Good governance;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To promote good 

governance through the 

Annual performance 

reporting process

To ensure compliance with 

Annual report process
GG9.1.1

Tabling of Annual Report to 

Council by 31 January 2021 

and Approval of Annual 

Report by 31 March 2021

KPI not revised Output Reports

Tabling of Annual 

Report to Council by 31 

January 2020 and 

Approval of Annual 

Report by 31 March 

2020

Tabling of Annual Report to 

Council by 31 January 2021 and 

Approval of Annual Report by 31 

March 2021

Tabling of Annual Report to 

Council on the 31 March 2021 

(Extension of time by National 

Treasury Circular 104 of the 

MFMA) 

TARGET MET 

Tabling of Annual Report to 

Council by 31 January 2020 and 

Approval of Annual Report by 31 

March 2020

Tabling of Annual Report to 

Council by 29 January 2020 and 

Approval of Annual Report by 27 

May 2020

Due to the National Lockdown for 

Covid the report could not be 

approved in March 2020.

TARGET MET 
Office of the Municipal Manager 

(Executive Support)
Annual Quarter 3 : Council Resolution and Approved Annual Report Vote no: 10105010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG018

     Output 7: Single 

window of 

coordination.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Putting people first;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure the development 

and the maintenance of 

credible IDP

To develop IDP in line with 

4th generation guide packs 

/ guidelines

GG10.1.1
Review and Adoption of IDP 

by 31 May 2021
KPI not revised Output Reports

Review and Adoption of 

IDP by 31 May 2020

Review and Adoption of IDP by  

Exco and Council by 31 May 

2021

Reviewed and Adopted IDP by  

Exco and Council on 31 May 

2021

TARGET MET 
Review and Adoption of IDP by 

31 May 2020

IDP was adopted on the 29 of 

June 2020

Due to the National Lockdown 

the IDP could not be adopted by 

the 31 May 2020. 

TARGET MET DPHS Quarterly 
Q1 : Approved Process Plan , Q2 N/A, Q3 Draft IDP, Q4 

Council Resolution
Vote no: 10276010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

TLSDBIP-GG019

     Output 7: Single 

window of 

coordination.

Good Governance 

and Public 

Participation 

     Putting people first;

Accelerated Municipal 

Transformation and 

Corporate 

Development 

To ensure the development 

and the maintenance of 

credible IDP

To ensure that a Public 

Participation process is 

followed  for the  IDP 

review

GG10.2.1
Number of IDP RF meetings 

held 
KPI not revised Output Number 3 3 3 TARGET MET 3 2

National Lockdown for Covid-19 

prevented the municipality from 

convening the  planned IDPRF 

for March 2020. 

The municipality will convene 

virtual IDPRF meetings in 

2020/21 

n/a DPHS Quarterly 
Quarter 2-4: attendance Register and minutes of IDP RF 

Meetings
Vote no: 10276010105 Salaries R28 797 562,00 R28 876 407,72

KPI No. LINKED TO 

IDP

APPROVED KEY 

PERFORMANCE 

INDICATOR

REVISED  KEY 

PERFORMANCE 

INDICATOR

REVISION MOTIVATION
YEAR TO DATE ACTUAL 

AS END OF JUNE 2021

NEWCASTLE MUNICIPALITY

GOOD GOVERNANCE 2020'21

KPI TYPE (INPUT, 

OUTPUT, OUTCOME, 

PROCESS)

UNIT OF MEASURE

REVISED ANNUAL 

STANDARD/ ACCUMALATIVE / 

AVERAGE TARGET ( 1 LULY 

2019- 30 JUNE 2020)

ANNUAL ACTUAL  

STANDARD/ ACCUMALATIVE / 

AVERAGE TARGET ( 1 LULY 

2019- 30 JUNE 2020)

REASON FOR VARIANCE
RECOMMENDED 

CORRECTIVE ACTION
DASHBOARD
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uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Province: Kwazulu-Natal 

AFS rounding: SA Rand only, no cents. 

Contact Information 

Acting Managing Director: Luiz Lionel Cunha [Resigned, 25 August 2021] 

Acting Chief Financial Officer: Farida Moola 

Telephone Number: 034 328 5000 

Email Address: luiz.cunha@uthukelawater.co.za 

Chairman of the Board: Poovalingum Subramoney Naidoo [Resigned, 19 July 2021] 

Telephone Number: 031 719 7454 

Email Address: dan.naidoo@umgeniwater.co.za 

Auditor General Contact: Amos Zungu 

Telephone: 033 264 7400 

Email Address: AmosZ@agsa.co.za 

 

General Information 
 

Legal form of business 

uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd is an interim Water Service Provider operating under Provincial Council authority 

dated 6 June 2012, and via a water services provider agreement signed with the Shareholder 

municipalities of; Newcastle, Umzinyathi and Amajuba Districts, in accordance with the provisions of 

section 78 of the Municipal Systems Act 32/2000, for the purposes of providing Bulk water services to 

these municipalities.  
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The National Minister of Water Affairs and Sanitation via government gazette number 39491 dated 15 

December 2015 determined that the Entity will be incorporated into a new single Water Board proposed 

for the whole of KwaZulu Natal. 

The entity operates as a Bulk water services provider to its controlling Shareholders, and performs no 

other functions outside the scope of the draft agreement between the parties. 

The entity is governed by the provisions of the Companies Act 71/2008, Municipal Finance Management 

Act 56/2003, Municipal Systems Act 32/2000, Water services Act 108/1997 and the Public Audit Service 

Act 25/2004. 

 

Members of the Board 

Mr. PS Naidoo (Chairman of the Board) [Resigned, 19 July 2021] 

Mr. A Evetts (COGTA representative) 

Mr. M Msiwa (Independent non-executive Director) 

Mrs. A Masefield (Department of Water and Sanitation representative) 

The three Municipal Managers of the Shareholder municipalities, of Newcastle Local Municipality, 

Umzinyathi District Municipality and Amajuba District Municipality. 

 

Auditors: Auditor General 

Bankers: Standard Bank of South Africa 

Registered Office: 79 Harding Street, Newcastle 

Physical Address: 79 Harding Street, Newcastle 

Postal Address: P O Box 729, Newcastle 2940 

Telephone Number: 034 3285000 

Fax Number: 034 3263388 

Email Address: luiz.cunha@uthukelawater.co.za 

 

 

 

mailto:luiz.cunha@uthukelawater.co.za
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DIRECTORS REPORT  
 

In terms of the Companies Act, 71/2008, as amended, and read with the Municipal Systems Act 32/2000, 

as amended, the Board of uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd, is the accounting authority and the bulk water 

services provider to the municipalities of Newcastle, Amajuba and Umzinyathi District, and the Directors 

have pleasure in presenting their report for the year ended 30 June 2021. 

 

Nature of business 

 

uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd, is an interim multijurisdictional water entity, originally established in 2003 to 

provide the whole spectrum of water and sanitation services, and then subsequently with effect from the 

1 July 2013, was re-constituted to supply only potable bulk water to its parent municipalities. The activities 

of uThukela Water are in line with the provisions of the Water Act, Act 108/1997. 

 

The primary activities in terms of section 29 of the Act are: 

 

(a) To treat raw water and to distribute the treated water via its infrastructure to its Shareholder 

municipalities.      

(b) To provide Bulk water quality assurance to its Shareholders via its laboratory analyses and 

measurement in terms of National Water Standards. 

 

In terms of section 30 of the Act, uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd also engages in other services that complement 

bulk water services such as laboratory services, water quality monitoring and environmental management 

within the water reticulation systems of the Shareholders, and also acts as an implementing agent for any 

sphere of government for projects related to water service delivery.  

 

The services are provided on behalf of the following parent municipalities who are also the Water Service 

Authorities for their respective jurisdictions: 

 

Amajuba District Municipality 

Newcastle Municipality 

Umzinyathi District Municipality 

 

Compliance with legislation 

 

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of  

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) including any interpretations of such accounts issued by 

the Accounting Practices Board, with the effective standards of Generally Recognized Accounting Practices 

(GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent GAAP statements as indicated 
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in the accounting policies of the Board. The requirements of the following relevant statutes were also 

taken into account when preparing the annual financial statements: 

 

(a) Water Services Act 108/1997, 

(b) Municipal Finance Management Act 56/2003, 

(c) Municipal Systems Act 32/2000, 

(d) Companies Act 71/2008 and 

(e) Public Audit Service Act 25/2004.  

 

These acts require preparation of the financial information to be in compliance with the Companies Act 

71/2008, as amended. 

 

Corporate governance and risk management 

 

The Board supports the principles of the code of Corporate Practices and Conduct as set out in the King 

IV report. The organizations policies, procedures and processes are continuously reviewed to align with 

King IV and the Board provides the required oversight and is pleased with the commitment that prevails 

at all spheres of the organization in as far as compliance with King IV is concerned.  

 

The Board is responsible for monitoring the risk management process. 

 

Share capital and Director’s interests 

 

The share capital of the Company has been issued in one hundred (100) ordinary shares, and is valued at 

R100. 

 

The authorized number of ordinary shares is 10 000, with a par value of R 1 per share.  

 

The parent municipalities (Water Service Authorities) are the sole Shareholders of the company, and their 

individual shareholding is as follows;  

 

Amajuba District Municipality; 33% 

Newcastle Municipality; 34% 

Umzinyathi District Municipality; 33% 

 

The details of the shares, and share certificates, are recorded in the Register of Shareholders of the 

Company, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 71/2008, as amended. 
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The MEC responsible for Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs, The Honorable N. Dube, on the 

18 June 2012, released a decision of the Provincial Executive Committee taken at a Cabinet meeting held 

on the 25 April 2012, wherein it was resolved that;  

(a) The section 139 (1) (b) of the Constitution of the RSA, Act 108/1996, intervention instituted by 

the Provincial Executive was terminated with immediate effect, and that the Water Service 

Authorities would immediately resume and be accountable for water service functions previously 

assumed by the Provincial Executive of the Province of KZN together with the rights and 

obligations pertaining to uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd. 

(b) The Directive also governed that in relation to the delivery of water services operated by uThukela 

Water (Pty) Ltd, that in terms of section 139 (1) (a) of the Constitution, the following orders, 

amongst others things to be done, would be implemented; 

 All retail/reticulation water service functions would be de-centralized and returned to the 

respective municipalities. 

 Bulk water services would be regionalized. 

 uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd would continue to provide water services as the Bulk water 

service provider until such time that the National Minister for Water Affairs makes a 

decision concerning the future composition of the new or reconstituted Regional Bulk 

water service authority. 

 That uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd would be de-registered in terms of the Companies Act once 

the Minister of Water Affairs had made a decision regarding the new or reconstituted 

water service authority. 

 That uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd, in the interim, be served by a Transitional Board 

constituted of the following members; 

Mr. D. Naidoo, Executive, Umgeni Water Board, and, who shall remain as the 

independent Chairperson of the Board. 

Mr. B. Ndlovu, the CFO of COGTA.  

Mr. M. Msiwa, an independent Board member, 

Mr. A. Evetts, Manager: Municipal Infrastructure of COGTA, as a Board member. 

Mrs A. Masefield, Acting Provincial Head of the Department of Water Affairs, appointed 

as an observer. 

The Municipal Managers of the three Shareholder municipalities of Newcastle Local, and 

the Amajuba and Umzinyathi District municipalities, serving as Board members.   
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During the financial year, no contracts were entered into in which Directors or Officers of the Company 

had an interest and which significantly affected the business of the Company. 

No special resolutions, the nature of which might be significant to the Shareholder in their appreciation 

of the state of affairs of the Company, were made by the Company during the period covered by this 

report.  

The future dispensation of the Company 

 

The Minister of Water Affairs and Sanitation has by Government Gazette number 39491 dated the 10 

December 2015, declared that in terms of the provisions of the Water Services Act 108/1997, that the 

extension of  the water services will be incorporated into a single water functionary. The mechanism and 

new functionary has not yet been finalized and determined by the Minister. 

 

Financial performance 

 

The Company balance sheet reflects a net asset worth of R 550 164 926 (2020: R 639 215 358) and is made 

up as follows; 

 

Share Capital                                   R                     100 

Accumulated deficit                       R        17 780 314 

Asset revaluation Reserve            R      567 945 140 

 

The total net shareholder contributions paid to uThukela Water to date is reflected at R 156 162 652 

(2020: R 165 735 184), and is made up of capital contributions to water infrastructure development 

projects, and excludes bulk water billing payments which are appropriated to accumulated surpluses. The 

details hereof are reflected in note 13 to the annual financial statements. 

 

There was a net increase in cash and cash equivalents to R 29 424 084 from R 20 070 160 in 2020. Cash 

receipts and accumulated funds assisted the Company to invest R 1 258 341 (2020: R 1 648 854) into 

property, plant, infrastructure and equipment during the year. The total net capital investment in bulk 

water service infrastructure, and in respect of property plant and equipment is R  789 451 219 (2020: R 

867 454 343)  

 

Statement of Financial Performance, June 2021. 

 

The Statement of Financial Performance for the year under review reflects a trading deficit of R 89 050 432 

for the year (2020: R 91 828 627). However, it should be noted that the deficit is mainly attributable to 

the raising of depreciation charges amounting to R 79 261 466, which amount is written back via the 

accumulated surplus account as a result of the municipalities not providing for or paying for these 
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depreciation charges. The Water Service Authorities only provide and pay for cash items in their 

operational budgets and do not contribute towards any of the non-cash items accounted for. 

 

Statement of Financial Position, June 2021. 

 

The Statement of Financial Position reflects positively and generally indicates that the Board is trading in 

solvent circumstances, except for the negative asset ratio test, which is directly as a result of the non- 

payment of the raw water charges billed by the Department of Water Affairs and consequently raised by 

the Entity, but not paid to the Department, as a result of non-payment by the shareholder municipalities.  

 

The recovery and/or write off of these raw water charges is receiving attention at the highest level.  

 

There were no external borrowings in the year under review. 

 

Capital expenditure and commitments 

 

Capital expenditure for the year including amounts disbursed directly by the shareholders and utilized 

from accumulated funds and brought into account in the water services balance sheet amounting to      R 

1 258 341 (2020: R 1 648 854) for property, plant and equipment.  

 

The Companies contractual capital commitments are disclosed in note 32 of the financial statements. 

 

Materiality framework 

 

Management for the purposes of materiality works within the framework of acceptable levels of 

materiality and significance set and established by the Office of the Auditor General.      

 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

 

There was R 22 945 197 of fruitless and wasteful expenditure comprising mainly of interest raised by the 

Department of Water and Sanitation on outstanding accounts during the year. See note 30. 

 

Irregular expenditure 

 

Irregular expenditure was reported during the year under review resulting from non-compliance with the 

supply chain management policy. These instances will be investigated and reported to the Board. See note 

30. 
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Fraud and financial misconduct 

 

There were no instances of fraud and financial misconduct in the current financial year. Internal controls 

are reviewed and improved on continuously. 

 

Performance against financial targets 

 

The performance of uThukela Water against key financial indicators as agreed in the Shareholders 

compact is illustrated in the performance management scorecards which are reported in the annual 

report. 

 

The Company scorecard reflects that the Company has performed within targets and objectives as set out 

in the Business plans and budgets, albeit it under difficult and restrained circumstances.   

 

Events after the reporting period 

 

Subsequent to year end, the Chairperson of the Board, Mr PS Naidoo and the Acting MD, Mr LL Cunha 

resigned. 

Advocate N Khambule has subsequently been appointed as the Acting MD, by the shareholder 

municipalities. 

 

Going concern 

 

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The Directors considered 

the following factors in reaching this opinion: 

 

• The assumption that the shareholders will pay their monthly bulk water service invoices in 

accordance with their signed agreements and as directed by the Provincial Council in its 

instruction dated 7 June 2012.  

 

• The entity continues to deliver on its mandates to its shareholders in all respects and in full 

compliance with all legislation as evidenced by good audit outcomes.  

 

• Stable key executive management incumbents have been, and are in place, albeit in some cases 

in Acting capacities, providing; expertise, stability, industry know how and guidance in all aspects 

of effective and efficient water service management to the Board and its shareholders. 
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• Annually approved MTREF business plans, operational and capital budgets, tariff model, 

performance management and risk assessment plans are in place and monitored and reported on 

regularly to the Board and its shareholders. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

1.Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of 

Generally Recognized Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives 

issued by the Accounting Standards Board and The Companies Act, 2008 (Act 71 of 2008) and the MFMA. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 

accordance with the historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South 

African Rands. 

Unless otherwise stated, all figures have been rounded to the nearest rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed 

below. These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts 

The Entity operates its accounts on the Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts as required by National 

Treasury, and in line with the shareholder municipalities. 

1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of 

available information and the application of judgments are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual 

results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial 

statements. Significant judgments include: 

Trade receivables 

The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In 

determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the entity makes 

judgments as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated 

future cash flows from a financial asset. 

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, 

adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the 

reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan 

balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period. 
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1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Impairment testing 

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating, non-cash generating units and individual assets have been 

determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell.  

These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the useful 

life and market value assumptions may change which may then impact our estimations and may then 

require a material adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets. 

The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest 

that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which 

identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are 

indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for 

each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of tangible assets are 

inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number 

of factors including technological obsolescence, together with economic factors such as interest and 

inflation rates. 

Provisions 

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.  

Post-retirement benefits 

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined 

on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost 

(income) include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount 

of post retirement obligations. 

The entity determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that 

should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required 

to settle the pension obligations.  In determining the appropriate discount rate, the entity considers the 

interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits 

will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. 

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional 

information is disclosed in note 11 – Service related employee benefit obligations. 

Effective interest rate 

The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows adjusted for risks specific to the 

related item. 
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1.1 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Allowance for doubtful debts 

On receivables an impairment loss is recognized in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence 

that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the receivables carrying 

amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, 

computed at initial recognition. 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are 

held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative 

purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset when: 

  It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will  flow 

to the company; 

  The cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable 

to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or 

monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially 

measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost 

is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, 

they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and 

costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognized in 

the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced 

part is derecognized. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives 

to their estimated residual value. Depreciation begins when the assets are available for use and ceases  
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1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

at the earlier of the date that the assets are classified as held for sale and the date on which the assets 

are derecognized. 

After recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment whose fair value can be measured 
reliably shall be carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.  
 
 The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item                                                                                                         Useful life 

Buildings                                                                                                  50 years 

Water infrastructure                                                                             5 to 50 years 

IT equipment                                                                                          3 to 10 years 

 

Leasehold property 

Leasehold improvements                                                                    5 years over the period of lease 

Plant and machinery 

Grass-cutting Equipment                                                                     7 to 10 years 

 Minor plant                                                                                           5 to 50 years 

 Mobile plant                                                                                          7 to 10 years 

Office equipment 

 Furniture & fittings                                                                                7 to 10 years 

 Other office equipment                                                                       3 to 10 years 

 

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of 

each reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a 

change in accounting estimate. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognized in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the 

carrying amount of another asset. 
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1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognized when the asset is disposed of or when there are 

no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in 

surplus or deficit when the item is derecognized. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 

of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if 

any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

Assets which the entity holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary 

course of activities are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-

sale. These assets are not accounted for as non-current assets held for sale. Proceeds from sales of these 

assets are recognized as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating 

activities in the cash flow statement. 

1.3 Intangible assets 

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it: 

 is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 

exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or 

 arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are 

transferable or separate from the company or from other rights and obligations. 

An intangible asset is recognized when: 

 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable 

to the asset will flow to the entity; and 

 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost. 

When an intangible asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of 

acquisition. 

An intangible asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits or service 

potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset shall be determined as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset. It shall be recognized in 

surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognized. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. 
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1.3 Intangible assets (continued) 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there 

is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or 

service potential. Amortization is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for 

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other 

intangible assets amortization is provided on a straight line basis over their useful lives. 

The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting 

date. Amortization begins when the assets are available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that 

the assets are classified as held for sale and the date on which the assets are derecognized. 

The amortization charge for each period shall be recognized in surplus or deficit unless it is permitted or 

required to be included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

Amortization is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual 

values as follows: 

Item                                                                                                         Useful life 

Computer software                                                                               3 to 5 years 

1.4 Financial instruments 

Classification 

The entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories: 

        Loans and receivables 

        Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and 

takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives 

and financial assets designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit, which shall not be classified out 

of the fair value through surplus or deficit category. 

Financial assets classified as at fair value through surplus or deficit which are no longer held for the 

purposes of selling or repurchasing in the near term may be reclassified out of that category: 

 If the asset met the definition of loans and receivables and the entity has the intention and ability 

to hold the asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity. 

No other reclassifications may be made into or out of the fair value through surplus or deficit category. 
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1.4 Financial instruments (continued) 

A financial asset classified as available-for-sale that would have met the definition of loans and receivables 

may be reclassified to loans and receivables if the entity has the intention and ability to hold the asset for 

the foreseeable future or until maturity. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognized initially when the entity becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instruments. 

The entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial 

asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual 

arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair 

value is not determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial 

assets. 

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are 

included in the initial measurement of the instrument. 

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit are recognized in surplus 

or deficit. Regular way purchases of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 

Subsequent measurement 

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method, 

less accumulated impairment losses. 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective 

interest method. 

Fair value determination 

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset 

is not active (and for unlisted securities), the entity establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. 

These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are 

substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of 

market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity- specific inputs. 

Impairment of financial assets 

At each end of the reporting period the entity assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value 

through surplus or deficit, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group 

of financial assets has been impaired. 
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1.4 Financial instruments (continued) 

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor 

will enter bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment. 

Impairment losses are recognized in surplus or deficit. 

Impairment  losses  are  reversed  when  an  increase  in  the  financial  asset's  recoverable  amount  can  

be  related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, subject to the 

restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall 

not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognized. 

Reversals of impairment losses are recognized in surplus or deficit except for equity investments classified 

as available-for-sale. 

Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity investments which are 

held at cost because the fair value was not determinable. 

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is 

recognized in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off 

is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 

are credited against operating expenses. 

Loans to/from economic entities 

These include loans to and from controlling entities, fellow controlled entities, joint ventures and 

associates and are recognized initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs. 

Loans to economic entities are classified as loans and receivables. 

Loans from economic entities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated 

irrecoverable amounts are recognized in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset 

is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy 

or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are 

considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognized is measured as the 

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of 

the deficit is recognized in surplus or deficit within operating expenses.  
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1.4 Financial instruments (continued) 

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade 

receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating 

expenses in surplus or deficit. 

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost, 

using the effective interest rate method. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk 

of changes in value. These are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized 

cost, using the effective interest rate method. 

Bank overdraft and borrowings 

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at 

amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 

transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the 

borrowings in accordance with the entity’s accounting policy for borrowing costs. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of contractual agreements entered into. Trade 

and other payables are stated at their nominal value. Equity instruments are recorded at the amount 

received, net of direct issue costs. 

Gains and losses 

A gain or loss arising from a change in a financial asset or financial liability is recognized as follows: 

 A gain or loss on a financial asset or financial liability classified as at fair value through surplus or 

deficit is recognized in surplus or deficit; 

 A gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized directly in net assets, through 

the statement of changes in net assets, until the financial asset is derecognized, at which time the 

cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in net assets is recognized in surplus or deficit; and 

 For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost, a gain or loss is recognized in 

surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognized or impaired, and 

through the amortization process. 



19 
 

1.4 Financial instruments (continued) 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) is derecognized where: 

 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

 the entity retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to 

pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or 

 the entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either has transferred 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

 has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 

transferred control of the asset. 

Financial assets are derecognized using trade settlement date accounting. 

Where the entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the 

asset is recognized to the extent of the entity’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing 

involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 

original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the entity could be 

required to repay. Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option 

(including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the entity’s 

continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the entity may repurchase, except that 

in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset 

measured at fair value, the extent of the entity’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair 

value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price. 

Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 

expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and 

the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in surplus or deficit. 
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1.4 Financial instruments (continued) 

1.5 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership. 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognized as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts 

equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 

payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a 

finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate 

implicit in the lease. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding 

liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 

periodic rate of return on the remaining balance of the liability. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 

difference between the amounts recognized as an expense and the contractual payments are recognized 

as an operating lease asset or liability. 

1.6 Inventories 

Inventories  are  initially  measured  at  cost  except  where  inventories  are  acquired  at  no  cost,  or  for  

nominal consideration, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for; 

 distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or 

 consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal 

charge. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated 

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.  

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity will incur to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 
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1.6 Inventories (continued) 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

The  cost  of  inventories  of  items  that  are  not  ordinarily  interchangeable  and  goods  or  services  

produced  and segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual 

costs. 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is 

used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity. 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognized as an expense in the 

period in which the related revenue is recognized. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are 

recognized when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-

down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in 

the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, 

arising from an increase in net realizable value, are recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories 

recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

1.7 Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the company with the primary objective of generating a 

commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-

orientated entity, it generates a commercial return. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the 

systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through 

depreciation/amortization. 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognized in the statement of financial position after 

deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of 

generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.  

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance 

costs and income tax expense. 

Depreciation/amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its 

useful life. 
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1.7 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction 

between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell 

and its value in use. 

Identification 

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset 

may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a cash-generating 

intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use 

for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment 

test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognized during the 

current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the current 

reporting period. 

Value in use 

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected 

to be derived from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. 

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows 

to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the entity applies the 

appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows. 

Basis for estimates of future cash flows 

In measuring value in use the entity: 

 base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent 

management's best estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the 

remaining useful life of the asset. Greater weight is given to external evidence; 

 base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes 

any estimated future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or 

from improving or enhancing the asset's performance. Projections based on these 

budgets/forecasts covers a maximum period of five years, unless a longer period can be justified; 

and 
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1.7 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

 estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts 

by extrapolating the projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining 

growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does 

not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries 

in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used, unless a higher rate can 

be justified. 

Discount rate 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, 

represented by the current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future 

cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. 

Recognition and measurement (individual asset) 

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 

of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-

generating asset to which it relates, the entity recognizes a liability only to the extent that is a requirement 

in the Standard of GRAP. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation/amortization charge for the cash-generating 

asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its 

residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

Cash-generating units 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the 

individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the entity 

determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's 

cash-generating unit). 

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of 

assets is identified as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash 

inflows generated by any asset or cash-generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the entity 

use management's best estimate of future price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in 

estimating: 

 the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and 



24 
 

1.7 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

 the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating 

units that are affected by the internal transfer pricing. 

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of 

assets, unless a change is justified. 

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is determined. 

An impairment loss is recognized for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less 

than the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the 

cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the 

unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on individual assets. 

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the 

highest of: 

 its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable); 

 its value in use (if determinable); and 

 zero. 

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro 

rata to the other cash-generating assets of the unit. 

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying 

amount of that non-cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit 

prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. 

Reversal of impairment loss 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 

recognized in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any 

such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognized in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a 

change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 

was recognized. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is 

a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of 

an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 

depreciation or amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods 
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1.7 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation/amortization charge for the cash-

generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying 

amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of 

the unit pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are 

treated as reversals of impairment losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is 

allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit. 

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset 

is not increased above the lower of: 

 its recoverable amount (if determinable); and 

 the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had 

no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods. 

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset 

is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. 

1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a 

commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-

orientated entity, it generates a commercial return. 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the 

systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through 

depreciation/amortization. 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognized in the statement of financial position after 

deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of 

generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance 

costs and income tax expense 
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1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

Depreciation/amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its 

useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction 

between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 

its value in use. 

Identification 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is 

impaired. 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating 

asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount 

of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a non-cash-generating 

intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available 

for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. 

This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially 

recognized during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before 

the end of the current reporting period. 

Value in use 

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential. 

The present value of the remaining service potential of an asset is determined using the following 

approach: 

Depreciated replacement cost approach 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the 

depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the 

asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset 

may be replaced either through reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or through replacement 

of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or 

replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis 

of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. 
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1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimized” basis. The 

rationale is that the entity would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be 

replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features 

which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that 

have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the asset provides. 

The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimized basis thus 

reflects the service potential required of the asset. 

Recognition and measurement 

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the 

carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment 

loss. 

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-

generating asset to which it relates, the entity recognizes a liability only to the extent that is a requirement 

in the Standards of GRAP. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation/amortization charge for the non-cash-

generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying 

amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

Reversal of an impairment loss 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 

recognized in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If 

any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognized in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has 

been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last 

impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service 

amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset 

attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined (net of depreciation or amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the 

asset in prior periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognized immediately in surplus or 

deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a 

revaluation increase. 
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1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation/amortization charge for the non-

cash-generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised 

carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

1.9 Shareholder's loan on incorporation 

A residual interest is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities. 

Shareholder's loan on incorporation is treated as residual interest. 

1.10 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, 

such as paid vacation leave and sick leave,  bonuses and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are 

recognized in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognized as an expense as the employees render services 

that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognized as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 

obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance. 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments  made  to  industry-managed  (or  state  plans)  retirement  benefit  schemes  are  dealt  with  

as  defined contribution plans where the company’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those 

arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 

Defined benefit plans 

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected unit credit 

method. Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for 

each plan. Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to the end of the reporting 

period where the interim valuation is performed at an earlier date. 

Past service costs are recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are 

otherwise amortized on a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become 

vested. 
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1.10 Employee benefits (continued) 

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain or 

loss exceeds ten percent of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the 

fair value of the plan assets (the corridor), that portion is recognized in surplus or deficit over the expected 

average remaining service lives of participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor 

are not recognized. 

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognized when the 

company is demonstrably committed to curtailment or settlement. 

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to 

settle a defined benefit obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset. The asset 

is measured at fair value. In all other respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In 

surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount 

recognized for a reimbursement. 

The amount recognized in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and unrecognized past service 

costs, and reduced by the fair value of plan assets. 

Any asset is limited to unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of 

available refunds and reduction in future contributions to the plan. 

Other post retirement obligations 

The entity provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upon 

retirement to some retirees. 

The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up 

to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits 

are accrued over the period of employment. Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these 

obligations. The entity also provides a gratuity and housing subsidy on retirement to certain employees. 

An annual charge to income is made to cover both these liabilities. 
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1.11 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognized when: 

 the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will 

be required to settle the obligation; and 

 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 

present obligation at the reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the 

expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by 

another party, the reimbursement is recognized when, and only when, it is virtually certain that 

reimbursement will be received if the company settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a 

separate asset. The amount recognized for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the 

provision. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the 

passage of time. This increase is recognized as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognized. Provisions are 

not recognized for future operating deficits. 

If the entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract 

is recognized and measured as a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when the entity: 

 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 

 the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned; 

 the principal locations affected; 

 



31 
 

1.11 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

 the expenditures that will be undertaken; and when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting 

to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are 

those that are both: 

 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 

 not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed 

to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding agreement. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognized in business combinations that are 

recognized separately are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

 the amount that would be recognized as a provision; and 

 the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization. 

A contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it 

is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 

obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with certainty. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognized, but disclosed. 

1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when 

those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from 

owners. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities 

extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use 

of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 

knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential will flow to 

the entity and these benefits can be measured reliably. 
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1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts 

and volume rebates. 

Rendering of services 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue 

associated with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction 

at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following 

conditions are satisfied: 

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 

flow to the entity; 

 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 

 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured 

reliably. 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue 

is recognized on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some 

other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant 

than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed. 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, 

revenue is recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable. 

Service revenue is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting 

date. Stage of completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services 

to be performed. 

Interest, royalties and dividends 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends is 

recognized when: 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 

flow to the company, and 

 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognized, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

Royalties are recognized as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements. 
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1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

Dividends or their equivalents are recognized, in surplus or deficit, when the entity’s right to receive 

payment has been established. 

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognized as revenue over the period during which 

the service is performed. 

1.13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Water Service Authority shortfall contributions are recognized when all conditions associated with the 

contribution has been met in terms of the WSP agreement and is transferred directly to the Statement of 

Financial Performance. 

Capital grant reimbursements are claimed from the Shareholders who hold all Government grant receipts, 

and these receipts, are only recognized for payment purposes when actually received by the entity, and 

are accounted for in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an 

entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from 

owners. 

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 

potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future 

economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its 

objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities 

extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, 

or use of assets) to another entity in exchange. 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange 

transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately 

equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal 

value in exchange. 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred 

asset may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be 

returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified. 

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed 

upon the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity. 
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1.13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions 

that are not available to others. 

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be 

subject to taxation. 

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance 

with laws and or regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines 

or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law. 

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, 

other than taxes. 

The Entity is exempt from the payment of Income Tax 

Recognition 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognized as an asset is recognized as revenue, 

except to the extent that a liability is also recognized in respect of the same inflow. 

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognized as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources 

from a non- exchange  transaction  recognized  as  an  asset,  it  reduces  the  carrying  amount  of  the  

liability  recognized  and recognizes an amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 

Measurement 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets 

recognized by the entity. 

When,  as  a  result  of  a  non-exchange  transaction,  the  entity  recognizes  an  asset,  it  also  recognizes  

revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, 

unless it is also required to recognize a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognized it will be 

measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and 

the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognized as revenue. When a liability is subsequently 

reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the 

liability is recognized as revenue. 

1.14 Cost of sales 

When inventories are sold, exchanged or distributed the carrying amount of those inventories is 

recognized as an expense  in  the  period  in  which  the  related  revenue  is  recognized.  If  there  is  

related  revenue,  the expense is recognized  when  the  goods  are  distributed,  or  related  service  is  

rendered.  The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value or current replacement 

cost and all deficits of inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss  
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1.14 Cost of sales (continued) 

occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net 

realizable value or current replacement cost, is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories 

recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

The related cost of providing services recognized as revenue in the current period is included in cost of 

sales. 

1.15 Investment income 

Investment income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

1.16 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 

asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended 

use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined as follows: 

 Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 

asset less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings. 

 Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed 

for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalized do not exceed the 

total borrowing costs incurred. 

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when all the following conditions have been met: 

 expenditures for the asset have been incurred; 

 borrowing costs have been incurred; and 

 activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are undertaken. 

When the carrying amount or the expected ultimate cost of the qualifying asset exceeds its recoverable 

amount or recoverable service amount or net realizable value, the carrying amount is written down or 

written off in accordance with the accounting policy on Impairment of Assets as per accounting policy 

number 1.7 and 1.8. In certain circumstances, the amount of the write-down or write-off is written back 

in accordance with the same accounting policy. 

Capitalization is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted. 

Capitalization ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its 

intended use or sale are complete. 

When the entity completes the construction of a qualifying asset in parts and each part is capable of being 

used while construction continues on other parts, the entity ceases capitalizing borrowing costs when it 

completes substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that part for its intended use or sale. 
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1.16 Borrowing costs (continued) 

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.17 Comparative figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in 

the current year. 

1.18 Unauthorized expenditure 

Unauthorized expenditure means: 

 overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 

 expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in 

accordance with the purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorized expenditure is recognized as an expense in the statement of 

financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in 

accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as 

revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had 

reasonable care been exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognized as an expense in the statement 

of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in 

accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as 

revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.20 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 

of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 

1998) or is in contravention of the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular 

expenditure excludes unauthorized expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in 

the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue 

in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.21 Offsetting 

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or 

permitted by a Standard of GRAP. 
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1.22 Gratuities 

The entity provides gratuities for qualifying staff members in terms of the relevant conditions of 

employment. The expenditure is recognized in the statement of financial performance when the gratuity 

is paid. 

1.23 Conditional grants and receipts 

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognized as revenue to the extent 

that the entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. 

To the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognized. 

Partners contributions (Grants) 

Water Service Authority contributions (Grants) utilized to fund assets is accounted for in the Statement 

of Financial Performance and transferred to the Accumulated Funds. 

Water Service Authority contributions (Grants/shortfall contributions) utilized to fund operational 

expenditures and are accounted for in the Statement of Financial Performance.   

1.24 Budget information 

The entity is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorizations 

(or equivalent), which is given effect through authorizing legislation, appropriation or similar. 

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a 

comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the annual 

financial statements as an annexure. 

1.25 Related parties 

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity. 

(a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the entity if that person: 

(i) has control or joint control over the entity; 

(ii) has significant influence over the entity; or 

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or of a parent of the entity. 

(b) An entity is related to the entity if any of the following conditions applies: 

(i) the entity and the company are members of the same group. 

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint  venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 

member of a group of which the other entity is a member). 
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1.25 Related parties (continued) 

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of a third party. 

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third party. 

(v) the entity is a post-employment defined benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

reporting entity or an entity related to the entity. If the entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 

employers are also related to the entity. 

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). 

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 

management personnel of the entity (or of the parent of the entity). 

Transactions with related parties are entered into and disclosed at arm's length. 

Related party relationships where control exists are disclosed irrespective of whether there have been 

transactions between the related parties. 

In respect of transactions between related parties other than transactions that would occur within normal 

supplier or client/recipient relationship on terms and conditions no more or less favorable than those 

which it is reasonable to expect  the  entity  would  have  adopted  if  dealing  with  that  individual  or  

entity  at an arm's  length  in  the  same circumstances, the entity discloses (a) the nature of the related 

party relationship, (b) the type of transaction that have occurred and (c) the elements of the transactions 

necessary to clarify the significance of these transactions to its operations and sufficient to enable the 

financial statements to provide relevant and reliable information for decision making and accountability 

purposes. 

1.26 Foreign exchange gains and losses 

Initial measurement 

All transactions that are undertaken in a foreign currency are translated into South African rands. A foreign 

currency transaction is recorded on initial recognition in rinds by applying to the foreign currency amount 

the spot exchange rate between the rinds and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. The 

date of transaction is the date on which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent Treatment of Monetary Items: 

Monetary items held in a foreign currency shall be translated into the functional currency in the Statement 

of Financial Position at the closing rate. In instances where a monetary asset or liability has a rate of 

exchange that is fixed under the terms of the relevant contract, it cannot be used to translate the 

monetary assets and liabilities as this is a form of hedge accounting. 
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1.26 Foreign exchange gains and losses (continued) 

Subsequent Treatment of Non-Monetary Items: 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall be translated 

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair 

value in a foreign currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was 

determined. 

Recognition of Foreign Exchange Differences 

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the settlement of such transactions or from the translation 

at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 

recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized directly in equity, any exchange rate component 

of that gain or loss shall be recognized directly in equity. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-

monetary item is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance, any exchange rate component of 

that gain or loss shall also be recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

2.1 Credit risk 

 

Potential credit risk mainly consists of short-term investments, cash and cash equivalents and accounts 

receivable. The risk from short-term investments and other cash items is restricted by transacting only 

with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Credit 

risk with respect to trade receivables is limited to the Shareholders and their municipality’s ability to 

meet their capital grant and trade Bulk water purchase annual Budget commitments to the entity. 

 

2.2 Liquidity risk 

 

uThukela Water (Pty) Ltd manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital 

expenditure and actual versus forecasted cash flows. 

 

 

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 

 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. 

 

The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 

estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions 

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

 

3.1 Impairment of consumer and other debtors 

 

Impairment of receivables is established if there is objective evidence that the company will not be able 

to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Accordingly, management’s 

assessment of the recoverability is reflected through the creation of a provision for doubtful debts as 

reflected in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 

 

Segmental information in respect of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Appendix B to the 

annual financial statements attached. 
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UTHUKELA WATER (PTY) LTD 

Report of the Auditor General 
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UTHUKELA WATER (PTY) LTD  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2021 

 

Note 2021 2020

R R

ASSETS 

Current assets 194 713 303 151 757 865

Cash and cash equivalents 1 29 424 084 20 070 160

WSA debtors 2                183 138                            -   

Trade and other receivables from 

exchange transactions 3 142 656 356 109 099 435

Other receivables from non-exchange 

transactions 4 2 653 050 2 564 772

VAT receivable 5 19 610 261 19 847 670

Inventory 6 186 415 175 829

Non-current assets 789 451 219 867 454 343

Property, plant and equipment 7 788 721 338 866 281 998

Intangible assets 8 729 881 1 172 345

Total assets 984 164 522 1 019 212 208

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities 422 035 966 370 175 393

Trade and other payables 9 414 599 566 363 162 868

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 10 460 961 460 961

Current portion of service related 

employee benefit obligations 11 6 975 438 6 551 564

Non-current liabilities 11 963 630 9 821 457Service related employee benefit 

obligations 11 11 963 630 9 821 457

Total liabilities 433 999 596 379 996 850

Net assets 550 164 926 639 215 358

Share capital 12 100 100

Accumulated funds 13 550 164 826 639 215 258

Net assets 550 164 926 639 215 358
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UTHUKELA WATER (PTY) LTD. 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

 

 
 

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Note 2021 2021 2020 2020

R R R R

REVENUE

Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges 14 170 263 232 165 403 505 155 395 451 148 550 115

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Interest earned - external investments 15 107 000 1 067 037 100 000 1 488 275

Shareholder project contributions 16 -                           -                                 -                           222 372             

Other receipts 17                779 300 326 923                           -   293 479

Total revenue 171 149 532 166 797 465 155 495 451 150 554 241

EXPENDITURE

Employee related costs 18 (59 541 583)      (58 215 964)            (50 605 435)      (52 754 301)      

Depreciation and amortisation 19 (1 787 026)        (79 261 466)            (1 670 117)        (79 910 549)      

Repairs and maintenance 20 (16 110 527)      (5 177 110)              (13 669 753)      (3 106 037)        

Bulk water purchases 21 (29 419 149)      (30 267 399)            (27 494 532)      (27 749 518)      

Interest paid/accrued 22 -                           (22 945 197)            -                           (22 022 422)      

Contracted services 23 (2 704 180)        (2 535 657)              (4 246 335)        (3 894 144)        

Inventory adjustment 6 -                           10 586                      -                           53 841                

Operating expenses 24 (60 272 768)      (57 570 388)            (56 529 979)      (52 999 739)      

Total expenditure (169 835 232)    (255 962 593)          (154 216 151)    (242 382 869)    

Gain / (loss) on disposal of assets 25 -                           114 697                   -                           -                           

Surplus / (deficit) before taxation 1 314 300          (89 050 432)            1 279 300          (91 828 627)      

Taxation 26 -                           -                                 -                           -                           

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 1 314 300 (89 050 432)            1 279 300 (91 828 627)      
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Description, Nature and Purpose of 

Reserve
Note 

Share capital 

invested in Entity by 

Shareholders in 

terms of Company 

Memorandum of 

Association

Asset Revaluation 

Reserve, reflects assets 

at fair value, measured 

reliably, and  carried at 

revalued amounts

Accumulated 

Surplus/(Deficit) 

reflects 

accumulated 

surplus or deficit 

of the Entity

Total Net 

Assets reflects 

net income 

retained, no 

dividends are 

paid

Umzinyathl Amajuba Newcastle 
Excl Partners 

Contributions

R R R R R R R 

Balance at 30 June 2019 100 92 496 969 8 814 902 89 062 121 699 709 328 (168 596 001)         721 487 418

Operating (surplus)deficit - including 

shareholders contributions                                      -                         -                         -                         -                                                -   (91 828 627)           (91 828 627)        

Acquired assets through partners 

contribution                                      -                         -                         -   9 555 653                                              -   -                                          9 555 653 

Off- setting depreciation 13                                      -   (3 722 395)    (1 093 649)    (3 608 294)    (66 248 321)                         74 672 660                             -   

Balance at 30 June 2020 100 88 774 573 7 721 253 95 009 479 633 461 008 (185 751 969)         639 214 444

Operating (surplus)deficit - including 

shareholders contributions                                      -                         -                         -                         -                                                -   (89 050 432)           (89 050 432)        

Off- setting depreciation 13                                      -   (3 523 133)    (1 093 649)    (4 955 750)    (65 515 868)                         75 088 399                             -   

Balance at 30 June 2021 100 85 251 440 6 627 604 90 053 729 567 945 140 (199 714 001)         550 164 012

Partner capital grant/own funds 

transferred to Entity for projects 

implemented by the Entity
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Note 2021 2020

R R

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts 133 361 729 116 271 826

Sales of goods and services 131 882 549 113 706 848

Interest received 1 069 299 1 571 610

Other receipts 409 881 993 368

Payments (122 749 462)           (108 619 411)           

Employee costs (57 953 083)              (51 388 126)              

Suppliers (64 692 725)              (57 117 499)              

Other payments (103 654)                   (113 786)                   

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 27 10 612 266 7 652 415

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7 (1 258 341)                (1 648 854)                

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1 258 341)                (1 648 854)                

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9 353 925                   6 003 561                   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20 070 160 14 066 598

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1&28 29 424 084                 20 070 160                 

(9 353 925)                (6 003 561)                
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2021 2020

R R

A PREAMBLE - CHANGE OF FUNCTIONS, GOING CONCERN AND DEVELOPMENTAL OBJECTIVES

1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Cash on hand 13 754 8 713

Cash at bank 1 069 054 2 111 315

Cash on call and short notice deposits 28 341 276 17 950 132

29 424 084 20 070 160

uThukela Water (pty) Ltd has the following bank accounts: 

Account Number - Bank ­Account Description 

Cash Book 

Balance

Bank 

Statement 

Balance

Cash Book 

Balance

Bank Statement 

Balance

30 06 2021 30 06 2021 30 06 2020 30 06 2020

Cash at bank

4059636838 - Absa 145 247 145 247 213 895 213 895

4060280600 - Absa - Customer Care -                        -                        20 572 20 572

061938939 - Standard Bank  - Primary Current Account 923 807 923 807 1 876 847 1 876 847

1 069 054 1 069 054 2 111 315 2 111 315

Cash on call and short notice deposits

268586055-015 - Standard Notice Deposit 17 271 106 17 271 106 10 246 984 10 246 984

268586055-002 - Standard Notice call Account 10 533 309 10 533 309 6 012 591 6 012 591

92 5753 8348 - Absa - Deposit 536 862 536 862 1 690 557 1 690 557

28 341 276 28 341 276 17 950 132 17 950 132

Petty cash 13 754 8 713

Total Cash and cash equivalents 29 424 084 29 410 330 20 070 160 20 061 447

Bulk water service functions - The entity, consequent to a Provincially instituted section 78 (MSA32/2000) water services assessment conducted for the region,  

and in terms of a COGTA Provincial Directive dated 7 June 2012, operates as an interim bulk water services provider to the municipalities of Newcastle, 

Amajuba and Umzinyathi Districts, pending a final decision by the Minister of Water Affairs regarding the future dispensation of water services in the region. 

The matter has been referred to the National Cabinet for review and a final decision in this regard.

Going concern - The Board provides bulk water services to the municipalities on the assumption that it will be paid for the services rendered in accordance 

with the WSP/WSA signed water services agreements in place, and also as instructed by the Provincial Council in its directive dated 7 June 2012. The 

agreements regulate the bulk water business operations, functions, obligations and objectives to be carried out by the Board on behalf of the shareholder 

municipalities. Annual business plans, operational and capital budgets, tariff model, Performance Management objectives/Targets and risk assessment plans 

are formulated jointly by all parties and agreed to upfront. The entity reports regularly (monthly and quarterly) to the municipalities and they in turn monitor, 

evaluate and manage the entities progress accordingly. The going concern of the entity is dependant on the continued funding/payment from the WSA's. 

Developmental objectives - The Board annually submits its capital and developmental requirements to the municipalities and it is of great concern that the 

municipalities do not approve a funded capital budget for the Board to implement. The bulk water infrastructures are very old and outdated and require 

regular and constant refurbishment and replacement. This lapse in adequate funding is a high risk to the sustainability and future of bulk water services in the 

region. The Board has provided the municipalities with possible funding models to give emphases to its funding options, but unfortunately, these have not 

been approved. The municipalities also do not pay the annual capital infrastructure depreciation charges to the entity.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents comprise the total cash and cash equivalents as disclosed above. 
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2021 2020

R R

2 WSA DEBTORS 

Assets Funding 

Umzinyathi District Municipality 499 813 316 676

Revenue Funding 82 763 673 82 763 673

Umzinyathi District Municipality 64 191 401 64 191 401

Amajuba District Municipality 18 572 273 18 572 273

Total WSA Debtors 83 263 487 83 080 349

Less: Provision for bad debts 

Balance at beginning of the year 83 080 349 83 080 349

Balance at end of year 83 080 349 83 080 349

183 138 -                        

3 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

 Gross Balances 

 Provision for 

Doubtful Debts  Net Balance  Gross Balances 

 Provision for 

Doubtful Debts 

3.1 Trade receivables R R R R R

as at 30 June 2021

Service debtors

   Water 222 909                (50 025)               172 884               242 145                (81 003)                  

Total 222 909                (50 025)               172 884               242 145                (81 003)                  

as at 30 June 2020

Service debtors

   Water 242 145                (81 003)               161 142               140 218                (80 753)                  

Total 242 145                (81 003)               161 142               140 218                (80 753)                  

Water : Ageing

Current (0 – 30 days) 66 494 150 718

31 - 60 Days 98 122 -41

61 - 90 Days 2 769 6 228

+ 91 Days 55 524 85 241

Total 222 909                242 145                

Summary of Debtors by Customer Classification Consumers Industrial /  

Commercial

National and 

Provincial 

Government

R R R

as at 30 June 2021

Current (0 – 30 days) 66 494                  -                        -                        

31 - 60 Days 98 122                  -                        -                        

61 - 90 Days 2 769                    -                        -                        

91 and over 55 524                  -                        -                        

Sub-total 222 909                -                        -                        

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (50 025)               -                        -                        

Total debtors by customer classification 172 884                -                        -                        

Output Vat of R 22 550,05 is included in the debtor balances - also see note 5 below

There is a Provincial Executive Committee directive that the WSA's in arrears with their shortfall payments must make these good. See also note under 

Output Vat of R 23 887,50 is included in the debtor balances - also see note 5 below.
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2021 2020

R R

as at 30 June 2020

Current (0 – 30 days) 150 718 -                        -                        

31 - 60 Days -41 -                        -                        

61 - 90 Days 6 228 -                        -                        

91 and over 85 241 -                        -                        

Sub-total 242 145                -                        -                        

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (81 003)               -                        -                        

Total debtors by customer classification 161 142                -                        -                        

Reconciliation of the doubtful debt provision

Balance at beginning of the year 81 003                  80 753                  

Provision/( Reversal) (30 978)               250                        

Balance at end of year 50 025                  81 003                  

Trade receivables - Bulk Supplies

Umzinyathi District Municipality 10 417 270 5 416 863

Newcastle Municipality 116 667 909 85 470 038

Amajuba District Municipality 15 403 096 18 056 196

Sub-total 142 488 275 108 943 096

Total 142 488 275        108 943 096        

Reconciliation of the doubtful debt provision

Balance at beginning of the year 4 803                    4 803                    

Balance at end of year 4 803                    4 803                    

Total Trade Receivables - Bulk Supplies 142 656 356 109 099 435

OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

Other debtors 1 069 990            1 087 680            

Deposits with suppliers 2 641 805            2 538 151            

Total other debtors 3 711 795            3 625 831            

Less: Provision for bad debts 

Balance at beginning of the year 1 061 060 1 075 836

Contributions to provision -2 315                   -14 776                

Balance at end of year 1 058 745 1 061 060

2 653 050 2 564 772

VAT 2021 2020

Debtors Vat Raised - Not Yet Due (18 631 520)       (14 230 543)       

Creditors Invoices Vat Raised - Not Yet Claimed 37 621 689          33 739 502          

VAT receivable/(payable) 620 091                338 712                

Total VAT receivable/(payable) 19 610 261 19 847 670

Output Vat of R 18 584 800,59 is included in the debtor balances - also see note 5 below

Output Vat of R 281,37 is included in the debtor balances - also see note 5 below

VAT is currently paid and claimed on the receipts and payments basis. Only once payment is received from debtors or made to creditors is VAT paid/claimed 

to/from SARS - See also notes 2, 3, 4 & 9.

As the impairment provision for unpaid debtors includes VAT, the amount provided for debtors - vat raised not yet due - excludes the impaired debtors in the 

provision above.
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2021 2020

R R

6 INVENTORIES

Water 186 415 175 829

The total carrying amount of inventory in classification 

appropriate to the Entity is:  Potable; 46,3 Ml at R3,81 per 

Kl  and Raw water; 16,45 Ml at R0,6021 and 5.88 Ml at 

R0.0312 per kl

186 415 175 829

The total carry amount of inventory at fair Value

Less cost to sell : Already accounted for

The amount of inventory recognized as an expense during 

the period ended 30 June 2021

-10 586 -53 841

7 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 

Assets at 30 June 2021 Balance at Additions Transfers Re-Valuations Balance at

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20

Water Infrastructure 1 361 490 952    -                        -                        -                         1 361 490 952    

Vehicles 5 489 827            -                        -                        -                         5 489 827            

Plant & Equipment 68 911 655          817 994                -                        -                         68 093 661          

Furniture, Equipment and Fittings 3 925 509            440 347                -                        -                         3 485 162            

Totals 1 439 817 944    1 258 341            -                        -                         1 438 559 602    

Accumulated Depreciation Balance at Additions Transfers Re-Valuations Balance at

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20

Water Infrastructure 603 982 817        72 505 833          -                        -                         531 476 984        

Vehicles 3 895 967            540 660                -                        -                         3 355 307            

Plant & Equipment 40 378 053          5 401 177            -                        -                         34 976 876          

Furniture, Equipment and Fittings 2 839 769            371 331                -                        -                         2 468 438            

Totals 651 096 606        78 819 001          -                        -                         572 277 604        

 Carrying Values at Year End Balance at Movement Transfers Re-Valuations Balance at

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20

Water Infrastructure 757 508 135        (72 505 833)       -                        -                         830 013 968        

Vehicles 1 593 860            (540 660)            -                        -                         2 134 520            

Plant & Equipment 28 533 603          (4 583 183)         -                        -                         33 116 786          

Furniture, Equipment and Fittings 1 085 740            69 016                  -                        -                         1 016 724            

Totals 788 721 338        (77 560 660)       -                        -                         866 281 998        

Assets at 30 June 2020 Balance at Additions Transfers Re-Valuations Balance at

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

Water Infrastructure 1 361 490 952    283 582                3 964 501            -                         1 357 242 869    

Vehicles 5 489 827            -                        -                        -                         5 489 827            

Plant & Equipment 68 093 661          1 198 861            5 591 152            -                         61 303 649          

Furniture, Equipment and Fittings 3 485 162            166 411                -                        -                         3 318 751            

Totals 1 438 559 602    1 648 854            9 555 653            -                         1 427 355 095    

Inventories are measured at the cost of production and subsequent net realisable value utilizing the  cost of production, and represents the fair value of the 

inventory at 30 June 2021.

No inventory or carrying amounts of inventory were pledged as security
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2021 2020

R R

Accumulated Depreciation Balance at Additions Transfers Re-Valuations Balance at

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

Water Infrastructure 531 476 984        72 289 379          -                         459 187 605        

Vehicles 3 355 307            676 660                -                         2 678 647            

Plant & Equipment 34 976 876          6 239 222            -                         28 737 654          

Furniture, Equipment and Fittings 2 468 438            275 902                -                         2 192 536            

Totals 572 277 604        79 481 163          -                         492 796 442        

 Carrying Values at Year End Balance at Additions Transfers Re-Valuations Balance at

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

Water Infrastructure 830 013 968        (72 005 797)       -                         898 055 263        

Vehicles 2 134 520            (676 660)            -                         2 811 180            

Plant & Equipment 33 116 786          (5 040 361)         -                         32 565 995          

Furniture, Equipment and Fittings 1 016 724            (109 490)            -                         1 126 214            

Totals 866 281 998        (77 832 308)       -                         934 558 653        

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Assets at 30 June 2021 Balance at Movement Disposals Balance at

30-Jun-21 30-Jun-20

Software 5 014 600            -                        -                        5 014 600             

Totals 5 014 600            -                        -                        5 014 600             

Accumulated Amortization

Software 4 284 719            442 464                -                        3 842 255             

Totals 4 284 719            442 464                -                        3 842 255             

 Carrying Values at Year End 

Software 729 881                (442 464)            -                        1 172 345             

Totals 729 881                (442 464)            -                        1 172 345             

Assets at 30 June 2020 Balance at Movement Disposals Balance at

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19

Software 5 014 600            -                        -                        5 014 600             

Totals 5 014 600            -                        -                        5 014 600             

Accumulated Amortization

Software 3 842 255            429 387                -                        3 412 868             

Totals 3 842 255            429 387                -                        3 412 868             

 Carrying Values at Year End 

Software 1 172 345            (429 387)            -                        1 601 732             

Totals 1 172 345            (429 387)            -                        1 601 732             

Intangible assets comprise of computer software programmes
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9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade creditors 411 242 675 355 321 004

Consumer Debtors - Payments in advance 13 411 13 780

Other creditors 230 760 4 720 721

Unallocated Receipts 3 112 719 3 107 364

Total Creditors 414 599 566 363 162 868

Total Creditors 2021 - Ageing Current Period 31 - 60 Days 61 - 90 Days 91 - 120 Days 121 and Over

33 237 073 2 509 470 2 906 273 2 317 191 373 629 559

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.

10 UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Newcastle 388 455 388 455

Umzinyathi 72 506 72 506

460 961 460 961

11 SERVICE RELATED EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Non Current

Long service Awards 2 545 380 2 028 359

Post-employment medical benefits 9 418 250 7 793 098

11 963 630 9 821 457

Current

Leave pay accrual 6 408 146 6 096 815

Long service Awards 296 950 177 104

Post-employment medical benefits 270 342 277 645

6 975 438 6 551 564

Total Provisions 18 939 068 16 373 021

The movement in Leave provisions is reconciled as follows: -

Balance B/fwd 5 405 953 4 779 091

Increase in provision 1 217 943 1 785 349

Expenditure incurred (467 624)            (1 158 487)         

as at 30 June 6 156 272 5 405 953

Leave pay accrual

Input Vat of R 37 621 393,25 is included in the Trade Creditor balances - also see note 5 above

Leave pay accrual is based on the number of hours accruing to the employee at balance sheet date multiplied by the employee's hourly rate of pay. The 

accrual includes the liability in respect of accumulated leave due to employees previously in the employ of the WSA's prior to transfer to the company which 

has not yet been paid over to the company. 

Include in the above trade creditors  figure is an amount of R 405 522 356.66 raised in respect of bulk raw water charges owed to the Department of Water and 

Sanitation. This amount is subject to the payment by the Water Service Authorities of their bulk water accounts and raw water budgeted costs. Negotiations 

are currently taking place between uTthukela Water, the WSA's the Department to resolve this matter. 

The WSA's are the recipients of all government grants paid in terms of the Division of Revenue Act, and in cases where the Entity is appointed by the 

municipality to implement any of its capital grant projects, these are done on an implementation basis only, and the relevant municipality reflects the grants 

and its conditions and reports back to National or Provincial Treasury directly in relation to the requirements of the grants. 

In cases where the municipality transfers its own capital funding to the Entity to implement capital projects, these are also carried out as implementing agent 

only, and these transfers are not conditional grants, except to say that they are for a specific purpose or project as directed by the municipality.
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Long Service Awards

Long Service 

Bonuses(% of 

Annual Salary) Description

2.0%

5/ 249 x annual 

salary

4.0%

10/ 249 x annual 

salary

8.0%

20/ 249 x annual 

salary

12.0%

30/ 249 x annual 

salary

Year ending Year ending Year ending

2020/06/30 2021/06/30 2022/06/30

Opening Accrued Liability 2 574 007 2 205 463 2 842 330

Current-service Cost 223 878 190 067 233 711

Interest Cost 167 481 147 337 216 047

Benefit payments 49 225                  476 567                -                        

Total Annual Expense 440 584                813 971 449 758

Past Service Cost -809 128 -177 104              -296 950             

Closing Accrued Liability 2 205 463 2 842 330 2 995 138

Key Financial Assumptions

Males Females Males Females

Discount rate

General salary Inflation

Net effective discount rate

Average retirement age 63 58 63 58

Mortality during employment

In service members withdrawing before retirement Males Females

Age 20 16% 24%

Age 30 12% 18%

Age 40 8% 10%

Age 50 4% 4%

Age 55 2% 2%

Post-employment medical benefits

Medical Scheme Arrangements

Membership Eligibility

Contribution Rate Structure

Subsidy Policy

10

15

Every five years thereafter

In the month that each “Completed Service” milestone is reached, the employee is granted a LSA.

Working days awarded are valued at 1/249 th of annual salary per day

2021/06/30 2020/06/30

In-service members will receive a post-employment subsidy of 60% of the contribution payable. All continuation members receive a 60% subsidy. Widow(er)s 

and orphans of eligible in-service members are entitled to receive this same subsidy on and after the death in-service of an employee.

8.02% 6.96%

5.53% 3.33%

2.36% 3.51%

SA85-90 SA85-90

The Employer offers employees and continuation members the opportunity of belonging to one of several medical aid schemes, most of which offer a range 

of options pertaining to levels of cover.

Upon retirement, an employee may continue membership of the medical scheme. Upon a member’s death-in-service or death-in-retirement, the surviving 

dependants may continue membership of the medical scheme.

Members contribute according to tables of contribution rates which differentiate between them on the type and number of dependants. Some options also 

differentiate on the basis of income.

Upon a member’s death-in-service or death-in-retirement, the surviving dependants will continue to receive the same 60% subsidy.

An actuarial valuation of the future liability for this benefit has been undertaken by an independent firm of Actuaries with the following results

uThukela offers employees LSA for every five years of service completed, starting from five years of service calculated as follows:

Long Service Awards for levels of past service

Completed Service (in years)

5
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An actuarial valuation of the future liability for this 

benefit has been undertaken by an independent firm of 

Year ending Year ending Year ending

2020/06/30 2021/06/30 2022/06/30

Opening Accrued Liability 8 673 753 8 070 742 9 688 592

Current-service Cost 349 858 327 067 421 242

Interest Cost 914 049 1 024 804 1 078 581

Benefit payments (246 507)            (277 645)            (270 342)            

Total Annual Expense 1 017 400 1 074 226 1 229 481

Actuarial Loss / (Gain) (1 620 411)         543 623 -                        

Closing Accrued Liability 8 070 742 9 688 591 10 918 073

Key Financial Assumptions 2021/06/30 2020/06/30

Males Females Males Females

Discount rate 11.29% 12.92%

Health care cost inflation rate 7.81% 8.70%

Net effective discount rate 3.23% 3.88%

Average retirement age 63 58 63 58

Proportion continuing membership at retirement 100.00% 100.00%

Proportion of retiring members who are married 100.00% 90.00%

Proportion of eligible current non-member employees 

joining the scheme by retirement 10.00% 10.00%

Mortality during employment SA85-90 SA85-90

Mortality post retirement PA(90)-1 PA(90)-1 

In service members withdrawing before retirement Males Females

Age 20 12% 24%

Age 30 5% 15%

Age 40 3% 6%

Age 50 1% 2%

Age 55 1% 1%

12 SHARE CAPITAL 

Issued ordinary shares 100 100

The authorised number of ordinary shares is 10 000 with a 

13 ACCUMULATED FUNDS

Accumulated Funds Surplus(Deficit)

Balance Beginning Year - Surplus(Deficit) 5 754 250            21 778 904          

Surplus/(Deficit) for year (89 050 432)       (91 828 627)       

Off Setting Depreciation /Partners  Cont/Reval Reserve 65 515 868          75 803 974          

Balance Year End -17 780 314 5 754 250

Asset Revaluation Reserve 633 461 008        699 709 328        

Less: Off Setting Depreciation (65 515 868)       (66 248 321)       

Balance Year End 567 945 140 633 461 008

Total Accumulated Funds 550 164 826 639 215 258

Shareholder Contributions

Shareholder Contributions - Beginning Year 165 735 184 174 159 523

Less: Off Setting Depreciation (9 572 531)         (8 424 339)         

Balance Year End 156 162 652 165 735 184

Accumulated Funds Surplus/(Deficit) -17 780 314 5 754 250

Shareholder Contributions - Projects 166 613 419 176 185 951

Umzinyathi District Municipality 78 720 255 82 243 388

Amajuba District Municipality 6 627 604 7 721 253

Newcastle Municipality 81 265 561 86 221 310

Accumulated Funds Surplus(Deficit) -Excluding 

Shareholder Contributions - Projects (184 393 733)    (170 431 700)    
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14 SERVICE CHARGES 

Sale of water 165 403 505 148 550 115

Total Service Charges 165 403 505 148 550 115

15 INTEREST EARNED - EXTERNAL INVESTMENTS

Banks 963 382 1 374 489

Deposits Made with Suppliers 103 654 113 786

Total Interest 1 067 037 1 488 275

16 GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

16.1 Project funding 

Umzinyathi District Municipality -                        222 372                

-                        222 372                

Refer to Note 10

17 OTHER RECEIPTS

Rental of land and buildings 211 893                209 479                

Laboratory services 43 493                  63 178                  

eSeta 37 463                  -                        

Tender document sales 783                        -                        

Connection fees -                        6 296                    

Reduction in provision for bad debt 33 293                  14 526                  

326 923 293 479

18 EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS 

Salaries and Wages 37 052 866          33 918 062          

Medical, Pension and Provident Fund 9 454 293            6 504 375            

Leave pay 1 217 943            1 785 349            

Bonuses 3 452 628            2 899 273            

Housing benefits and allowances 2 112 578            2 141 090            

Overtime payments 4 191 818            4 666 341            

Other 733 837                839 812                

58 215 964 52 754 301

Included in the employee related costs are the following: 

Managing Director 

Annual Remuneration -                        -                        

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and 

other allowances -                        -                        

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds -                        -                        

Accumulated Leave -                        -                        

Total -                        -                        
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Chief Financial Officer 

Annual Remuneration 1 365 136            1 146 899            

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and 

other allowances 54 000                  63 168                  

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 183 449                134 780                

Accumulated Leave 300 178                187 883                

Total 1 902 763            1 532 730            

Heads of Departments  

Operations/Engineering

Annual Remuneration 1 679 464            1 375 968            

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and 

other allowances 146 260                114 220                

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 262 484                184 694                

Accumulated Leave 356 141                300 526                

Total 2 444 349            1 975 408            

Human Resources Manager

Annual Remuneration 1 602 138            1 357 347            

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and 

other allowances 152 351                157 764                

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 279 107                262 477                

Accumulated Leave 281 012                207 297                

Total 2 314 608            1 984 885            

Remuneration of directors 

Chairman -                        -                        

Deputy Chairman -                        -                        

Other board members -                        -                        

Total Director's Remuneration -                        -                        

19 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Property, plant and equipment 78 819 001          79 481 162          

Intangible assets 442 464                429 387                

Total Depreciation and Amortisation 79 261 466          79 910 549          

20 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expended 5 177 110            3 106 037            

21 BULK PURCHASES 

Water 25 047 706 23 302 590

Water services and management levy 5 219 693 4 446 928

30 267 399 27 749 518

22 INTEREST PAID/ACCRUED

Overdue accounts 22 945 197 22 022 422

Refer to Note 30.2 22 945 197 22 022 422

23 CONTRACTED SERVICES

Professional fees and consultant costs 2 394 852 3 865 644

Legal expenses 140 805 28 500

2 535 657 3 894 144

The amounts reflected for the respective financial years indicate the amounts spent by the entity to repair and maintain PPE, and include costs of 

maintenance, preservation, monitoring, repair, refurbishment, renovation, materials, service provider and if applicable direct employee costs.
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24 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Included in operating expenses are the following:-

Advertising 124 836 10 000

Bank charges 74 987 80 290
Board meeting and Chairman's discretionary 13 183 38 874

Chemicals 8 176 203 6 293 529

Communications costs 1 070 278 837 839

Conferences and seminars 21 454 36 241

Consumables and stores 138 764 98 489

Covid-19 expenses 317 253 193 862

Electricity 39 787 833 37 924 168

Fuel and Oil 668 285 779 217

Insurance 834 323 817 683

Licensing of Motor Vehicles & Trailers 191 241 205 836

Membership fees 37 079 34 491

Municipal services 207 362 202 729

Postage and courier services 18 248 12 373

Printing and stationery 125 565 72 213

Protective clothing 166 799 170 086

Rental 1 434 893 1 325 968

Safety and security 786 252 754 240

Scada and telemetric costs                 150 462 -                        

Servitudes and Land Surveys                   12 250 -                        

Software Licenses 726 526 625 162

Staff and other meeting costs 400 1 258

Staff Emergency Rations 5 169 7 088

Staff recruitment and relocation costs 2 720 11 589

Subsistence and travel 142 878 236 356

Tools and equipment 4 322 7 152

Training 642 158 165 707

Water analysis 1 688 666 2 057 300

57 570 388 52 999 739

25 GAIN / (LOSS) ON SALE OF ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 114 697 -                        

Total Gain / (Loss) on Sale of Assets 114 697 -                        

26 TAXATION 

27 CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (89 050 432)       (91 828 627)       

Adjustment for: - 

Depreciation 79 261 466          79 910 549          

Contribution to bad debt provision (33 293)               (14 526)               

Contribution to staff benefits provision 2 566 047            346 169                

Operating  surplus before working capital 

Amendments (7 256 211)         (11 586 436)       

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (10 586)               (53 841)               

Decrease/(Increase) in consumer and other debtors (33 795 044)       (33 458 276)       

(Decrease)/Increase in creditors 51 436 698          53 266 392          

(Decrease)/Increase in VAT 237 410                (293 052)            

(Decrease)/Increase in Unspent Capital Grants -                        (222 372)            

Cash generated by operations 10 612 266 7 652 415

The Company is exempt from the payment of income tax and duties in terms of section 10 (1) (t) (ix) of the Income Tax Act 58/1962
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2021 2020

R R

31.4 PAYE 

Opening Balance -                        -                        

Current year payroll deductions 10 226 668          9 639 745            

Amount paid - current year (10 226 668)       (9 639 745)         

Balance unpaid at year end included in creditors -                        -                        

31.5 UIF

Opening Balance -                        -                        

Current year payroll deductions 312 787                303 096                

Amount paid - current year (312 787)            (303 096)            

Balance unpaid at year end included in creditors -                        -                        

31.6 Medical aid

Opening Balance -                        -                        

Current year payroll deductions 3 349 388            3 061 560            

Amount paid - current year (3 349 388)         (3 061 560)         

Balance unpaid at year end included in creditors -                        -                        

31.7 Pension and provident fund contributions

Opening Balance -                        -                        

Current year payroll deductions 8 501 008 7 666 302            

Amount paid - current year (8 501 008)         (7 666 302)         

Balance unpaid at year end included in creditors -                        -                        

32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure

- Approved and contracted for

Infrastructure -                        -                        

- Approved but not yet contracted for

Infrastructure -                        -                        

Total -                        -                        

33 OPERATING LEASES

At the reporting date the entity has outstanding 

Operating leases - lessee 

Within one year (1 520 696)         (1 499 469)         

In the second to fifth year inclusive (1 760 276)         (45 091)               

After five years -                        -                        

Total (3 280 972)         (1 544 560)         

Operating Leases consists of the following:

34 RETIREMENT PLANS

34.1 Defined contribution plans

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the municipality for its head office property at Lot 600 Newcastle. The current lease expires on 31 July 

2023. As well as payments payable to ITEC for rental of printers the contract of which expires on the 31/08/2022 and 09/03/2024

During the year contributions were made to the following defined contribution plans: Natal Joint Municipal Pension Fund - Provident Funds SALA pension 

fund. These contributions have been expensed.
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2021 2020

R R

34.2 Defined benefit plan

34.3 Employees retirement funding

35 IN-KIND DONATIONS AND ASSISTANCE

36 RELATED PARTIES

Revenue Received

Bulk Water Services 134 959 579 117 227 781

Umzinyathi District Municipality 16 986 829 15 011 708

Amajuba District Municipality 22 594 948 11 294 920

Newcastle Municipality 95 377 802 90 921 153

Less: Bad Debt

        134 959 579         117 227 781 

Year End Balances

Assets Funding 499 813 316 676

Umzinyathi District Municipality 499 813 316 676

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debt -316 676              -316 676              

                183 138                            -   

Bulk Water Services 142 488 275 108 943 096

Umzinyathi District Municipality 10 417 270 5 416 863

Amajuba District Municipality 15 403 096 18 056 196

Newcastle Municipality 116 667 909 85 470 038

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debt -4 803                   -4 803                   

        142 483 472         108 938 293 

Revenue Funding 82 763 673 82 763 673

Umzinyathi District Municipality 64 191 401 64 191 401

Amajuba District Municipality 18 572 273 18 572 273

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debt -82 763 673        -82 763 673        

                           -                              -   

Sundry [mSCOA System] 875 503 875 503

Umzinyathi District Municipality 191 303 191 303

Amajuba District Municipality 684 200 684 200

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debt -875 503 -875 503

                           -                              -   

The following are defined benefit plans:  Natal Joint Municipal Pension Funds - Superannuation and Retirement funds and Government Employees Pension 

Fund. These are not treated as defined benefit plans as defined by IAS19, but are accounted for as defined contribution plans. This is in line with the 

exemption in IAS 19 par. 30 which states that where information required for proper defined benefit plan accounting is not available in respect of multi-

employer and state plans, these should be accounted for as defined contribution plans. 

In respect of Natal Joint Municipal Pension Funds - Superannuation and Retirement funds regular actuarial assessments are carried out in terms of the fund 

rules and any actuarial deficit is recovered by a surcharge on all employer members

An amount of R5 747 938 (2020 : R5 193 081) was contributed by Council in respect of Employees retirement funding.  These contributions have been expensed 

and are included in employee related costs for the year.

The Entity received no in-kind donations and assistance

The nature of the relationship between the company and its shareholders, namely: the Water Service Authorities (uMzinyathi District Municipality, Amajuba 

District Municipality and Newcastle Municipality) is such that any transactions between the parties are related party transactions. Specific categories of such 
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Key Management Personnel

4 175 990            4 769 398            

Payments made for contracted services 3 230 589            3 204 538            

Performance bonus -                        192 186                

Payments for Ad Hoc services to LL Cunha and Associates 869 501                1 296 773            

Payments for rental accomodation 75 900                  75 900                  

37 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Change of Functions

38 DEVIATIONS FROM SCM REGULATIONS ( SCM Regulation Number 36) 

Emergency procurement 178 315                737 405                

Deviation less than R200 000.00 6 241 506            4 159 853            

No guarantees are given or provided for in the agreements except for the performance objectives required by the Board.

There are no expenses or provision created for bad or doubtful debts.

Detailed hereunder are the transactions resulting from these arrangements and contractual obligations for the period reported in the annual financial 

statements for the year ending 30 June 2021.

The future of the bulk water services in the region is still being finalised by National Minister of Water Affairs 

Supply chain deviations from SCM policy  listed above were, in terms of section 36 of the municipal SCM regulations, approved by the accounting officer or 

officials in terms of delgated powers, and noted by the board . 

The reasons for the deviations include the following: Acquisition from sole suppliers, non-responsive suppliers, supplies where mechanical units required a 

strip and quote, acquisitions direct from manufacturers or agents and, where in terms of Board policy, equipment was standardised.

Emergency procurement and circumstances where it is impractical or not possible to follow the official procedure,are assessed in terms of the stipulated 

criteria  by the SCM Bid Adjudication Committee.

Consequent to the delays with the implementation of the Provincial Cabinet decision, and the subsequent Government Gazette Notice published on the 15 

December 2015 issued by the National Minister of Water Affairs and Sanitation regarding the formation of the new water institution for KZN- Natal, the Board 

took a decision to secure, on a relatively short term basis, the interim arrangements concerning the Acting Manager Director responsibilities, were secured by 

contract terminating on the 31 March 2020. This contract was further extended, initially by 3 months to the end of June 2020, then by 6 months to the 31 

December 2020, and thereafter two 3 months contracts to 30 June 2021 and a six months contract to 31 December 2021, due to the effects and prohibitions on 

movements imposed by the National COVID19 regulations. The leave and Performance incentives were not continued beyond the 30 June 2020 by mutual 

agreement due to the short term nature of the contract extensions. 

The nature of the related party relationship entered into by the Board and the consultancy service; LL Cunha and Associates, is detailed hereunder, and 

herewith this note also sets out the terms and conditions of the written agreement and  subsequent written amendments, all transactions relating thereto, 

any commitments and outstanding balances, if any, entered between the parties.

The Consultancy service was initially introduced to the Board by Provincial Treasury in terms of a section 139 of the Constitution of SA intervention, and the 

objectives thereof were to provide urgently needed financial support services to the entity, including the performance by Mr LL Cunha of the Acting Chief 

Financial Officer duties. At the time of the engagement of the consultant, PWC SA,  had issued a compilation report regarding the collapse of the financial 

affairs of the Board, and had proposed an urgent and immediate intervention.  Financial statements had not been issued and audits had not been conducted 

for a period of 6 years, and the Shareholder municipalities were very concerned with the status of the entity, as it impacted quite severely on their own 

financial affairs. Subsequent to the recovery of the entity to unqualified audit status, and pending the establishment of a new water institution envisaged by 

Provincial Cabinet resolution dated 7 June 2012, the shareholder municipalities took a resolution and placed a moratorium on the appointment of any new 

senior management positions by the entity during the transitional phase. In October 2014 the Managing Director of the entity resigned and terminated his 

services with the Board, and the Board,  as an interim arrangement to ensure the continuity of its operational requirements, directed the Acting CFO Mr LL 

Cunha, to carry the Managing Director responsibilities in addition to those of the CFO position, until otherwise directed, or pending the imminent  formation 

of the new water institution.

Subsequent to year end, the Chairperson  of the Board, Mr PS Naidoo and the Acting MD, Mr LL Cunha resigned. Advocate N Khambule has 

subsequently been appointed as the Acting MD, by the shareholder municipalities.
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39 RISK MANAGEMENT

39.1 Maximum credit risk exposure

39.2 Liquidity risk

39.3 Interest rate risk

40 COMPARISON WITH THE BUDGET

41 BULK WATER LOSSES

Water stock 2020 2019

ML ML

Opening balance treated water 48                          18                          

Opening balance raw water 22                          22                          

Raw water purchases 50 613                  50 069                  

Treated water sales -43 056                -42 241                

Process water in system -2 531                   -2 455                   

Technical water loss -5 027                   -5 343                   

Closing water stock                           69                           70 

Water losses ML R ML R

Opening Stock Raw 22 13 246                  22 13 222                     

Opening stock Treated 48 166 080                18 10 818                     

Units purchased - Newcastle and Amajuba 44 855                  27 007 196          44 593                  26 800 393             

Units purchased - Umzinyathi 5 758                    179 650                5 476                    163 185                   

Total units purchased                   50 661           27 352 925                   50 087              26 974 396 

Units sold 43 056                  164 043 360        -42 241                -146 153 860         

Unsold process water in system 2 531                    9 643 110            2 455                    8 494 300                

Total loss                     5 074             3 049 474                   89 873              54 013 673 

Comprising of 

Technical losses 5 027                    3 026 757            5 391                    3 239 991                

Total                     5 074             3 026 757                     5 391                 3 239 991 

Percentage loss % %

Technical losses 10.02% 179.43%

Total 10.02% 179.43%

The comparison of the Municipality’s actual financial performance with that budgeted is set out in Appendix D

As the company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in 

market interest rates.

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit 

The company's risk to liquidity is related to the timeous payment of bulk water accounts by its shareholding municipalities

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

Management evaluates credit risk relating to consumer debtors and provides for impairment. See notes 

Bulk water losses are very carefully managed and form part of the Boards performance management monitoring program.  The technical water losses of 10.02 

% represents the real water losses on the bulk water supply lines from extraction to final treatment, storage and distribution. Considering the condition, age 

and and the lack of capital infrastructure investment into these assets, the loss is considered acceptable, and within the industry norm of around 15%.



62 
 

UTHUKELA WATER (PTY) LTD. 

APPENDIX A: ANALYSIS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Accumulated Depreciation Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at Additions Work in Disposals Revaluation Balance at Additions Disposals Revaluation Transfers Balance at Balance at Additions Disposals Balance at Additions Disposals Correction Balance at Carrying Value Carrying Value Carrying Value

Laboratory Equipment 30-Jun-19 Progress 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 Journals 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE

Water Purification Plant 363 774 020        222 372                3 964 501         -                         -                         367 960 893        -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         367 960 893        71 697 306          14 960 005          -                     -                         86 657 311           15 174 419           -                         -                        101 831 730        292 076 714           281 303 581        266 129 163        

Pump Stations 46 752 575           61 211                   -                     -                         -                         46 813 785           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         46 813 785           11 993 059          2 572 509            -                     -                         14 565 568           2 574 549             -                         -                        17 140 116           34 759 516             32 248 218           29 673 669           

Dams 141 173 465        -                         -                     -                         -                         141 173 465        -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         141 173 465        14 236 635          2 853 292            -                     -                         17 089 927           2 853 292             -                         -                        19 943 219           126 936 830           124 083 538        121 230 246        

Reservoirs 54 299 532           -                         -                     -                         -                         54 299 532           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         54 299 532           12 532 368          3 037 643            -                     -                         15 570 011           3 037 643             -                         -                        18 607 653           41 767 164             38 729 521           35 691 878           

Chambers & Components on Bulk lines 14 729 240           -                         -                     -                         -                         14 729 240           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         14 729 240           7 129 886            1 391 621            -                     -                         8 521 507             1 391 621             -                         -                        9 913 127             7 599 354               6 207 733             4 816 113             

Reticulation 736 514 037        -                         -                     -                         -                         736 514 037        -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         736 514 037        341 598 351        47 474 310          -                     -                         389 072 661        47 474 310           -                         -                        436 546 971        394 915 686           347 441 376        299 967 066        

1 357 242 869     283 582                -                3 964 501         -                         -                         1 361 490 952     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         1 361 490 952     459 187 605        72 289 379          -                     -                         531 476 984        72 505 833           -                         -                        603 982 817        898 055 263           830 013 968        757 508 135        

VEHICLES

Water 5 339 928             -                         -                         -                         5 339 928             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         5 339 928             2 592 748            660 660                -                     -                         3 253 408             524 660                -                         -                        3 778 068             2 747 180               2 086 520             1 561 860             

Administration 149 899                -                         -                         -                         149 899                -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         149 899                85 899                  16 000                  -                     -                         101 899                16 000                   -                         -                        117 899                64 000                     48 000                   32 000                   

5 489 827             -                         -                -                     -                         -                         5 489 827             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         5 489 827             2 678 647            676 660                -                     -                         3 355 307             540 660                -                         -                        3 895 967             2 811 180               2 134 520             1 593 860             

PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Tractors/Trailers/Machinery 3 092 822             -                         -                     -                         -                         3 092 822             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         3 092 822             1 512 157            287 638                -                     -                         1 799 795             287 638                -                         (799)                    2 086 634             1 580 665               1 293 027             1 006 189             

Bulk Water Meters 2 761 417             90 390                   -                     -                         -                         2 851 807             -                         -                         -                         -                         2 851 807             627 707                241 581                -                     -                         869 288                245 206                -                         -                        1 114 494             2 133 710               1 982 519             1 737 312             

Laboratory Equipment 4 231 087             103 761                -                     -                         -                         4 334 848             10 050                   -                         -                         -                         -                         4 344 898             2 590 855            501 162                -                     -                         3 092 017             408 315                -                         (13 485)               3 486 847             1 640 232               1 242 831             858 051                

Small Plant And Equipment 2 287 934             3 972                     -                     -                         -                         2 291 906             -                         -                         -                         -                         2 291 906             1 778 929            119 283                -                     -                         1 898 211             120 011                -                         (334)                    2 017 888             509 005                   393 695                274 018                

Water Plant 48 930 389           1 000 738             5 591 152         -                         -                         55 522 278           807 944                -                         -                         -                         -                         56 330 222           22 228 006          5 089 558            -                     -                         27 317 564           4 355 063             -                         (438)                    31 672 189           26 702 382             28 204 714           24 658 033           

61 303 649           1 198 861             -                5 591 152         -                         -                         68 093 661           817 994                -                         -                         -                         -                         68 911 655           28 737 654          6 239 222            -                     -                         34 976 876           5 416 232             -                         (15 056)               40 378 053           32 565 995             33 116 786           28 533 603           

FURNITURE, EQUIPMENT AND FITTINGS

Technology 1 723 253             159 657                -                         -                         1 882 910             424 849                -                         -                         -                         -                         2 307 759             1 251 230            120 608                -                     -                         1 371 838             217 270                -                         (2 892)                 1 586 216             472 023                   511 072                721 543                

Finance 205 888                -                         -                         -                         205 888                -                         -                         -                         -                         205 888                116 315                21 844                  -                     -                         138 159                21 844                   -                         -                        160 003                89 574                     67 729                   45 885                   

Engineering 786 621                3 825                     -                         -                         790 446                15 498                   -                         -                         -                         -                         805 945                468 839                74 602                  -                     -                         543 441                76 938                   -                         (80)                       620 298                317 782                   247 006                185 647                

Administration 468 181                2 929                     -                         -                         471 110                -                         -                         -                         -                         471 110                275 932                45 195                  -                     -                         321 127                45 388                   -                         (766)                    365 749                192 249                   149 983                105 361                

Human Resources 134 807                -                         -                         -                         134 807                -                         -                         -                         -                         134 807                80 220                  13 652                  -                     -                         93 872                   13 652                   -                         (23)                       107 502                54 587                     40 934                   27 305                   

3 318 751             166 411                -                -                     -                         -                         3 485 162             440 347                -                         -                         -                         -                         3 925 509             2 192 536            275 902                -                     -                         2 468 438             375 092                -                         (3 760)                 2 839 769             1 126 214               1 016 724             1 085 740             

INTANGIBLE

Technology 5 014 600             -                         -                         -                         5 014 600             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         5 014 600             3 412 868            429 387                -                     -                         3 842 255             429 337                -                         13 127                  4 284 719             1 601 732               1 172 345             729 881                

5 014 600             -                         -                -                     -                         -                         5 014 600             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         5 014 600             3 412 868            429 387                -                     -                         3 842 255             429 337                -                         13 127                  4 284 719             1 601 732               1 172 345             729 881                

TOTAL 1 432 369 695     1 648 854             -                9 555 653         -                         -                         1 443 574 202     1 258 341             -                         -                         -                         -                         1 444 832 544     496 209 310        79 910 549          -                     -                         576 119 859        79 267 154           -                         (5 689)                 655 381 325        936 160 385           867 454 343        789 451 219        

Water Service 

assets 

transferred to 

WSA's

Water Service 

assets 

transferred 

from WSA's

Water Service 

assets 

transferred to 

WSA's
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Balance at Additions Disposals Revaluation Balance at Additions Disposals Revaluation Transfers Balance at Balance at Additions Disposals Value Balance at Additions Disposals Correction Balance at

30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-19 Adjustments 30-Jun-20 Journals 30-Jun-21 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-21

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

SUMMARY

Water 1 423 886 447     1 482 443             -                         -                         1 434 924 543     817 994                -                         -                         -                         -                         1 435 742 537     490 502 951        79 189 261           -                        -                         -                        569 692 212        78 446 726           -                        -                         -                        648 138 938        933 383 495        865 232 330        787 603 599        

Technology 6 737 853             159 657                -                         -                         6 897 510             424 849                -                         -                         -                         -                         7 322 359             4 679 974             549 995                -                        -                         -                        5 229 969             646 608                -                        -                         -                        5 876 576             2 057 880             1 667 542             1 445 783             

Administration 618 080                2 929                     -                         -                         621 009                -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         621 009                361 115                61 195                   -                        -                         -                        422 310                61 388                   -                        -                         -                        483 698                256 965                198 699                137 311                

Finance 205 888                -                         -                         -                         205 888                -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         205 888                116 315                21 844                   -                        -                         -                        138 159                21 844                   -                        -                         -                        160 003                89 574                   67 729                   45 885                   

Human Resources 134 807                -                         -                         -                         134 807                -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         134 807                80 198                   13 652                   -                        -                         -                        93 850                   13 652                   -                        -                         -                        107 502                54 609                   40 957                   27 305                   

Engineering 786 621                3 825                     -                         -                         790 446                15 498                   -                         -                         -                         -                         805 945                468 759                74 602                   -                        -                         -                        543 361                76 938                   -                        -                         (5 689)                 614 609                317 862                247 086                191 336                

1 432 369 696     1 648 854             -                         -                         1 443 574 203     1 258 341             -                         -                         -                         -                         1 444 832 545     496 209 311        79 910 549           -                        -                         -                        576 119 860        79 267 156           -                        -                         (5 689)                 655 381 327        936 160 385        867 454 343        789 451 218        

Carrying Value

Water Service 

assets 

transferred to 

WSA's

Water Service 

assets 

transferred to 

WSA's

Water Service 

assets 

transferred 

from WSA's

Accumulated Depreciation
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2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

Actual Actual Surplus/ Actual Actual Surplus/

Revenue Expenditure (Deficit) Revenue Expenditure (Deficit)

R R R R R R

-                         (6 500 515)          (6 500 515)          Strategy and Leadership -                         (8 492 933)          (8 492 933)          

-                         (1 997 342)          (1 997 342)          Company Secretary -                         (2 277 703)          (2 277 703)          

-                         (6 996 756)          (6 996 756)          Human Resources -                         (2 825 820)          (2 825 820)          

1 393 960 (33 597 884)        (32 203 924)        Finance 2 004 126 (32 091 168)        (30 087 042)        

-                         (5 736 378)          (5 736 378)          Technology -                         (5 063 176)          (5 063 176)          

-                         (5 757 210)          (5 757 210)          Environmental Management -                         (5 895 242)          (5 895 242)          

-                         (3 177 059)          (3 177 059)          Engineering -                         (3 037 742)          (3 037 742)          

-                         (4 930 496)          (4 930 496)          Administration Operations -                         (4 929 033)          (4 929 033)          

165 403 505 (187 268 956)     (21 865 451)        Water 148 550 115 (177 770 052)     (29 219 936)        

166 797 465 (255 962 593)     (89 165 128)        Total 150 554 241 (242 382 869)     (91 828 627)        

114 697               -                         114 697               Gain / (loss) on sale of assets -                            -                         -                            

166 912 162       (255 962 593)     (89 050 432)        150 554 241       (242 382 869)     (91 828 627)        
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2021 2021 2021 2021 Explanation for Significant Variances of more than 10% from Budget

Original Budget

Budget 

Adjustments

(i.t.o. s28 & s31 

Of The MFMA)

Virement (i.t.o. 

Council 

Approved By-

law) Final Budget Actual

Unauthorised 

Expenditure Variance

% Variance to 

Final Budget

% Variance to 

Original Budget

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Financial Performance

Service charges 170 263 232       -                            -                            170 263 232       165 403 505       -                            (4 859 727)          -3% -3%

Interest received 107 000               -                            -                            107 000               1 067 037            -                            960 037               897% 897%

Conservative budget provided for Interest income due to uncertainty 

of payments from WSA's

Other receipts 779 300               -                            -                            779 300               326 923               -                            (452 377)             -58% -58%

Other receipts are irregular receipts dependant partially on laboratory 

services requested by customer’s 

Total Revenue (Excluding Capital 

Transfers & Contributions) 171 149 532       -                            -                            171 149 532       166 797 465       -                            (4 352 067)          -3% -3%

Expenditure
Employee related costs (59 541 583)        -                            -                            (59 541 583)        (58 215 964)        1 325 619            -2% -2%

Depreciation (1 787 026)          -                            -                            (1 787 026)          (79 261 466)        (77 474 440)        4335% 4335%

Full effect of depreciation on assets not provided for on budget - 

Capital grant and revaluation depreciation off-set any not budgeted 

for.

Repairs and maintenance (16 110 527)        -                            -                            (16 110 527)        (5 177 110)          10 933 417         -68% -68% Due to non payment from two WSA's, expenditure has been curtailed

Bulk water purchases (29 419 149)        -                            -                            (29 419 149)        (30 267 399)        (848 250)             3% 3%

Interest paid/accrued -                            -                            -                            -                            (22 945 197)        -                            (22 945 197)        

Department of Water and Sanitation. Non payment of charges by WSA's 

and dispute with the department

    Contracted services (2 704 180)          -                            -                            (2 704 180)          (2 535 657)          -                            168 523               -6% -6%

    Inventory -                            -                            -                            -                            10 586                 -                            10 586                 Annual adjustment not budgeted for

   Other expenditures (60 272 768)        -                            -                            (60 272 768)        (57 570 388)        -                            2 702 381            -4% -4%

Total Expenditure (169 835 232)     -                            -                            (169 835 232)     (255 962 593)     -                            (86 127 361)        (51)                        (51)                        

Surplus/(Deficit) 1 314 300            -                            -                            1 314 300            (89 165 128)        (90 479 428)        

Partners Project Contributions -                            

Surplus/(Deficit) After Capital Transfers 

& Contributions 1 314 300            1 314 300            (89 165 128)        (90 479 428)        

Capital Expenditure & Funds Sources

Capital Expenditure -                            -                            -                            -                            (1 258 341)          (1 258 341)          100                       100                       No Approved capital budget

          Internally Generated Funds -                            -                            -                            -                            1 258 341            -                            1 258 341            

Total Sources Of Capital Funds -                            -                            -                            -                            1 258 341            -                            1 258 341            

Cash flows

          Net Cash From (Used) Operating 1 314 300            -                            -                            1 314 300            10 612 266         

          Net Cash From (Used) Investing -                            -                            -                            -                            (1 258 341)          

          Net Cash From (Used) Financing -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 314 300            -                            -                            1 314 300            9 353 925            
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